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2 Overview
Corsohdated financial statements
Company franca sements

Board of directors
At February 6, 2008

Simon Robertsen

Non-executive Chairman since 2005

Appointed to the Board in 2004 He is the founder member of Simon Robertson
Associates LLP and a non-executive director of HSBC Holdings plc, Berry Bros &

Rudd Ltd, and The Economist Newspaper Limited He 1s & director of The Royal Opera
House Covervt Garden Limited, a Trustee of The Eden Project and the Royal Opera
House Encdlowrment Fund He 15 the former Prestdent of Goldman Sachs Europe
Lmited Age 66

S John Rose

Chief Executive since 1996

Appointed to the Board in 1992 having joined Rolls-Royce in 1984 He 1s a Trustee
of The Eden Project Age 55

Helen Alexander CBE

Non-executive director

Appainted to the Board in September 2007 Helen Alexander was appointed

Chief Executive of The Ecanormst Group in January 1997, having joined the company
In 1684 She was Managing Director of The Economust Inteligence Unit from 1993
until the end of 1996 She 15 a non-executive direcior of Centnea plc, a Trustee of the
Tate Gallery and a governar of St Paul’s Girls"School She was awarded a CBE for
services to publishang in 2004 She has an MBA from INSEAD She 1s currently
Chairman of PPA, the magazine industry trade assoclaton Age 50

Peter J Byrom BSc, FCA

Non-executive director

Appointed to the Board 1n 1997 He 1s Chairman of Domino Pnnting Sciences pke
and Molins PLC, and a non-executive director of AMEC plc. He s a Fellow of the
Royal Aeronautical Society He was a director of N M Rothschild & Sons Limited from
1977 to 1996 Age 63

jain C Conn

Non-executive director, Senior Independent Director

Appointed to the Board in 2005 He 1s an executive director of BP pl¢ havng held a
range of executive pasitions within the BP Group worldwide He rs Chairman of the
Advisory Board of The Impenal College London Tanaka Bustness School Age 45

Professor Peter Gregson

Non-executive director

Appointed 10 the Board in March 2007 He 15 President and Vice-Chancellor of
Queen's Umiversity Belfast and serves on the Northern [reland Economic
Develgpment Forum, the Counal of CBY Northern Ireland and the Steenng Group of
the US - trefand Research and Development Partnership He ts a Fellow and Counctt
member of the Royal Academy of Engineenng, a member of the Royal Insh Academy,
and Deputy Lieutenant of Belfast. He was formerly Professor of Aerospace Matenals
and Deputy Vice-Chancellor of the University of Southampton and has served an the
Councif for the Central Laboratory of the Research Counals (CCLRC} Age 50

James M Guyette BSc

President and Chief Executive Officer of Rolls-Royce North Amernca Inc.
Appointed to the Board in 1998 having joined Rolls-Royce in 1997 He s a director of
the Private Bank and Trust Company of Chicago, Ithnoss and of priceline comn Inc.

Until 1995 he was Executive Vice President, Marketing and Planning of United Airlines
Age 62

John Rishton

Non-executive director

Appointed to the Board in March 2007 He 15 Chief Executive Officer of Royal Ahcld
He began his career in 1979 at Ford Motor Company and held a vanety of positions
both in the UK and in Europe In 1994 he poined Bntish Airways plc where he was
Chief Financial Officer from 2001 10 2005 He is a former non-executive director of
Allled Domecq Age 49

Andrew B Shilston MA, ACA, MCT

Finance Director

Appointed to the Board in 2003 having joined Rolls-Royce in 2002 He 1s a
non-executive director of Caim Energy PLC and was Finance Director of Enterprse
Qil plc from 1993 unl 2002 Age 52

Colin P Smith BS¢ Hons, FREng, FRAeS, FiMechE

Director - Engineenng and Technology

Appointed to the Board in 2005 having joined Rolls-Royce i 1974 He has held a
variety of key posiions within Engineenng, including Cirector — Research and
Technology and Director of Engineenng and Technolagy ~ Civil Aerospace Heisa
Fellow of the Royal Academy of Engineenng, the Royal Aeronautical Socety and the
Institunon of Mechanical Engineers Age 52

tan C Strachan

Non-executive director

Appainted to the Board 1n 2003 He Is a non-executive director of Reuters Group ple,
Johnson Matthey plc, Xstrata plc and Transocean Inc. He was Chief Executive of

BTR ple, Deputy Chief Executive and Chuef Financial Officer of Rio Tinto plc

and non-executrve Charman of Insinet Groug Inc Age 64

Carl G Symon BS¢, MSc

Non-executive director

Appainted 1o the Board in 1999 He 1s Chairman of HMV Group plc and Clearswift
Systems Ltd He 15 also a non-executive duector of BT Group plc and Chairnan of the
BT Group Equality of Access Board, Sentor Independent Birector of Rexam plc and an
Adwisory Board member of Cross Atlantic Capital Partners He was previously
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, IBM UK and held numerous executive positions
with IBM Corp 1n Canada, USA, Latin Amenca, Asia and Europe dunng a 32 year
mternauonal career Age 61

Mike ) Terrett

Chief Operating Officer

Appointed to the Board in September 2007, having joined Rolls-Royce in 1978

He has held a vanety of senior positions in the development of new aero engine
programmes, including Managing Director of Aidines and President and Chief
Executve Officer of Intemational Aero Engines (1AE) based in the Urited States Prior
to his appontment as Chief Operating Officer, he was President — Civil Aerospace
He 1s a member of the Institute of Mechanical Engineers and a Fellow of the Royal
Aeronautical Socety Age 51

Tim Rayner

General Counsel and Company Secretary

He joined Rolls-Royce in 2007 having previcusly been General Counset and Cormpany
Secretary at United Utthties PLC Age 47




Report of the directors

The directors present therr report and the audited financial statements of
Rolls-Royce plc (the Company) and its subsidianes (together referred to as the Group)
for the year ended December 31, 2007

Business review
A review of the business can be found on pages 4 1o 27

Share capital
No new shares were 1ssued dunng the year

Going concermn

After making enquines, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company has adeguate resources 1o continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparning the financral statements

Political donations
In line wath its established policy, the Group made no political donawons dunng 2007

Directors

The directors’ biographical details, induding their other significant commitments, are
set out on page 2 Dunng the year there were a number of Board changes

Professor Peter Gregson and John Rishton were appomnted as non-executive directors
on March 1, 2007, Sir John Taytor retired as a non-executive direcior on May 1, 2007
On September 1, 2007 Helen Alexander was appointed as a non-executive director
and Mike Terrett was appointed as an executive director John Cheffins retired as an
executive director on September 30, 2007 and Car Symon will retire as a
nan-executive director on May 7, 2008

As at December 31, 2007 all the directors were alse dwectors of Rolls-Royce
Group ple, the ulimate parent company As directors of the utumate parent
company, there 15 no requirement 1o disclose their iIndmdual remuneration or their
interests in the shares of companves in the Rolls-Royce group in this report, as they
are disclosed in the Annual report of Rolls-Royce Group pic.

The Company has entered into separate Ceeds of Indemnity n favour of its
dwectors. The deeds prowde substantially the same protection as that already
provided to directors under the indemnity i Article 142 of the Company’s Articles of
Association The Company has also arranged appropnate insurance cover for any
legal action taken against its directors

Payment to suppliers
The Company 1s guided by the Supply Chain Relationships In Aerospace (SCRIA)
initiative It seeks the best possible terms from suppliers and, when entenng inio
binding purchasing contracts, grves consideration to quality, delivery, price and the
terms of the payment. In the event of disputes, efforts are made to resolve them
quirckly

The Company had the equivalent of 47 days purchases outstanding at
December 31, 2007, based on the average daily amount invoiced by suppliers during
the year

Auditors
A resolution to reappoint the audiiors, KPMG Audst Plc, and to authonse the directors
to determine their remuneration, will be proposed at the AGM

Rolls-Royee ple Annuai report 2007
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Consofidated financial staterments

Company financal staternents

Statement of directors’ responsibiliies in respect of the Report of the directors

and the finanaal statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Report of the drectors and the Group

and parent company financal statements, in accordance with apphicable law and

regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parent company
financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors are required
to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU and have elected to prepare the

parent company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards
The Group financial statements are required by law and IFRS as adopted by the

EU to present farrly the financial position and performance of the Group, the

Companies Act 1985 {the ‘Act’) provides in relation to such financial statements that

references In the relevant part of the Act to financal statements gving a true and farr

view are references to their achieving a fair presentation

The parent company financial statements are required by law to give a true and
far view of the state of affairs of the parent company

In prepanng each of the Group and parent company financial staterments, the
directors are required to

- select suitable accounting poficies and then apply them consistently,

- make judgements and esumates that are reasonable and prudent,

- for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in
accordance with [FRS as adopted by the EU,

- for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK
Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the parent company finanaal staternents, and

- prepare the finanaal staternents on the going concern basis unless it is
nappropnate to presume that the Group and the parent company wall
contnue In business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose

with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial posiion of the parent company

and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Act. They
have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the Group and 1o prevent and detect fraud and other
irregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate
and financal information included on the Rolls-Royce website Legislation in the UK
governing the preparatron and dissermination of financial staternents may differ from
legislation in cther junsdictions

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms

that

0 sofaras the director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant informanon of which the
Company’s auditors are unaware

i) the director has taken all steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in
order to make himselffherself aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

This confimmation 1s given and should be interpreted n accordance with the

provistons of Section 234ZA of the Act.

By order of iile Boprd

My

Tim Rayner, General Counsel and Company Secretary
February 6, 2008
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Chief Executive’s review

Sir John Rose

2007 was another year of significant
progress for Rolls-Royce. We have
over many years pursued a
consistent strategy which has
enabled us to build a robust
business.

The strength of our technology gives us unusually
good access to growing global markets, as well as
creating high barners to entry The size of our
order book, the longevity of our programmes and
the scale of our services activity give us clearer
wisibifity of future revenues We face inevitable
challenges but we will continue to invest in the
technologies and capability to ensure that our
business 1s run efficiently and with a strong global
footprnt

Our financial results reflect this progress

We increased sales to £7,435 milion (2006

£7,156 million), with underlying sales growth of
six per cent Underlying profit before tax was
£845 million {2006 £851 millicn) We ended the
year with a net cash balance of £887 million, after
making a payment of £500 million into our UK
pension funds as part of our strategy to reduce
overall defiats and reduce volatility

Looking to the future, it 1s particularly encouraging
that our success in global markets has
strengthened our order book which ended the
year at a record £45 9 bafhon (2006 £26 1 bilkon)

Ours 15 a long-term business and it 1s mportant
not to loak at one year in sclation We therefore
highlight the progress made since Rolls-Royce
returned 1o the Stock Exchange 20 years ago

Addressing four global markets
In 1987, Rolls-Royce was in many
respects a very different company
The business was, of course, centred
on the gas turbine but here the
similanties stop

Twenty years ago, Rolls-Royce was predominantly
a UK company, with over S0 per cent of 1ts
employees based In this country If you look at the
Group's sales at the time, two paints jJump out at
you the extent to which revenue was dorrinated
by UK sales and the relative narrowness of the
Group's global penetration, with Europe and
North Amenca accounting for over 70 per cent of
turnover We were pnmarily 2 defence and cvil
aerospace business, with the manne and energy
sectors in the early stages of development

Now, by contrast, we are a genuinely global
company Qver 40 per cent of our workforce 1s
based outside the UK and ocur employees include
50 different nationalities. We manufacture in

20 countries and have customer support facilities
in50

The Increasingly global nature of our markets s
illustrated by the composttion of our record order
book, which 1s now balanced between the
Amencas, Europe and Asia The rapid increase in
our business in Asia and the Middle East was
particularly striking in 2007, with the order book
for these regions at the same level as the total
value of the order book just four years ago Almost
50 per cent of our order book 1s from outside the
traditional markets of Europe and North Amenca

In 2007, we significantly expanded our
internatanal presence in all four of our business
sectors. We won new customers in the Americas,
Europe and Asia, often In countries in which
previously we had littte or no presence

Investing in technology, capability
and infrastructure

Twenty years ago, almost ail our research
and technology (R&T) activity took place
in the UK By 2007, 32 per cent was
conducted outside this country, with our
centres of engineering excellence spread
across the world We have developed a
global network of University Technology
Centres (UTCs), with nine of our

29 UTCs located outside the UK.

Some things, however, have not changed Our
commitment to Improving the environmentai
performance of our products is as strong today
as 1t was in 1987 We believe that technology,
applied on an industrial scale, 15 central to
developing an effective response to cimate
change

In 2007, we continued to work with customers,
governmenis and other stakeholders to help
develop solutions Central to our approach 15 our
contribution to international research
programmes aimed at halving aircraft noise and
carbon dioxide emissions by 2020 from therr
2000 levels

Our manufactunng capabilities, ike our R&T
activity, have become far less UK-centnic since
1987 Inthe past year we have continued to invest
globally in new manufactunng capability Our
pronties have been to modernise our faclities,
Introduce more efficient working practices,
improve our business processes and simplify our
supply chamn In September, we announced plans
to open a major new assembly facility In
Singapore to build and test large cvil aero
engines. We will also be further increasing our
already strong presence in the US by bullding a
facility in Virginia to assemble and test our new
RB282 engine for the next generation of
corporate Jets

Over the past five years we have invested around
£850 million 1in new capital projects in the UK as
part of our programme to improve the operaticnal
performance of our manufactunng faciimes

We clearly intend to maintain a strang UK
manufacturing presence However, as the
Group continues to grow, our investments and
capabihty will reflect the global spread of our
activities







Developing a competitive

product portfolio

The Group has successfully broadened
its product portfolio by investung in
technology and product development
and by acquinng products and capability

Although Rolls-Royce competed in agrospace,
manne and energy markets 20 years ago, it was
with a much smaller product portfolio, across a
more limited power range Our research and
development approach of ‘invent once and use
many times has since allowed us to maximise
technology across each of our markets We now
have a wide range of modern, efficient gas
turbines in each of our key sectors The way we
have developed the Trent family for aerg, manne
and energy markets Is the best example of this
approach

Our manne business now has an extensive
preduct range, which provides a range of
capabilities from ship design to power systems
and controls Our energy business provides gas
turbines, compressors and reciprocating engines
for the power generation and oll and gas markets

Our defence business produces engines for all the
major military aviation markets These engines
power around a guarter of the world's military
fleet

In 1987, our avik aero-engine product portfolio
was limited to just four principal engines, one of
which, the V2500, was still in development Today,
Rolls-Royce has the most extensive product
portfehia of any of the gas turbine manufaciurers,
powering more than 30 applications The breadth
of the partfolio makes the business model far
maore rabust as we are not as dependent on the
success of indvidual applications

We continue to see significant opportunities for
the introduction of new products in each of our
market sectors Our strategy |s to ensure that we
have ‘on the shelf innovative technologies for
future generations of product. For Rolls-Royce,
product development is at the heart of our
competitive advantage and In many ways Is our
equivalent of acquisition actmvity For that reason,
each product investment involves a ngorous
examination of the nisks and rewards - in effect
the equivalent of due diigence - to ensure that
only business cases that we believe

will create shareholder value are pursued

Growing market share and

our installed product base

Since 1987, we have been successfully
growing our market share in each of our
businesses

Qur share of the market for large cvil aero engines
15 nearly 40 per cent and we are Europe’s number
one, and the world’s number two, defence
aerc-engine producer

We are also pre-eminent in capabiliies which

20 years ago either did nct exist or were at a very
early stage of development For example, our
marne propulston business 1s the market leader In
its field and we have one of the world’s most
successful offshore vessel ship-design businesses

In the energy market, we are a world leader

in the supply of power and compression
equipment to the offshore ol and gas markets
We are also developing our power generation
business with new products such as the

low erussions Bergen senes of gas engines

Developing aftermarket services
that add value

fn 1987, we supported our engines in
service by offering repair and overhaul
arrangements which often falled to align
our Interests with those of our customers

Today, we have comprehensive through-life
service arrangements in place in each of cur
business sectors. These aligr our interests with
those of our customers and enable us to add
value through the application of our skills and
knowledge of the product

In 2007, underlying aftermarket service revenues
grew by nine per cent and represented 55 per
cent of Group sales This growth has been
achieved partly as a result of the introduction

of new products, but also because our ownership
of intellectual property enables us to turn data into
information that adds value to our customer

Rolls-Royge pic Annual report 2007
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Future prospects

Our consistent strategy has created a business
that Is Increasingly global in terms of its
operational footprint and has access to a
broad range of growing markets worldwide

This access to markets 1s distinctive It has
profoundly influenced the nature of our

order book, which has increased i line with

our greater geographical spread and also reflects
the growing economic significance

of Asia and the Middle East

Our strong order book, together with the long
product life cycle and our ability to provide
valuable services to customers, has greatly
increased the predictability of our business

Responding to these opportunities will inevitably
see the Company continue to change at an
equivalent or faster pace than that of the past two
decades

Our strong focus on productvity and efficiency,
our broad product and service portfolio and
our access to global markets give us confidence
that in 2008, Rolls-Royce will continue to deliver
profitable growth and a positive cash flow

Sir John Rose
Chief Executve
Febnuary 6, 2008
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Business review
Our business

Market outlook

The Group operates in four long-term

global markets - ciwvil and defence aerospace,
manne and energy These markets present, in
aggregate, an opportunity of some two trillion
US dollars over the next 20 years and have
common charactenstics All these markets have
very high entry barners and

- offer the gpportunity for organic growth,

- feature extraordinarly long programme Ives,
usually measured in decades,

- canonly be addressed through significant
investments in technology, infrastructure and
capability, and

- create a significant opportunity for extended
customer relationships, with revenues from
aftermarket services similar in size
to onginal equipment revenues

The size of these markets 1s generally related to
world Gross Domestic Product {GDP) growth, or in
the case of the defence markets, global secunty
and the scale of defence budgets

Civil aerospace

The Group publishes a 20 year global market
outlook, which covers passenger and cargo jets,
corparate and regional awcraft We predict that
over the next 20 years 131,000 engines, warth
over US$700 billion, will be required, for more
than 60,000 commergial arcraft and business jets

The forecast predicts faster growth rates for long-
haul markets and those markets to, from and
within Asia These markets will continue to benefit
from more hberal air service agreements, which
boost demand

Factors affecting demand include GDP growth,
aircraft productivity, operating costs,
envionmental issues and the number of old
aircraft retirements

While the market can be temporarily disrupted by
external events, such as war or acts of terrornsm, it
has, In the past, always returned to its long-term
growth trend

In addition to the demand for engines, the

Group forecasts a market opportunity worth
U35550 billion for the provision of product related
aftermarket services

Defence aerospace

The Group farecasts that demand for military
engines will be worth US$180 billion over the next
20 years The largest single market 1s expected 10 be
the US, followed by Europe and the Far East
Within Asia, demand will be dominated by Japan,
South Korea and India Trends are driven by the
scale of defence budgets and gecpolitical
developrnents around the world

As in the Groups other business sectors,
programme lives are long and there is a
significant opportunity to support equipment
with aftermarket services Customers’ budget
constraints and their need to increase the value
they denve from therr assets have accelerated the
move n this direction The Group estimates the
value of services revenues over the next

20 years to be JS$300 billion

Marine

The Group forecasts demnand for marine power
and propulsion systems of US5230 billion over the
next 20 years Demand will be greatest in the
commercial sector, where the merchant market
represents 50 per cent of the total and the
offshore market, 30 per cent

Commercial shipping plays a crucial role n the
world economy The need to transport raw
materals, finished goods, people, and ol

and gas requires a large fleet which has to be
renewed progressively

The expansion of trade and technological
advances mean mare ship construction for
growth and for replacement as older designs
become obsolete Finding and extracting ot and
gas offshore requires a large numbser of floating
dnliing and production units which, in turn, are
supported by a varety of service craft Merchant
and offshore markets are rarefy at the same stage
of the business cyde, which helps to reduce
overall volatility

In naval markets, the Group expects surface
vessels to represent 15 per cent of the total
demand, and submarnnes five per cent

Naval markets are driven by different
consicderations, with customers looking to get
more for their budgets, leading to Increasing
demand for integrated systems and through-life
servicing arrangerents

As 1n the Group's other markets, manne
aftermarket senvices are expected to generate
significant demand, forecast at US5120 bilhon over
the next 20 years

Energy

The Internaticnal Energy Agency has forecast
that over the next 20 years, the worldwide
demand for oil will grow by 40 per cent,

for gas by more than 50 per cent and for
power generaton by nearly 60 per cent.

To satisfy this demand, there will be a growing
requirement for aero-derived gas turbines

The Group's 20 year forecast values the total
aero-denvative gas turbine sales in the oil and gas
and power generation sectors at US$70 billion
Over this penod, dermand for associated
aftermarket services is expected to be around
US$50 bitlion

While the oil and gas market 1s large and growing,
demand for aero denvatives in the power
generation segment 15 four times that of ol

and gas




Group financial highlights

The Group delivered underlying organic sales
growth across all businesses, growth in underlying
profits and a further year of positive cash flow

Rolls-Royce plc
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Business review continued
Our business continued

Strategy

We have followed a consistent strategy over many
years to grow the business profitably based on
five key efements

Address four global markets

We are a leading power systems company
operating in the cvil and defence aerospace,
marine and energy markets

Invest In technology, capability and
infrastructure

Over the past five years, we have invested
£3.5 billion in research and devetoprment

We invest approximately £30 million annually
on traring and some £300 million a year on
capital projects

Develop a competitive portfolio

of products and services

We have more than 50 current product
programmes and we are involved in many of the
major future projects in the markets we serve
These key projects will define the power systems
market for many years

Grow market share and installed

product base

Across the Group, the Installed base of engines in
service 1s expected throughout therr long product
ives to generate attractive returns

over several decades

Add value for our customers through
the provision of product-related sennces
We seek 1o add value for our customers with
aftermarket serices that wili enhance the
performance and reliability of our products.

Key performance indicators

The Board uses a range of financial and

non-financial indicators to monitor Group and
segmental performance in line with the strategy
described These indicators are chosen to monitor
both current performance and the success of
investrments that waill sustain and enhance future
performance

Key performance indicators are included
in the appropnate sections of the business review
and are as follows

Underlying revenue

Monttoring of revenues provides a measure

of business growth Underlying revenues are used
In order to eliminate the effect of the decision not
to adopt hedge accounting and to provide a
clearer year-on-year measure The Group
measures foreign currency sales at the actual
exchange rate achieved as a result of settling
foreign exchange contracts from forward cover

Underlying revenue grew by six per cent in 2007
and has grown by exght per cent compound over
the past five years

Underlying profit before financing
Underlying prefit before financing 1s presented on
a basis that shows the economic substance of the
Group's hedging strategies In respect of the
transactional exchange rate and commodity pnice
movements In particular, (a) revenues and costs
denominated in US dollars and Euros are
presented on the basis of the exchange rates
achieved duning the year, (b} simifar adjustments
are made in respect of commodity denvatives,
and {c) consequential adjustments are made to
reflect the impact of exchange rates on trading
assets and habilities and long-term contracts

on a consistent basis The dervation of underlying
profit before financing 1s shown in nate 2 on
page 39 of the consolidated financal statements

Underlying profit before financing grew by 10 per
cent in 2007 and has grown by 22 per cent
compound over the past five years.

Cash flow

In a business requinng significant snvestment, the
Board monitors cash flow to ensure that
profitability 1s converted into cash generation,
both for future investment and as a reward for
shareholders The Group measures cash flow

as the movement in net funds/debt during the
year, after taking into account the value of
denvatives held to hedge the value of balances
denominated In forergn currencies

Research and development

Investment in research and development
underpins all the elements of the Groups strategy
Programme expenditure is monitcred in
conjunction with a gated review process on each
programime and progress Is reviewed at key
milestones

Gross research and development
expenditure

The Group's research and development activities
comprise both self-funded and customer funded
programmes Gross expenditure measures the
total research and development activity and 1san
indicator of the effectiveness of the actions taken
to improve continuously the Groups mtellectual
property

Research and development as a proportion
of underlying sales

Research and development 1s measured as the
self-funded expenditure before both amounts
capitalised in the year and amortisation of
previously capitaiised balances The Group
expects to spend approximately five per cent of
revenues on research and development although
this proportion wall fluctuate year-by-year
depending on the stage of development of
current programmes This measure reflects the
need to generate curient returns as well as to
invest for the future




Capital expenditure

To deliver on 1ts commitments to customers, the
Group Invests significant amounts in its
infrastructure All Investrments are subject 1o
rigorous review to ensure that they are consistent
with forecast actmity and wall prowide value for
money Annual capital expenditure 1s measured as
the cost of property, plant and equipment
acquired dunng the penod

New product launches

As discussed in the Chief Executive’s review on
page 5, the Group has broadened its product
portfolio over the past 20 years. This portfolo

15 subject to continuous review and new
programmes are launched only after ngorous
review, where the business case confirms that the
programme will create sharehelder value

Order book

The arder book provides an indicator of future
business and 1s measured at constant exchange
rates and hist prices and includes both firm and
announced orders In awil aerospace, it 1s common
for a customer to take options for future orders in
addition to firm orders placed Such options are
excluded from the order book. In defence
aerospace, long-term programmes are often
ordered for only one year at a time In such
crcumstances, even though there may be no
alternatve engine chotce available to the
customer, only the contracted business Is
included in the order book. Only the first seven
years'revenue of long-term aftermarket contracts
15 Included

Training expenditure

Training 1s a core elernent of the Group’s
investment in its capabiiity and 1s measured as the
expenditure on the training and development of
employees, customers and suppliers Effectiveness
15 ensured by using a range of external and
internal sources, and by gathering user feedback.

Employee engagement surveys
Regular surveys are undertaken to identify and
address emerging 1ssues

Training and erployee engagement surveys are
discussed further In the corporate responsibility
section of this review

Product cost index

Unit costs are a key determinant of the Group's
ability to deliver its commitments on a profitable
basis The Group monitors the year-on-year
change in the actual average unit product cost of
Its gas turbine operations and seeks over ime to
improve productivity in all owned facibties and
supplers

Engine delivenes

The Group's Installed engine base represents an
opportunity 1o generate future aftermarket
business Within each business segment (except
marnne as its products do not lend themsebves to
this measure due 1o therr diversity), this is
measured as the number of Group products
delivered dunng the year

Underlying services revenue

Underlying services revenug shows the amount of
business dunng the year that has been generated
from the installed engine base This 15 measured as
the revenue denved from spare parts, overhaul
services and long-term senace arrangements

Percentage of fleet under management
Long-term contracts are an iImporiant way of
generating value for customers The percentage of
fleet under management gives a measure of the
praoportion of the installed base where the future
aftermarket arrangements are agreed under
long-term contracts. This 1s measured as the
percentage of gas turbines and submanne
propulsion units where the Group has contracted
a long-term service arrangement In cvil
aerospace, marine and energy, the percentage Is
weighted to reflect the value of the equipment
under management The amounts shown for civil
aerospace for 2003 and 2004 differ from those
disclosed in Annual reports for those years as a
result of reflecting this weighting
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Emissions

Much of the research and development
expenditure 1s focused on reducing ermissions of
the Group’s products.

The Group measures both the ermissions of its
products and the emussions of its manufactunng
operations These measures are descrbed in detail
in the emaronmient report,‘Powenng a betier
world' which 15 available on the Rolls-Royce
website at www rolls-royce com
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Business review continued
Our business continued

Prinapal risks and uncertainties

The Group continues to be exposed to a number
of nsks and has an established, structured
approach to identifying, assessing and managing
those nisks The risk committee has accountability
for the system of nsk management and regularty
reports to the Board on the key nsks facing the
business and the mitigating actions the Group
has put in place to deal with thern The Group has
a consistent strategy and long performance cycles
and consequently the nsks faced by the Group
have not changed significantly aver the past year
The pnincipal nisks reflect the global growth of the
business, and the competitive and challenging
business environment in which it operates Risks
are considered under four broad headings

Business environment nsks

Environmental impact of products and operations
The Group recognises that its activities have an
impact on the environment and the approach
taken 15 to be part of the solution to resclving the
chatlenges faced by cimate change A high
priority 15 gven to responding to the challenge of
reducing the environmental Impact of the Group's
products and business acaviues It 1s recognised
that the solutions are not straightforward and that
novel developments represent both significant
threats and opportunities

Qur Environment report was published in 2007
and shared with key stakeholders This details our
global strategy to address the rnisks and reports on
aur approach to working towards achieving
challenging performance improvernent targets
for noise and carbon dioxade emissions by 2020
Technology acquisition programmes for more
fuel-efficient products form a major part of the
rmanagement of these risks

External events which might affect demand for ar
travel or cause the business to be disrupted

Cwvil aerospace Is an important contributor

to Group revenues and profits The willingness

of passengers to travel by air i1s influenced by a

range of factors, induding economic, health and
security 1ssues. Exposure to this niskis mitigated by
the Group's business strategy, which has enabled
it to develop a broader, global business base, with
the defence, manine and energy businesses being
less susceptible to this type of nisk. In addition,

the cvil aerospace business model, with its
emphasis an Increasing aftermarket services
revenues, continues to be resilient, providing a high
degree of protection against any shortfall in
demand The Group’s ability to respond rapidly to
changes 1n demand through the adjustment of its
cost base 1s a key mitigation

Disruption 10 the Group’s business operations and
the ability to respond to and recover from
disruption, for exampile, from an outbreak of
pandemic flu, 1s recognised as a key element
of, and nisk to, both financial petformance

and the Company’s reputation The Group’s
operations strategy aims to delver world-class
manufactunng capabilities with an increasing
global footprint, providing flexibility and
ability to respond to disruption A Group Crisis
Management framework and plan 1s 1in place
as part of the wider business continuity and
risk management actvities

Strategic nsks

Aftermarket

The Group’s business model s balanced between
ornginal equipment delvery and aftermarket
services The growth in product sales has provided
a larger base from which to generate aftermarket
revenues These continue to contribute over half
of annual sales and are an essential element of the
returns the Group expects to make from 1ts
investments The ability to deliver the operational
service to the satisfaction of its customers while
managing the costs of the service, will determine
the Group's profitability The Group 1s focused
onworking in partnership with all of its global
customers and driving improvement through the
supply chain to provide a high standard

of service to all its customers The Group has made
Investments in service delivery capabilities and
works closely wath its customers to understand
better their requirements, with a continued focus
on standardisation and processes to manage cost

Competitave pressures

The markets in which Rolls-Royce operates

are highly competitive The majonty of its
programmes are long term in nature and access
10 key platforms 1s ¢ritscal to the success of the
business. This requires sustained investrment
intechnelogy, capability and infrastructure,
whuch presents a high barner to entry However,
these factors alone do not protect the Group from
competition, including pricing and techrucal
advances made by competitors which could
adversely affect the Group's results

The Group has developed a balanced business
portfolio and maintained a steady improvement
in operational performance This, together with
the establishrment of long-term customer
relationships and sustained investment in
technology acquisition, allows the Group to
respond to competitive pressure

Financial nsks

These are nisks that anse as a result of movernents
in financial markets. Pincipal nsks are movements
in foreign currency exchange rates, Interest rates,
cemmodity prices and counterparty credit nsk.

A description of these nsks and detarls of
the Group's nsk mitigation actions in this area
are provided in the Finance Director’s review
on pages 2310 27

Operational nsks

Performance of supply chain

Asignficant element of the Group's nsk profile is
the delivery performance of its supply chain The
Group manufactures approximatety 30 per cent
by value of its gas turbine products, the remainder
being provided through external supply chains
Strong growth in order intake has been
expenenced and any falure of the supply chain
would present a risk to the delivery of products to
meet customer requirements and achieve
financial goals The Groups supply chain strategy
Is to seek opportunities to simplify and globalise
the external supply chain by forging deeper,
strategic relationshrps with fewer but stronger
global supphers, working together

on design and rmanufaciure







The Group 1s close to completing the
modernisation of its production facilives, which
will improve productivity and reduce costs
tnvestment in developing world-class
manufactunng processes continues In Asia, North
America and the UK. [n addition, the Group has
an established global business continuity
programme, to manage the nisk of a loss of a
major capability or facility

IT secunty

Continuing globalisation of the business and
advances in technology have resulted in more
data being transmitted across global
communication Iinks, posing an increased security
nsk Secunty systems operate with the latest
technology and Rolls-Royce mantamns effective
communications with other industrial companies
and the appropnate government agencies to share
information on potential threats

Ethics

The Group recognises the benefit that 1s derved
from conducting business in an ethically and
socially responsible manner This approach
extends from the supply of raw maternials and
components to the manufacture and delivery of
end products and services [t apples to the
provision of a safe and healthy place of work and
vestment in technalogies to reduce the
environmental impact of the Group's products
and operations A failure in any of these areas
could damage the Group's reputation and disrupt
is business

The Group s committed to embedding high
ethical standards and a new Global Code of
Business Ethics was issued to all employees
dunng 2007 A traiming and engagement
prograrnme for employees will be completed
duning 2008 1o strengthen ernployee awareness of
the Group’s values. The Group communicates Its
standards to its first-tier supply base through

a supplher code of conduct
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Prograrnme risk

The Group manages complex product
programmes with demanding technical
requirements against strngent customer
schedules This requires the co-ordination

of the external supply chain, manufactunng
operations, partners and engineering funcoions
Failure to achieve programme goals would have
significant financial implications for the Group

The Group employs project management
controls on a routine basis. All major programmes
are subject to Board approval and are regularly
reviewed by the Board with a particutar focus on
any emerging nsks
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Business review continued
Review of operations

Civil aerospace

The cvil aerospace business powers over 30 types
of commeraiat aircraft from business jets to the
largest widebody arrliners A fleet of over 12,000
engines I5 In service

The business has performed strongly, increasing
underlying revenue by three per cent and
underying profit before financing by nine per
cent despite the headwinds of a further
weakening of the US dollar and increased unit
costs Fiying hours continued to grow at
approximately five per cent, with services revenues
representing 63 per cent of undertying sales. The
Rolls-Royce TotalCare® and CorporateCare® service
products were again chosen by the vast majonty
of new operators

The business continued to benefit from its strong
position on new programmes and its broad
portfolio, as orders for new arrcraft and engmes
rose 1o unprecedented levels The total order book
for civil aerospace was £35 9 bilhon, with record
orders for Trent engines in the widehody sector
and for V2500 engines in the single-aisle market

Orders for Trent engines covered all six vanants,
contributing to an overall total of 1,182 Emerging
markets, Including South Amenca, China, Russia
and India, accounted for 17 per cent of Trent
orders while 45 per cent were won In our
established markets in the US, Europe and Asia

Significant milestones were reached by the Trent
engine family this year The Airbus A380
successfully entered service iIn November with
Singapore Airlines, powered by the Trent 900 as s
launch engine In July, the first Boeing 787 was
ralled out with its launch engine, the Trent 1000,
which recerved Federal Aviation Authority and
Joint Awvation Autherity certification as scheduled
in August.

The 787 arcraft will enter service with All Nippon
Aurlines and continues to sell well, with the firm
order book for Trent 1000 engines exceeding 600
engines at the end of 2007

The Trent family continues to attract strong
demand The Trent 15 the only engine currently
available for the Airbus A350XWB, for which
Airbus receved approximately 300 orders during
2007 An upgraded version of the Trent 700 will
enter service In 2009, and dunng 2007, almost

70 per cent of customers who crdered the Airbus
A330 chose the Trent 700, representing business
1o us of US53 8 billton

Civil aerospace - 2007 highlights
Operational highlights

Almost 1,200 Trents ordered in the year covenng all six varants

Trent 900 successfully entered service on the Aisbus A380

Trent 1000 received cerufication on schedule

Dassault selected Rolls-Royce to power 1ts new super mid-sized business jet
11 customers selected the Trent XWB for a total of more than 600 engines

Key financial data 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Underlying revenue £m 4,038 3,907 3,406 3072 2,715

+3% +15% +11% +13% -1%

Underlying profit before financing £m 564 523 441 208 168

+8% +19% +112% +24% -10%

Net assets £m 2,260 1,889 1315 1,257 1338
Other key performance indicators

Crder book £bn 359 200 190 162 144

+80% +5% 7% +13% +14%

Engine delvenes 851 856 881 824 746

Underlying services revenues £m 2,554 2310 2016 1,838 1460

Underlying services revenues % 63 59 59 60 54

% of fleet under management 55 48 45 45 43

International Aero Engines {IAE), in which
Rolls-Rayce 1s a major shareholder, certified its
SelectOne upgrade of the successful V2500
engine on time in December The improved
engine saw ancther record year for new orders,
reflecting the competitive advantage achieved by
its low fuel consumption and maintenance cost
benefits More than 660 IAE V2500 engines were
selected to power over 300 Arbus A320 family
arcraft dunng 2007, including a follow-on order
fiorm US Airways for 78 V2500 powered aircraft

The Group's leadership in the business jet sector
was reinforced by Dassault’s selection of a new
Rofls-Royce engine to power its next generation,
super mid-sized business jet Our business jet
sector continued to perform strongly with almost
400 engines delivered for corporate and regional
applications to Bombardier, Cessna, Embraer and
Gulfstream

In October, the Group announced plans to mnvest
In two significant new facilities to help meet
growth A new facility in Singapore, to be
completed in 2009, will provide Rolls-Royce with a
duaksourcing capability for the assembly and test
of large cmil engines, including future new
versions of the Trent engine In addition, a new
facility in Virginia, US, will assemble and test the
new engine for the Dassault programme




Defence aerospace

The defence aerospace business has over
20000 engines in service and 1s Europe’s
largest aero-engine manufacturer in the
defence sector We power aircraft in all the
major categories including transport,
helicopters, trainers, combat, tactical and
unmanned aenal vehicles

2007 marked another year of progress in all
sectors E1200 engine business and support for the
fleet of 72 Eurofighter Typhoon awcraft for the
Royal Saudi Air Force will be worth up to £1 billon
to Rolls-Royce We are the prime contractor for
EJ200 on behalf of the Eurgjet consortium

The F136 engine, which we are jomtly developing
with GE 1o power the F-35 Lightning i, has been
fully funded for 2008 by the US Department of
Defense (DoD) at US$480 million The engine
continues to perform exceptionally well in both
testing and milestone delvery The LiftSystem for
the STOVL vanant of the F-35 has been installed in
the aircraft and 15 expected to make its first fight
n the first half of 2008

The selection of the AE 2100-powered C-27) for
the Joint Cargo Aurcraft programme in the US
further enhanced the Group's position as the
leader In the transport aircraft engine market The
supply of the engines and aftermarket services 15
worth more than US5500 millien over the Iife of
the programme For the collzborative TP400
engine programme, a challenging year
culminated in the delvery of the first engine

for the flight test programme Incremental
development costs of £40 million assocated with
the programme have been provided for in the
year

In the tactical sector, the Advanced Hawkeye
programme, with the TS6-A-427A powered E-20
anrcraft, achieved its first fight in August 2007 The
programme has a potentiat contract value of
US$500 million Initial preduction for the
programme commences in 2008

The launch of the RR300 engine represents a
major step forward in the helicopter sector with
the engine providing 300 shaft horsepower at
take off excellent hot and high performance and
outstanding value Federal Aviation Authonty type
certficabon was achieved ahead of schedule in
Decemnber 2007, with full-rate production to
follow in 2008 Under the agreement with
Robinson Helicopter, Rolls-Royce will provide
several hundred RR300 engines m forthcoming
years Elsewhere in the helicopter sector, addiional
RTM322 orders were secured from Belgium and
Australia, while the T800 was selected by Turkey to
power the ATAK helicopter
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Defence aerospace - 2007 highlights

Operational highlights

£J200 engine and support contract signed for Royal Saudi Arr Force Eurofighter Typhoon aircraft

F136 programme receved US$480 million development funding for 2008
Rolls-Royce selected as propulsion system prowvider for the US forces Joint Cargo Aircraft programme

V-22 Osprey engine contract for US$700 million gained

RR300 launched to power the Robinson R66
Service contracts worth over US$500 million signed

Key financial data 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Underlying revenue £m 1,673 1,601 1420 1,374 1,398

+4% +13% +3% -29% +2%

Underlying profit before financing £fm 199 195 175 179 147

+2% +11% 2% +22% -20%

Net assets £fm (247) (83) {56) {48} 81
Other key performance indicators

Order book £bn 44 32 33 33 27

+38% -3% 0% +22% +4%

Engine deliveries 495 514 565 548 510

Underlying services revenues £m 877 853 787 768 789

Underlying services revenues % 52 53 55 56 56

% of fleet under management n 11 8 5 5

2007 marked a significant year for the

AE 1107C-Liberty engine with the award of a
five-year production contract from the US DaD
worth US$700 rmullion for the V-22 Osprey ultrotor
arcraft

Aftermarket support continued to develop, both
In terms of new contracts and the scope of
services being offered to customers Rolls-Royce
signed its first contract with the US Arr Force to
support its fleet of AE 2100 engines on the C-130)
ancraft, worth US$235 millon Adour engine
support contracts were also signed with the

LS Navy and the UK Ministry of Defence (MoD)

A Memarandum of Understanding was signed
with BAE Systems to work together to improve
support to the UK MoD and other worldwide
custormexs, bullding on two successful availability
contracts for the UK's RB199-powered Tornado
fleet
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Marine

Rolls-Royce provides a range of capabiliies and
expertise In the marine sector for naval surface
ships, submarines, offshore and merchant vessels
The business has installed equipment on over
20,000 vessels, ncluding those of 70 navies

The manne business has enjoyed another
successful year with a strong Increase i sales and
good order book growth Key sectors of the
business saw record order intakes, and we made
progress on some Important new manne
programmes

The offshare sector performed strongly duning the
year In June 2007, we announced an £83 million
contract to deliver designs and equipment for six
new Rolls-Royce offshore service vessels to
Nerdcapital, which will be operated on therr
behalf by OSM Schiffahrt This 1s the largest single
marne offshore contract ever won by Rolls-Rayce
In December 2007, a £72 million contract was
signed with the same company covenng a further
four ships taking the total to £155 million

Our merchant sector also contracted major
new business We signed our largest contract
so far with Chinese shipbuilder Sinopacific,

to provide steertng gear and deck machinery
worth US$42 million The order marked a record
year in Ching for the merchant sector with
contracts for more than 700 ship sets of steenng
gear and 300 ship sets of deck machinery
China now presents the biggest single market
oppoertunity for Rolls-Royce equipment in
commercial merchant ships

In the naval business, a major milestone was
achieved when Rolis-Royce was seiected to
supply the US Navy's most advanced surface
combatant ship with the world’s mast powerful
marine gas turbine Four MT30 gas turbine
generator sets are being supplied to power
two DDG-1000 Zurnwalt Class destroyers,
with deliveries to begin in 2009 Also In

North Amenca, the US naval architecture and
engineenng firm, Seaworthy Systems Inc, was
acquired and added to the marne partfolio to
boost support services Its work Is now part

of a TotalCare service Rolls-Royce 1s developing
for naval customers, offering long-term
guaranteed power avallability and complete
propulsion plant support for ships.

Marine - 2007 highlights

Operational highlights

Largest ever order won by the offshore sector at £155 million
New service centres announced for Singapore, Rio de Janeiro, Mumbal, Galveston,

Fort Lauderdale and Rotterdam

MT30 selected by the US Navy to power two DDG-1000 desiroyers
£1 bilhon service contract won for Royal Navy nuclear power plants for the UK’ submanne fleet

Key financial data 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Underlying revenue £m 1,548 1,299 1,097 963 1003
+19% +18% +14% -4% +2%
Underlying profit before financing £m 113 102 87 78 78
+11% +17% +129% 0% -5%
Net assets £m 508 543 585 523 554
Other key performance indicators
Order book £bn 4.7 24 17 14 12
+96% +41% +21% +7% &%
Underlying services revenues £m 545 487 435 397 380
Underlying services revenues % 35 37 40 41 38
% of fleet under management 33 3 3 0 0

Aninnovative 10-year contract with the

UK MoD worth £1 billion was secured for
Rolls-Royce to manage the support of the reactor
powerplants of the Royal Navy's nuclear
submarine fleet Rolls-Royce and the UK MoD
formed a joint tearm setting agreed service levels,
and both parties are now sharing the savings
made through improved business efficency and
effectiveness

The business has been undertaking a review

of the efficiency of our supply cham in 2007

in order to meet the challenge of higher levels of
production actnaty

Marine 1s creating a fully integrated global
operations business which will help realise
economies of scate, mprove efficiency and
thereby reduce the unit cost of production This1s
being achieved through improvernents in
manufacturing plant and production faalities
which are amed at buikding capacity to respond
to our existing workload and manage greater
volumes in the future

A goad example 1s the £14 mullion investment in
our diesels facility in Bergen, Norway, where we
are installing state-of-the-art machining
equipment which will significantly improve levels
of production

Cur large base of nstalled equipment provides a
platform from which to grow our services
business To meet this global oppertunity we are
upgrading our senvice faciliies in places as diverse
as Singapore, Rio de Janero, Mumbay, Galveston,
Fort Lauderdale and Rotterdam and, at the same
time, recruiting more service engineers to provide
better customer service




Energy

The energy business has customers in over
120 countnes. It 1s a leading supplier of power
systems to the oif and gas industries and has a
growing presence in the electncal power
generation sector

In 2007, the energy business won a record
number of contracts In both the o & gas
and power generation sectors Services also
had a strong year and now accounts for over
50 per cent of total sales

With record demand drving a strong ol and gas
market, we continued to expand our global
footpnnt with orders from customers in the
Armencas, Europe, the Middle East and Asia

The Caspian region proved particularly actrve
In Azerbayan, the energy business secured

its largest single contract to date, a TotalCare
service agreement with British Petroleurn (BP)
worth £120 million for the maintenance of
28 industrial RB211 gas turbines operating

onshore and offshore As part of our strateqgy to work

more closely with customers, this contract will be
managed from our service centre In Baku We also
waon our first order for the installation of RB211
units in Turkmenistan This order continues the
expansion of our footpnnt In the central
Asia/Caspian region

Our growing presence in the power generation
sector continues. Momentum is building as

the industrial Trent attracts a broader customer
base, particufarly In a recovenng North Amertcan
market In 2007, we receved a record number

of orders far the industrial Trent, including five
units for 1nstallation 1n the US Commitments were
also received from custorners In South Amenica,
Europe and Australia

We continue to focus on becoming a serice
solutions provider, with the services segment
having doubled its order intake over the past
three years We now have dedicated customer
service centres in Scotland, Brazil and Azerbayan,
with plans under way for an additional site in West
Africa These centres position the skills and
knowledge of our services team closer to cur
customers

Energy - 2007 highlights
Operational highhghts
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Record orders received totalling £856 million
Services now represent 52 per cent of sales

Largest ever order won at £120 milion for mantaining RB211s for BP

Record number of contracts for the industrial Trent

Avon 200 upgrade well received by market in first year

Key financial data 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Underlying revenue £m 558 546 535 538 529

+2% +2% ~1% 2% -17%

Underlying profit/loss) before financing £m 5 (18) (1) 7 (18

+128% -1700% +86% +51% +80%

Net assets £m 346 355 353 395 546
Cther key performance indicators

Order book £bn 0.9 05 04 04 04

+80% +25% 0% 0% -33%

Engine deliveries 32 44 61 47 54

Underlying services revenues £m 289 251 219 248 214

Underlying services revenues % 52 46 41 46 40

9% of fleet under management 7 6 5 5 4

Our product upgrades business also delivered

a record year Demonstrating our commitment 1o
the existing Rolls-Royce installed gas turbine fleet,
this business applies new technology into existing
products to extend therr service Iife by enhancing
power and performance Of particular note 1s our
Aven 200 programme, which provides Avan gas
turbine users with increased efficiency and power
for ther installed units The market response to
this programme has been extremely positive,
with orders for 19 unit upgrades recened

In the first year
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Engineering and Technology

In 2007, Rolls-Royce nvested a total of

£824 million in research and development, of
which £454 million was funded from Group
resources The net charge to the income
statement was £381 million

Over the past year, we have continued investing
in technology demonstration programmes aimed
at reducing the environmental impact of our
products The seven year European ‘Clean Sky’
Jont Technology Inmiative has now been
successfully launched wath Rolls-Royce leading
three of the five engine demonstrator
programmes. This European initiative 1S aiming to
reduce radically the impact of ¢ivik aviation on the
environment

In the UK, we are members of the newly formed
Energy Technologies institute (ETH) whose remit s
to Invest In research and development o
accelerate the development of secure, reliable
and cost-effecive low-carbon energy
technologies towards commercial deployment
We have also successfully been awarded funding
from the UK Government'’s Technology Strategy
Board for a number of low carbon/renewable
projects

Development of the innovative Rolls-Royce fuel
cell system continues This technology will deliver
significant reductions in carbon dicxide with
negligible oxides of nitrogen emussions relative to
existing fossil fuel power generation technology

In 2007, we continued the expansion of our
global network of University Technology Centres
(UTCs} with two new UTCs at the University of
Bristol, to focus on composite matenals and at
Karlsruhe in Germany, to focus on cooling in
turbines and combustors We also launched a
new Advanced Research Centre to develop
forming technologies with industry partners and
Strathclyde University

Bullding on our research successes of previous
years we filed a record 400 patent applications.

Engineering and Technology - 2007 highlights

Operational lnghlights

The Trent 1000, V2500 SelectOne and RR300 helicopter engine all achieved certification on plan
The JSF LiftFan completed ground testing pror to first fight

The revolutionary Rim Driven Tunnel Thruster started sea trials

Two new University Technology Centres and an Advanced Research Centre were opened

A record 400 patent applications were submitted

US5315 million of contracts receved for US Ar Force work an advanced propulsion concepts

Key performance indicators 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Gross research and development

expenditure fm 824 747 €63 601 619
Net research and development

expenditure £m 454 395 339 282 281
Net research and development

charge £m 381 370 282 288 281
Net research and development

expenditure % of underlying revenue 58 54 52 47 50

The US Air Force laboratory awarded Rolls-Royce
wo contracts within the Versatlle Affordable
Advanced Turbine Engines (VAATE) programme
with a total value of US$315 miflion The
Adaptive Versatile Engine Technology (ADVENT)
programme will demanstrate adaptive cycles
technologies, while the Highly Efficient
Embedded Turbine Engine (HEETE) will develop
high-pressure ratio compressor and high
temperature cycles technologies

In the defence sector, the LiftFan for the Joint
Strike Fighter completed ground testing pnor
to s flight testin 2008 The T56-A427A engine
for the E-2D Advanced Hawkeye successfully
started flight-testing This latest version of the
T56 family Incorporates a new sensor suite plus
state-of-the-art integrated electronic propulsion
system control, monitoring, and maintenance
systern The new RR300 helicopter engine was
certified ahead of schedule and 15 now
undergoing flight testing

In the cvil aetospace sector, the Trent 1000
achieved certification on schedule in August and
successfully completed a flight test programme
on the Rolls-Royce Fiying Test Bed The V2500
SelectOne engine, which offers improved fuel
consumption and fower life-cycle costs was also
certified

In the marine propulsion sector, we have started
sea tnals of a full-scale prototype of the Rim
Driven Tunnel Thruster, which delivers a step
change in technology for tunnel thrusters

and dynamic positioning The new lean-burn
Bergen KV gas reciprocated engine made s entry
INto service, setting new standards in low
emissions for commercial manne applications

In 2007, the WR-21-powered Royal Navy Type 45
destroyer completed inttial sea tnals The WR-2115
developed from the RB211 aerc engtne and
features an advanced intercooled recuperated
cycle that makes it the world's most efficient
marine gas turbine




Operations

The supply chain in 2007 continued to evolve,
meeting strong demand from all markets and
managing the introduction of several new
products

A mixture of maternal costs, factory disruption and
supplier pressures all contributed to a unit cost
increase in the year of almaost seven per cent

The Trent 900 production kne was successfully
restarted and the engine’s application, the Airbus
A380, entered service successfully The Trent 1000
engine for the Boeing 787 entered production
Boeing’s decision to re-schedule the entry into
service of the 787 means that we will re-plan
production of the engine in line with the
requirements of the aircraft programme

Otber new products entering production include
the V25005elect upgrade, TP400, RR300 and
WR-21

As part of managing the introduction of a
number of new programmes we maintained our
focus on simplifying our supply chain, resulting in
a reduction in the number of external suppliers.

The drive to improve our productivity contmued
with the final exit from our older UK factories and
with the introduction of our planning system to
more of our faciliies Our SAP systern has now
been embedded in 32 sites, and was Introduced
in 2007 to sites in the US, Canada and the UK The
smooth and guick implementation of SAP nto
our new repair and overhaut joint venture in
Germany, N3, also took place

Moadern Working Practices were fully embedded
in all our operational facilities in the UK, ncluding
awvil aerospace assembly and test

Qur Process Excellence programme continued to
supply both wide scale and local improvements,
complementing the benefits from our major
process systems such as SAP and PLM

Worldwide, our engineers can now work
simultaneously on the same live computer model,
improving lead times and productivity as a result
of upgrading key engineering design tools such
as PLM
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Operational highlights
Trent 900 production line successfully restarted
V2500 SelectOne, TP400, RR300 and WR-21 all entered production
New facilibes opened in Derby and Brstol
New outdgor test facility commissioned in Mississipp!
Future assembly plants in US and Singapore announced
Key performance indicators 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Capital expenditure £m 304 303 232 191 186
Product cost index — year-on-year
(Increase)/decrease % (7} (5) 0 5 4
Sales per employee {£K) 193 192 186 169 156

The availability of these and other improved
systems and processes will allow us to reduce the
number of employees N management and
support roles by 2,300 worldwide We continue to
recruit graduates, apprentices and employees
nvohved directly in delivering growth for the
Group Consequently the overall productiaty will
improve through 2008

Our plans to become more productive, global and
less exposed to the volatility of the US dollar
exchange rate have continued There were several
faciiues opened around the world including the
new Rotatives plant and a new test bed for large
ovil engines in Derby, UK, and a new facility in
Brstol, UK. Our outdoor test facility in Mississipps,
US, was also commissioned

We selected the locations for two new faciliies,
one In Asiz and the other in the US Our new
advanced assembly and test plant for Trent
engines will be built in Singapore and n Virginia
we will build a new manufactunng plant for the
assembly and test of the RB282 engine Both
facilities wall be operatonal by the end of 2008

We entered 2008 with an increase in load and we
have wvisitality of load over several years as a result
of our strong order bock Raw materials have
been secured and strategic hedging 15 1n place to
manage supply and cost nisks

The increase in load, allied to our supply chain
simplification and improvement, gives us an
oppoartunity to continue cost reduction and 10
reduce further our exposure to the US dollar
Continuing investment in [T, faciliies, processes
and people will allow us to grow our business and
better manage the cost of overheads

We would like to thank all employees, suppliers
and partriers for their coremitment dunng
the year
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Business review cantinued
Review of operations continued

Services

The Group's underlying service revenues
centinued to grow strongly 1In 2007, increasing
nine per cent to £4.3 billion Services account for
55 per cent of Group revenues, with long-term
TotalCare agreements now representing the
majornty of our business in the avil aerospace
sector

Qur services range from the prowsion of field
support, shop maintenance and logistics solutions
to data managernent and engine leasing,
delivered through a global network of service
providers, wholly owned, and joint venture
facities Rolls-Royce and jont venture faciities
employ over 8,000 people with major locations in
the UK, Europe, the Amencas and Asia The service
delivery orgarisations are managed through our
operations centres which plan the flow of work
and manage the day-to-day actvities

Our relationships with our customers are at

the heart of our services strategy TotalCare, our
preferred contracting model, aligns our interests
with those of our customers and provides an
incentive for Rolls-Royce to buld and drive
improvement In the services supply chain

We frequently work closely with our customers in
bullding service delivery capability and we have
recorded a number of rmilestones this year HAESL,
our joint venture in Hong Kong with HAECO of
the Swire Group, celebrated its tenth year of
operations and the opening of its latest facility
extension in December 2007, SAESL, our joint
venture with Singapore Ailines, delivered its
500th engine, and TAESL, our joint venture with
Amencan Aurfines, its 1,500th engne We continue
to burld on this successful mode! and N3, which 1s
a joint venture with Lufthansa Technik in Germany,
and our newest repair and overhaul centre,
opened for business in March 2007

One of the ways we measure our progress in
implementing our service strategy Is by reference
to the percentage of the mstailed base of
defivered engines subject to TotalCare or similar
agreements During 2007, Singapore Airlines and
Emirates converted therr Trent senice contracts to
TotalCare Such decisions and delivenes of new
engines subject 1o TotalCare have iIncreased the
ovil engine fleet under management to 55 per
cent, up from 48 per cent last year This trend 15 set
to continue, with 77 per cent of future Trent civil
deliveries subject to TotalCare agreements.

Services — 2007 highlights
Operational highhghts

Service revenues increased nine per cent to £4,265 million

55 per cent of civil fleet under TotalCare

HAESL celebrates tenth year of operation and expands s operations
N3, our Trent overhaul centre in Germany, opened on time

£1 bilbion ten year submarine support contract with UK MoD
TotalCare agreement with BP for RB211s in Azerbayan

Key performance indicators 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Underlying services revenue £m 4,265 3901 3457 3251 2843
Underlying senvices revenue % 55 53 54 55 50

In our other sectors the penetration of

TotalCare 15 lower but we continue to record
significant wins The UK MoD and US DoD

are committed 10 through-life contracting

as the means by which they intend to secure
service support from industry Of parucular

note last year was the award by the UKMoD of a
£1 bilhon contract coverng the support of
powerplant systerns for the UK’ nuclear
submarnnes

In the energy sector, BP has entered into a second
TotzlCare contract Followtng on from the success
of the North Sea contract, Rolls-Royce will now
manage the 28 RB211s operated by 8P in
Azerbayan

We continue to invest in upgrading and
expanding our service capability During 2007, we
opened an Operations Centre in Dahlewitz,
Germany, to support our corporate and regional
aircraft operators and a new flow line i Ansty, UK,
to repair RB199 and EJ200 modules We also
implemented a new spare parts forecasting
system

Standardised tools and processes are one of the
ways In which we seek to control costs We are
deploying SAP across the repar and overhaul
network, successfully migrating our parts service
centres, Rolls-Royce Canada and N3 to our global
template dunng 2007

In the marine sector, new service workshops have
been opened and we acquired Seaworthy
Systems tnc. to enable us to develop a new
TotalCare service for naval customners, which will
guarantee complete propulsion plant support
and power availability




Corporate responsibility

The business case for

corporate responsibility

Corporate responsibility s a fundamental part of
the Group's business strategy It is not conducted
as a separate and self-contained actvity, but 1s
integral to the business This is because we see
corporate responsibility as making a key
contribution to the success of Rolls-Royce In the
markets in which we operate We belteve that
conducting business in an ethical and respensible
way bnngs us compentive advantage, because it
helps us to

- attract and retain the best people,

- build goodwill and maintan successful
working refationships with customers,
supplers and governments, and

- support the global communities in
which our employees ive and work,

The Groups values of reliability, integrity and
innavation are embedded in our Global Code of
Business Ethics This provides a framework for our
stakehelder relationships worldwide, the strength
of which helps to shape the Group's reputation

With around 39,500 employees in 50 countries,
our strongest contribution to society is the wealth
generated by the thousands of highly skilled jobs
we provide worldwide

Governance

Each area of corporate responstbility has its own
governance process of managing committee, and
each 1s led by a member of the Board or Group
Executive These include

- the Environmental Counail, charred by the
Director — Engineering and Technology,

- the HS&E committee, chaired by the
Chuef Executive,

- the Glebal Council, charred by the
Dwrector - Hurman Resources, 2nd

- the Group Community Investment and
Sponsorship committee, chared by the
Chuef Executve

Indnadual subject matter expertise 1s reviewed by
the Corporate Responsibility Steenng Group,
which reports regularly to the Board This group
compnses the Director — Hurman Resources,
Director of Public Affairs, Director of Risk, the
General Counsel and Company Secretary In
addrtion, the corporate responsibility risk register
uses the Company nsk process to identify the
potential nsks and cpportunities, as well as
mitigation plans to address these nsks Additional
information can be found in the Principal nsks and
uncertainties section on pages 1¢and 11

External recognition

Ralls-Royce 15 ranked 1n a number of external
indexes which benchmark corporate
responsibility performance During 2007, we
retained our position In both the Dow Jones
World and European Sustainability Indexes and
retaned our Plabnum position in Business in the
Community’s voluntary Corporate Responsibility
and Business in the Environment Indexes

Rolls-Royce has a long history of being a
responsible business In the coming years the
world will continue to change, along with the
needs and expectations of all of cur stakehalders
We are commutted to build on our track record
and our obligation to continue to behave
responsibly
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Health, safety and the environment
(HS&E)

Performance against targets

The Group believes that good HS&E performance
Is synonymous with good business performance
Qur stated vision 15 10 be recognised widely for
the excellence of our HS&E performance To
achieve that vision we continue to implement
robust processes In order to deliver against a
number of key objectives by the end of 2009
These are detaled in our report 'Responsible
Operations, publshed in April 2007

In summary, our 2007-2009 objectives are to

Protect health

-10%
Target: Reduce the incident rate of
occupational diseases and other work-related

il health by ten per cent by the end of 2009

Prevent injury

-15%
Target Achieve a 15 per cent reduction in the

lost-time injury rate (over one day) by the
end of 2009

Reduce environmental impact

-10%
Target 1. Achieve a ten per ¢ent reduction

in energy consumed (normahsed by financial
revenues) by the end of 2009

-10%
Target 2: Achieve a ten per cent reduction in
sohd waste (normalised by financial

revenues) by the end of 2009

58%

Target3 Achweve a 58 per cent recycle rate
of solid waste by the end of 2009

We will report on progress against these
objectives in Apni 2008
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To ensure that we continue to make rapid
progress, we have updated our HS&E training for
altemployees and developed targeted training
plans across our businesses These are being
mplemented currently, with nisk management
training completed dunng 2007 as part of this
programme

All the Group's businesses have third party
certfication to the environmental management
system standard SO 14001, and cur
comprehenstve Corporate HS&E audit
programme assesses the implementation of the
HS&E management system across all businesses
on a rolling audit basis This year, audrts took place
in the UK and US, across our cml aerospace,
energy, fuel cells, manne services and submannes
businesses, and the combustions and casings,
component services and turbine systems supply
chain units Audit reviews were also undertaken at
four sites on the management and effective
control of major hazards as part of an ongoing
programme

We operate three sites In the UK which

together manufacture, test and support nuclear
reactor cores for Royal Navy submarnnes The
Company Nuclear Propulsion Assurance
Committee monitors the performance of

these sttes regularly to ensure that the highest
standards of health and safety are maintained and
processes are robust and fit for purpose

Qur annual Company HS&E awards recognise
outstanding initiatives and Improvements
worldwide This year's winners were the

Cwvil Aerospace Customer Delivery Centre for
state-of-the-art equipment to allow colleagues to
work safely on an engine at any height. Six safety
performance certificates were awarded 1o sites
achieving a full year with no lost-time injury
inaidents In addition, nine sites each achieved
over one million man hours lost-time injury free

The Group's contribution to developing best
practice through third party collaboration
continues to grow We are taking a leading
industry role in REACH, the latest EU chemicals
regulation, and have apponted a REACH
executive dedicated to this programme
during 2008

We are working closely with other campanies,
trade bodies, sectors and regulators in preparing
for the iImplementation of REACH Efforts have
been focused on raising awareness within our
manufacturing operations and supply chains, in
order that appropniate arrangernents for
compliance and business continuity, and the
targeting of any future ‘substances of very high
concern;, are introduced well ahead of deadhines
Within the aviation sector, we are helping to
develop international standards for the
dedaration of substances in ‘articles’ supphied to us
to facilitate future REACH compliance and, where
required, substituhon programmes

We continue to take part in the UK's voluntary
carbon dioxide emissions trading scheme and the
Chicago Climate Exchange Programmes we have
implemented to reduce carbon dioxide emissions
include an initiative at Inchinnan, Scotland, where
a reduction in furnace temperatures will reduce
annual emissions by arcund 1,200 tonnes of
carbon dioxide and will achieve cost savings of
£140,000 a year

Envtronment: technology

and chmate change

Rolls-Royce believes that technology, applied on
an industrial scale, hes at the heart of society’s
response to climate change

The scale of this challenge should not be
underesimated The development and
apphication of such technologtes 15, In itself, a
formidable task, and must be accompanied by a
step change in consumer behaviour We are
committed to applying our science and
engineenng skills to help overcome the
challenges

The Group 15 1n @ urique position to address these
difficult 1ssues, due to 1ts long history of
optmising the environmental performance of its
products For example, since the 1950s our
engmeenng expertise has helped to reduce
aircraft noise by 75 per cent and fuel burn by

70 per cent on a passenger per kilometre basis
We are therefore well placed to contnibute 1o the
search for technological solutions to cimate
change

In 2007, Rolls-Royce was announced as the
leading member of the Environmentally Friendly
Engine programme, a UK government and
Industry Initiative to develop technologies which
will halve the amount of aviation fuel used per
passenger The Group was also awarded a
contract by the US Arr Force Research Laboratory
to develop a technology demonstrator for
high-thrust, reduced fuel consumption military
aerospace platforms We also continue to play

a leading rale In aiming to acheve, by 2020, the
environmental goals set by the Adwvisory Council
for Aeronautics Research in Europe (ACARE) The
ACARE targets, which are broadly in line with the
US research goals set by NASA, are to reduce
carbon dixde emissions by 50 per cent per
passenger kilometre, noise by50 per cent and
NOx by 80 per cent, all from a 2000 baseline

The drive to improve our products’environmental
performance spans all of our businesses. For
example, In the marine sector our latest Bergen K
gas enging, which 15 certified to power the world’s
first major car and passenger fernes running on
hquefied natural gas, produces up to 90 per cent
less NOx and 20 per cent less carbon dioxide than
tradional diesel engines

The Group 1s developing megawatt-scale, solid
oxde fuel cell systems that will deliver significant
reduction in carbon dioxide emisstons, relative to
existing fossil fuel power generation A 250
kilowatt unit 1s planned to be tested in 2008
Cther product developments include explonng
the feasibility of renewable power sources, such as
tidal stream and offshore wind

The Group published ‘Powering a better world,
a report on the environmental performance
of our products and our Group, in Apnl 2007
This 1s avaitable on the Rolls-Royce website at
www rolls-royce com




Employees
At the end of 2007, Rolls-Royce employed 39,529
permanent staff In over 50 countries

The long Iife cycle associated with the Group's
products makes It imperative that we have a
skalled workforce which 1s committed to delvering
excellence to customers over the long term To
achieve this, we aim {o Create a working
environment that attracts and retains the best
people, enhances therr flexibility, capability and
motivation and encourages them to be involved,
resulting In improving performance

Upholding our values

Dunng the year we launched the Rolis-Royce
Global Code of Business Ethics This sets out
principles and guidelines concerning interaction
with our stakeholders The Code 1s avallable

In 16 languages and s distnbution 1s being
supported by a Group-wide training programme
which 15 being rolled out in 2008

Engaging employees

In 2005, we formed a Global Council to improve
consultation and employee engagement

This meets twice a year and involves over 40
employee representatives from around the world
plus seruor managers from each business and
function In 2007, full Council meetings were held
in Indianapolis, US and Bnstol, UK and included
consulration on global policy implementation

The year saw the launch of the Strategy
Storyboard, an interactive Group-wide briefing
on corporate strategy and performance, which
was delivered via facilitated sessions to all
employees worldwide

The bi-annual Global Employee Engagement
Survey, which walt next be conducted in 2008,
provides valuable feedback on which we

actin consultation with employees and their
representatives Response to the survey results 1s
handled locally by the Group's businesses through
action planning and feedback sessions

Rolls-Royce provides competitive pay and benefits
in all s locations and actively encourages share
ownership by offening ShareSave plans to all
employees. Our employees currently comrmit
around £105 million to these plans In the UK,
statutory arrangements enable employees to
receve part of thesr annual bonus in shares and to
make monthly share purchases from therr salary

Encouraging diversity

The Group 15 committed to developing a diverse
workforce and equal opportunities for all, with a
Global Diversity Steenng Group that shapes
diversity policies One example of our approach
focuses on encouraging more women and
people from minonty backgrounds to pursue
eNgINeenng Careers

In Asia, we made good progress In attracting
leadership talent through the Asian Future
Leaders Programme, attracting several high
calibre early to mid-career managers to
Rolls-Royce A nurber of senior managers were
also recrurted locally into key roles Together they
will form the nucleus of the Group's evoiving
regional senior management tearm

The third Women's Leadership Forum was held 1n
North Amenica and the UK Women’s Network was
fully established

Our policy 1s to provide, wherever possible,
employment taining and development
opportunities for disabled people We are
committed to supporting employees who
become disabled and to helping disabled
employees make the best possible use of their
skills and potential

Learning and development

The Group reviewed Its learning and
development strategy in 2007, realigning Its
training provision 1o global business prionties with
the help of new Governance Boards which are
now accountable for training standards
worldwide This acivity was strengthened with
the selection of new supplier partners in the UK,
North America and Asta to ensure consistency
and the highest possible standards

Expenditure on the education, training and
professional development of employees during
the year totalled around £30 million Traimung
schemes to support future competitiveness

are developed continually Our quality
programmes, for example, were deployed globally
to ensure consistent performance standards
across the Group During the year, we again
increased our use of online learning, delivering
over 50,000 hours of training 1o over 11,000 users
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Dunng 2007, we recrurted 166 graduates and
220 apprentices and techrmicians worldwide

An additional 642 undergraduate students were
employed for short-term training programmes of
two months to a year's duration At the end of
the year there were 323 graduates and 550
apprentices and technicians on formal traning
programmes worldwide As a measure of our
dedication to graduate training, we were ranked
24th overall in The Times newspaper's Top 100
Graduate Employers of 2007, coming 2nd in

the Engineenng sector

We also continued to invest in customer training,
an important factor in strengthening our
competitive position, delivenng over

21,500 person days of traming in our dedicated
facilities or at customers’own premises

Health and wellbeing

The pamary objective of the Group’s occupational
health strategy 1s to create a culture of prevention

rather than cure The strategy has four key areas of
focus

- screening and surveillance,
rehabilitation,

- health promotion, and

~ education

Progress aganst our screening and surverllance
targets will be reported in Apnl 2008 A Health Risk
assessment pilot programme to identsfy and work
with people at risk was launched in 2007 among
employees in operations functions in the UK and
will run until mid 2008

The impertance of managing rehabilitation
effectively was reinforced dunng the year with an
ongoing training programme New training
modules were also launched to help managers
assess ther own understanding and delivery

of occupational health principles

A major health promotion campaign, Know Your
Numbers, was held dunng the year, providing
waorkstations where nearly 2,000 employees
measured their vital health staustics such as blood
pressure, weight and blood cholesterol An
‘owners handbook’ health manual will be 1ssued
to all employees in 2008

The Group continued to promote best practice n
health education by hosting a major conference
on common health problems Leading experts
spoke to an audience of employees about the
importance of maintaining a healthy worlforce
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Society

Supphers

The Group sets and manages Its ngorous
performance standards for suppliers through
its quality systermn, Supplier Advanced Business
Relationships (SABRe} This includes a supplier
code of conduct, which 1s complemented

by the Group's purchasing code of conduct
that ensures suppliers and employees work
together consistently

As outhned in previous reperts, the Group seeks
to foster productive supplier refationships which

- delver mutual business benefits,

- minimise the environmental impact
of business operations,

- encourage the highest standards of
ethical behaviour, and

- promote human nghts

In 2007, we introduced an assessment of current
and potential suppliers which includes a focus on
therr approach towards corporate responsibility,
in partcular therr policies and thetr approach

to HS&E

The establishment of local purchasing offices
continues globally, with a new office opened in
South East Asia Training of suppliers and the
sharing of best practice, with an emphasis on lean’
techniques and waste elimination, have resulted
In productvity iImprovemnents among some
supphers of up to 40 per cent

A number of actmues are helping to minirmise
environmental impacts An active programme

to encourage supplers to adopt the
environmental standard 150 14001 continued

In 2007, along with guidance and support to help
them achieve certfication

The e-business systerm, Exostar, has encouraged
virtual teamworking between the Group and 1ts
supplers, significantly reducing the need to travel
In addition, a dnve to ‘revert’- the equivalent of
raw materials recychng — has resulted in an
average of 83 per cent achieved globally

Local spurcing policies reflect government
regulatians, such as in the US where parucular
rules towards working with small and
disadvantaged businesses apply

Community iInvestment

The Group has a longstanding commitment

to suppoerting its local communities Community
Investment Is an intrinsic part of the way we do
business, supporting the Groups strategy and
future success, particularly in the areas of

- recruitment and retention of employees,
particularly by investing in the science
skills we need,

- employee engagement, by encouraging
a sense of loyalty and pnde and motivation
about our organisation,

~  development of professional and personal
skills such as teamwork, leadership,
adaptability and ethical behawviour, and

—~  reputation, by bulding proactive and
mutually beneficial relationships in
the communities in which we operate

During 2007, we conducted our fourth global
survey of cammunity contributions, including
cash, employee time and gifts in kind, using the
London Benchmarking Group model The Group's
total contnbutions across all these areas
amounted to approximately £66 million

Donations and sponsorship

The Group's chantable donations policy 1s

to directly support causes primarily relating to
educational, engmeering and saentific
objectives, as well as socral objectives
connected with the Group’s business and place
in the wider community’ The Group’s charitable
donations amounted to £1 8 million, of which
£1 1 million were made in the UK These included
support for The Prince’s Trust, Community
Foundations and Duxford Airspace Elsewhere
Rolls-Royce made chantable donations in other
key regions of £700,000, with £267,000 donated
in North Amernica, including support for the
work of United Way, £144,000 in Germany and
£289,000 in other regions

A further £2 5 million was contnbuted in
sponsorships and educational programmes,
including support for the Smithsorian National
Arr and Space Museumn in North Amenca, the
Brandenberg Summer Festival in Germany and
the London Symphony Crchestra tour of China

The Group has a stated policy of working
closely with governments and institutions to
highlight the many career opportunties that
science and engineenng can offer

Cur flagship programme, the Rolls-Royce Science
Prize, recognises excellent and innovative science
teaching in the UK and Northern irefand This
year's winner, St Stephen and All Martyrs'Pnmary
School from Bolton, England, was awarded a total
of £20,000 to invest In science education, with
£120,000 awarded in prizes to 61 schools in all

Employee time

Employee tme contributed dunng 2007 15
esumated at a value of at least £2 milhon, wath
mare than 5,000 employees partiapating n
actmties such as community projects and team
bullding activties with societal benefits

A number of employees in the UK, North Amenca,
and Germany completed a substantial
community project as a formal part of ther
tramning or personal development programme
During 2007, over 100 employees took part in

13 projects, which are recogrused at the Group's
Annual Learning and Development Awards

Employee gving

In addition to the Group’s own contnbutions,
Rolls-Royce also finances the administration of a
Payroll Gming Scheme for UK employees, enabling
them to make tax-free donations to ther chosen
chanties Durng 2007, employees gave almost
£450,000 to more than 350 chantable causes of
thetr choice The scheme was commended at the
2007 UK Payroll Gvng Awards and 15 recogrised
as Gold Award standard by the UK Government’s
Payroll Graing Quality Mark. In North Arnenca,
employees have contributed £125,000 directly
from payroll to good causes through the United
Way scheme, a percentage of which 1s matched
by the Group

In-kind support

The Group also supports commuruty

and educatonal organisations with in-kind
donations, ncluding surplus computer
equipment and office furniture, use of
office accommodation, the loan of engines
and components and places on Group
training courses




Finance Director’s review
Andrew Shilston

Results for the year

Undertying profit before tax was £845 million
(2006 £851 million}

Summary
Undertying sales increased by sox per cent

- Engine delvenes in the civit aerospace
business were broadly flat at 851 in 2007
There was a change In the mix, a reduction
in the delivenes of large Trent engines was
balanced by increased delveries of smaller
engines for the corporate and regional sector
AS 3 CONSEquUENCE, Nnew Engine fevenues
reduced by seven per cent in 2007
Underlying ovil aerospace services revenues
grew by 11 per cent

—  Underlying defence aerospace sales
ncreased by four per cent, with a six per cent
increase In onginal equipment sales and a
three per cent Increase In services revenues

- Underlying manne sales increased
by 19 per cent, with continued strong
growth in the offshore ail and gas support
market sector

—  Underlying energy sales were flat, with a
15 pef cent INCrease In SerViCes fevenues,
offsetting a decline in onginal equipment
sales

Undertying aftermarket services revenues grew by
nine per cent to £4.3 bilion and have grown by
ter: per cent per annum compound over the past
ten years Service revenues accounted for 55 per
cent of total revenues.

84 per cent of sales were to custorners outside
the UK.

Undertying profit margins before financing costs
were refatively flat with improvement in oniginat
equipment demand, continuing growth in
services sales and our focus on cost reduction
mitigating headwinds caused by commodity
prce inflation and an adverse trend in our
achieved US dollar exchange rate

Underlying financing income amounted to
£13 miilion (2006 £96 million)

Restructuring charges of £52 million (2006

£47 million), which were incurred for ongoing
operational improvements, were included within
operating costs

On the basis described below, underlying profit
before tax was £845 million (2006 £851 million)
The adjustrments are detailed In note 2 on

page 39

The published profit before tax reduced to

£778 million from £1,537 million in 2006 This 1s
primartly due to reduced benefits from the
unrealised fair value denvative contracts, lower
benefit from foreign exchange hedge reserve
release and finally the recognition of past service
costs for UK pension schemes, all of which are
excluded from the calculaton of underlying
performance

The Group 15 exposed to fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates and commodity price
movemenits. These exposures are mitigated
through the use of currency and commodity
dernvatives for which the Group does not apply
hedge accounting

As a result, reported earnings do not reflect the
economic substance of denvatives that have been
closed out in the financial year, but do include
unrealised gains and losses on denvatives which
will only affect cash flows when they are closed
out at some point in the future

Underlying earmings are presented on a basis that
shows the economic substance of the Group’s
hedaging strategies in respect of transactional
exchange rate and commodity price movements
Further information 15 iIncluded wathin key
perfarmance indicators on pages 8 and 9 of this
report

Order book

The order book at December 31, 2007,
at constant exchange rates, was £459 billion
(2006 £26 1hilhon)

This included firm business that was announced
but for which contracts had not yet been signed
of £7 1 billion (2006 £1 7 billion)

In cvil aerospace, 1t 1s common for a customer to
take options for future orders in addition to firm
orders placed Such options are excluded from the
order book

In defence aerospace, long-term prograrnmes are
often ordered for only one year at a time In such
arcumstances, even though there may be no
alternative engine choice available to the
customer, only the contracted business 1
included in the order book.

Aftermarket services agreements, Including
TotalCare packages, represented 28 per cent of
the order bock having increased by £3 2 bithon in
the year These are long-term contracts where
only the first seven years revenue 1s in¢luded in
the order book.
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Aftermarket services

The Group continues 1o be successful in
developing its aftermarket services activities
These grew by nine per cent on an underlying
basis 1n 2007 and accounted for 55 per cent
of Group revenue

In particular, TotalCare packages in the civil
aerospace sector now cover 55 per cent, by value,
of the installed fleet TotalCare packages cover
long-term management of the maintenance and
associated logistics for our engines and systerns,
monitoring the equipment in service to deliver
the system availability our customers require with
predictable costs The pricing of such contracts
reflects therr long-term nature Revenues and
costs are recognised based on the stage of
completion of the contract, generally measured
by reference to fiying hours The overall net
position of assets and hiabilities on the balance
sheet for TotalCare packages was an asset of
£550 million (2006 £393 million)

Cash

Cash nflow during the year was £562 millian
(2006 £491 million) before the special injection of
£500 millkon in 1o the UK defined benefit pension
schemes. Continued growth in underlying profits
and good cash conversion was supported by
further increases In custorner deposits and
progress payments in the year, increasing by
£332 milhon, and a benefit of £41 million from
year-end currency revaluations Total cash
investments of £598 million in plant and
equipment and intangible assets represent the
major cash outflows in the penod Tax

payments increased in the year o £71 million
(2006 £25 mullion)

As a consequence average net cash was
£350 million (2006 £150 million) The net cash
balance at the year-end was £887 million
(2006 £825 million)
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Taxation

The averall tax charge on the profit before tax was
£133 million (2006 £397 million) a rate of 17 1 per
cent (2006 25 8 per cent)

The tax charge was reduced by £35 million in
respect of the adjustment of deferred tax balances
to reflect future lower corporate tax rates in the
UK and Germany and £22 million in respect of the
expected benefit of the UK research and
development tax credit In addinon, £22 mullion of
provisions for prior years'tax lizbilities were written
back following settlement of a number of
outstanding tax Issues

The tax charge on underlying profit was
£193 million (2006 £190 million} a rate of
228 per cent 2006 22.3 per cent)

The operation of most tax systems, including the
avallability of specific tax deductions, means that
there 15 often a delay between the Group tax
charge and the related tax payments, 1o the
benefit of cash flow

The Group operates internationally and 1s subject
to tax In many differing junsdictions As a
consequence, the Group Is routinely subject to tax
audits and examinations which by ther nature
can take a considerable penod to conclude
Provision 1s made for known 1ssues based on
managernent’s Interpretation of country specfic
legislanon and the hkely outcome

The Group seeks to minimuse its tax burden in a
manner which 1s consistent with its commercial
obyjectives and meets its legal obligations and
ethical standards While every effort 1s made to
maarmise the tax efficiency of its business
transactions, the Group does not use artificial
structures In 1ts tax planning The Group has
regard for the ntention of the legislation
concerned rather than just the wording itself
The Group 15 commutted to buillding open
relationships with tax authorities and to follow a
policy of full disclosure in order to effect the
timely settlement of its tax affairs and to remove
uncertainty In Its business transactions

Pensions

As for 2006, the charges for pensions are
calculated in accordance with the requirements of
IAS 19 Employee Benefits

As the Group had previously announced, dunng
2007 the trustees of each of the UK defined
benefit schemes undertock a review of their
nvestment strategies, in consultation with the
Group As a result, revised Investment strategies
have been adopted that seek to reduce the
economic nisks anising from each scheme The
impact on the asset allocation of each scheme
from the implementation of the revised
investment strategies has been to reduce the
equity allocation and increase the fixed income
altocation Each scheme has appointed a liabilty-
driven investment asset manager to hedge the
majonty of the interest rate and inflation nsks
associated with the pension hiabilities, using swap
contracts backed by short-term money market
assets Under the terms of the swap contracts,
each scheme 15 committed to paying London
Inter-Bank Offered Rate (LIBOR) to its
counterparties in exchange for fixed or inflation-
hinked cash inflows to match in large part an
actuanal projection of future benefit payments to
scheme members

Following agreement of the revised investment
strategies with the trustees of each scherne,

the Group has paid additional contributions of
£500 mullion to the principal UK pension schemes

Further information and details of the pensions’
charge and the defined henefit schernes’ assets
and habiities are shown in ncte 17 to the
financial statements This shows a net defici, after
taking account of deferred tax, of £88 milhon
(2006 £681 millon) Changes In this net position
are affected by the assumpnions made in valuing
the labilities and the market performance of the
assets

The change In Investment strategees agreed with
the trustees of the pnincipal UK schemes 1s
expected 1o lead to lower volatility of the Group's
net pension position for the future

Investments

The Group continues to subject all investments to
ngorous examination of nsks and future cash
flows to ensure that they create shareholder value
All major Investments require Board approval

The Group has a portfolio of projects at different
stages of their ife cycles Discounted cash flow
analysis of the remaining Iife of projects s
performed on a regular basis Sales of engines

n production are assessed against criena in the
onginal development programme to ensure that
overall value 1s enhanced

Gross research and development investment
amounted to £824 million (2006 £747 mithon}
Net research and development charged to

the income statement was £381 million (2006
£370 milion} The level of self-funded investment
In research and development 15 expected to
remain at approximately five per cent of Group
sales in the future The impact of this investment
on the income staternent will reflect the mix and
maturity of iIndividual development programmes
and will result in a similar level of net research and
development reported wathin the income
staternent 1n 2008 Investment In training was
£30 million (2006 £30 million)

Capital expenditure on property, plant
and equipment was £304 milion
{2006 £303 million)

Intangible assets

The Group camed forward £1,761 milion

(2006 £1,460 milion) of intangible assets This
compnsed purchased goodwill of £801 million,
engine certification costs and participation fees of
£354 million, development costs of £364 million,
recoverable engine costs of £162 million and
other intangible assets of £80 milhon

Total capital expenditure on property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets 1s expected to
Increase modestly 1n 2008

Partnerships

The development of effective pantnerships
continues to be a key feature of the Group's
long-term strategy Major partnerships are of two
types jont ventures and nsk and revenue shanng
parnners




Joint ventures

Joimnit ventures are an integral part of our business
They are Involved In engineering, manufactuning,
repair and overhaul, and financial services They
are also normal business structures for companies
participating in international, collaboratve
defence projects

They share risk and investment, bring expertise
and access to markets, and provide external
cbjectmity Some of our joint ventures have
become substantial businesses A major
proportion of the debt of the joint ventures is
secured on the assets of the respective
companies and 15 non-recourse to the Group

Risk and revenue sharing partners
(RRSPs)

RRSPs have enabled the Group to build a broad
pertfolio of engines, thereby reducing the
exposure of the business to ndmdual product
nsk The pnimary financial benefit is a reduction of
the burden of research and development (R&D)
expenditure on new prograrnmes

The related RRD expenditure 1s expensed through
the income statement and the initial programme
receipts from partners, which reimburse the
Group for past RRD expenditure, are also recorded
in the income statement, as other operating
ncome

RRSF agreements are a standard form of
co-operation in the ¢vil aero-engine industry
They bring benefits to the engine manufacturer
and the partner Specifically, for the manufacturer
they bring some or all of the following benefits
additional financial and engineering rescurce,
shanng of nsk, and mitial programme
contribution As appropnate, the partner also
supplies components and as consideration for
these companents, receives a share of the
long-term revenues generated by the engine
programme m proportion 1o 1ts purchased
programme share

The sharing of nsk s fundamental to RRSP
agreements In general, partners share financial
investment in the programme, they share market
risk as they receve their return from future sales,
they share currency nsk as their returns are
denominated in US dollars, they share sales
financing obligations, they share warranty costs,
and, where they are manufactunng or
development partners, they share technical
and cost nsk. Partners that do not undertake
developrnent work or supply components are
referred to as inancial RRSPs and are accounted
for as financial instruments as described here

In 2007, the Group received other operating
income of £50 rmullion (2006 £57 million), prirmarty
In respect of the Trent 1000 engine programme

Payments to RRSPs are recorded within cost

of sales and ncrease as the related programme
sales Increase These payments amounted to
£199 milhion (2006 £162 milhon)

The classification of financial RRSPs as financial
instruments has resulted in a hability of

£315 million (2006 £324 milhon) being recorded 1in
the balance sheet and an associated underlying
financing cost of £26 million (2006 £27 million)
recorded in the income statement

In the past, the Group has also received
government launch investrnent In respect
of certain programmes The treatment of this
investrment 1s similar to non-financial RRSPs

Risk management

The Beard has an established, structured
approach to nsk management The nsk
commuttee has accountability for the systern of
nsk management and reporting the key nsks and
associated mitigating actions The Director of Risk
reports to the Finance Director The Groups policy
15 1o preserve the resources upon which its
continuing reputation, viability and profitabiity
are built, to enable the corporate abjectives to

be achieved through the operation of the
Rolls-Royce business processes Risks are formally
identified and recorded in a corporate risk register
and its subsidiary registers within the businesses,
which are reviewed and updated on a regular
basss, with risk ritigation plans identdfied for
significant risks

Financial risk

The Group uses various financral instruments

In order to manage the exposures that arise from
i1ts business operations as a result of movements
in financial markets All treasury acimties are
focused on the management and hedging of nisk.
It 15 the Group's policy not to trade financial
instruments of to engage in speculative financial
transactions There have been no significant
changes in the Group’s policies in the last year

The principal economic and market risks continue
to be moverneants in foreign currency exchange
rates, Interest rates and commaodity prices The
Board regularly reviews the Groups expasures and
financial nsk management and a specialist
committee also considers these in detail
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All such exposures are managed by the

Group Treasury function, which reports to the
Finance Drirector and which operates within
written policies approved by the Board and within
the internat control framework.

Counterparty credit risk

The Group has an established policy towards
managing counterparty credit nsk. A common
framework exists to measure, report and control
exposures to counterparties across the Group
using Value at Risk and farr value techniques The
Group assigns an internal credit rating to each
counterparty, which 15 assessed with reference 1o
publicly available credit information, such as that
provided by Moody’s, Standard & Poors, and other
recognised market sources and 1s reviewed

regularly

Financial instruments are only transacted with
counterparties that have a publicly assigned
long-term credit rating from Standard & Poor’s
of ‘A~ or better and frorm Moody's of A3’ or
better

Funding and liquidity

The Group finances its operations through

a mixture of sharehalders' funds, bank borrowings,
bonds, notes and finance leases The Group
borrows In the major global markets in a range of
currengies and employs dervatives where
appropriate to generate the desired curency and
interest rate profile

The Group's objective is to hold financial
investments and maintain undrawn committed
facilties at a level sufficient to ensure that the
Group has available funds to meet its medium-
term capital and funding obhgations and to meet
any unforeseen obligations and opportunities

The Group holds cash and short-term investments
which, together with the undrawn committed
facities, enable the Group to manage its iquidity
risk.

Short-term invesiments are generalty held as bank
deposits or In‘AAA'rated money market funds
The Group operates a conservative Investment
pohicy which imits investments to high quality
instruments wath surtable counterparty
diversification Dunng 2007, the Group did not
experience any losses related to 1ts Investments as
a result of the US sub-prime crisis
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No new borrowing faciliies were entered into
dunng 2007 and £340 million of borrowing
facilities matured duning 2007 As at December 31,
2007 the Group had total committed borrowing
facilities of £1.5 billlon (2006 £1 8 billon} There are
no materal debt facility matunties until 2011 The
maturity profile of the borrowing facilities is
staggered to ensure that refinancing levels are
manageable in the context of the business and
market conditions

There are no rating tnggers contained 1n any of
the Group's facikties that could require the Group
to accelerate or repay any facility for a given
movement in the Group's credit rating, and no
maternial impact on the Group’s nterest charge
would be expected to anse from a movement in
the Group’s credit rating

The Greup continues to have access to all the
major global debt markets

Credit rating

The Group's parent company, Rolls-Royce

Group ple, subscribes to both Moody's Investars
Service and Standard & Poor’s for its offical
publicised credit ratings As at December 31, 2007
the assigned fong-term credit ratings were

Rating agency Rating Qutlook Category

Moody's A3 Stable Investment
grade

Standard A- Stable frvestment

& Poor's grade

As a [ong-term business, the Group attaches
significant iImportance to mamntaining this
investment grade credit rating, which it views as
necessary for the business to operate effectively

The Group's objective 1s to maintain this ‘A’
category Investment grade credit rating from
both agencies

Currency risk

The Group 1s exposed to mavemnents in exchange
rates for both foreign currency transactions and
the translation of net assets and ncome
statements of foreign subsidianes

The Group regards Its Interests in overseas
subsidiary companies as long-term nvestments.
The Group has tended to manage its translaticnal
exposures through the curmency matching of
assets and labulities where applicable The
matching 15 reviewed regularly Appropnate nsk
mitigation 1s undertaken where matenal
rmsmatches anse

The Group 15 exposed to a number of foreign
currencies The most significant transactional
currency exposutres are US dollars to sterlng and
US dollars to Eurcs

The Group manages Its exposure to mavements
In exchange rates at two levels

1) Revenues and costs are currency matched
where It Is economic to do so The Group
actively seeks 1o source suppliers with the
relevant currency cost base o avoid the nsk
or to flaw down the nsk to those suppliers
that are capable of managing it Currency nsk
Is also a pnme consideration when deciding
where to locate new facilties, US dollar
income converted into Sterling represented
25 per cent of Group revenues in 2007 (2006
26 per cent) US dollar ncome converted into
Euros represented four per cent of Group
revenues (n 2007 (2006 four per cent}

1 Residual currency exposure Is hedged wia
the financial markets The Group operates
a hedging policy using a vanety of
financial nstruments with the cbjective
of minimising the impact of fluctuations in
exchange rates on future transactions and

cash flows

Market exchange rates

2007 2006
USS per £
—Year-end spot rate 1991 1957
- Average spot rate 2001 1844
€perf
- Year-end spot rate 1362 1484
- Average spot rate 1461 1467

The permitted range of the amount of cover
taken 1s determined by the wiitten policies set
by the Board, based cn known and forecast
income levels

The forward cover 1s managed within the
parameters of these palicies in order to achieve
the Group’s obyectives, having regard to the
Group's view of long-term exchange rates
Forward caver 15 in the form of standard foreign
exchange contracts and instruments on which
the exchange rates achieved are dependent on
future interest rates The Group may also wite
currency options agamst a portion of the
unhedged dollar income at a rate which is
consistent with the Group’s long-term target rate
At the end of 2007 the Group had USS$9 4 billion
of forward cover (2006 US510 billion)

The consequence of this policy has been to
mantain relatively stable long-term foreign
exchange rates Note 15 includes the impact of
revaluing forward currency contracts at market
values on December 31, 2007, showing a value of
£379 million (2006 £554 mullion) which will
fluctuate with exchange rates over time

The Group has entered into these forward
contracts as part of the hedging policy, described
above, In order to mitigate the impact of volatile
exchange rates

Interest rate risk

The Group uses fixed rate bonds and floating rate
debt as funding sources The Group's policy 1s to
maintain a proportion of its debt at fixed rates of
interast having regard to the prevailing interest
rate outlook. To iImplement this policy the Group
may utihse a combination of interest-rate swaps,
forward-rate agreements and interest-rate caps to
manage the exposure

Commodity risk

The Group has an ongoing exposure to the price
of jet fuel and base metals ansing fram business
operations The Group's objective 15 10 mmimise
the mpact of pnce fluciuations The exposure 15
hedged in accordance with parameters contained
n written polices set by the Board




Sales financing

In connection with the sale of its products, the
Group will, on sorme occasions, provide financing
support for #ts customers This may involve the
Group guaranteeing financing for customers,
providing asset-value guarantees (AVGs) on
arrcraft for a proportion of therr expecied future
value, or entering Into leasing transactions

The Group manages and monitors its sales
finance related exposures to customers and
products within written policies approved by the
Board and within the internal framework
described in the Report of the directors. The
contingent Nlabilities represent the maximum
discounted aggregate gross and net exposure
that the Group has in respect of delivered aicraft,
regardless of the point in time at which such
exposures may anse

The Group uses Ascend Worldwide Limited as an
independent appraiser to value ks securnty
portfolio at both the half-year and year-end
Ascend pravides specific values (both current and
forecast future values) for each asset in the
secunty portfolio These values are then used t©
assess the Group’s net exposure

The permitted levels of gross and net exposure
are imited in aggregate, by counterparty, by
product type and by calendar year The Group's
gross exposures are divided approximately 55 45
between AVGs and credit guarantees They are
spread over many years and relate to a number of
customers and a broad preduct portfolio

The Board regularly reviews the Group's sales
finance related exposures and nsk management
actvibies Each financing commitment is subject
to a credit and asset review process and prior
approval In accordance with Board delegations of
authorty

The Group operates a sophisticated risk-pricing
model to assess risk and expasure

Costs and exposures assoctated with providing
financing support are incorporated in any
decision to secure new business

The Group seeks ta minimise the fevel of
exposure from sales finance commitments by

- the use of third-party non-recourse debt
where appropnate,

- the transfer, sale, or reinsurance of nsks, and

- ensurnng the proportionate flow down
of sk and exposure to relevant RRSPs

Each of the above forms an active part of
the Group's exposure management process

Where exposures arise, the strategy has been, and
continues to be, 10 assume where possible hquid
forms of financing commitment that may be
sold or transferred to third parties when the
opportunity anses

Note 22 to the financial statements describes the
Group's contingent habihties

There were no material changes to the Group's
gross and net contingent lrabilities in this respect
in 2007
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Accounting standards

The consclidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted
by the EU In 2007, the Group has adopted

IFRS 7 Financial instruments  Disclosure and the
Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statemnents These changes baih elate to
disclosure and have no 1mpact on the reported
results Other new standards, amendments to
standards and mterpretations effective In 2007 do
not have a significant effect on the Group’s
financial statements

A summary of other changes, which have not
been adopted in 2007, 1s included within the
accounting policies in note 1 to the financial
statements

Andrew Shilston
Finance Director
February 6 2008
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended December 31, 2007

Restated”
2007 2006
Notes £m £m
Revenue 2 7435 7.156
Cost of sales {6,003) (5,566)
Gross profit 1,432 1,590
Cther operating income 3 50 57
Commercial and admiristrative costs (653) (623
Research and development costs (381) (370)
Share of profit of joint ventures B 66 47
Operating profit 514 699
(Loss)/profit on sale of businesses 24 {2) 1
Profit before finanang 2 512 700
Finanaing income 4 762 1335
Financing ¢osts 4 (496) {498)
Net financing 266 837
Profit before taxation 3 778 1537
Taxation 5 {133} 397)
Profit for the year 645 1,140
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent 651 1,144
Minonty interests 19 )] @
Profit for the year 645 1,140

* Duning the year the Group has reviewed the dassificabon of costs. As a result, costs of £39m dassified as commeraal and administratrve costs In 2006 have been reclassified as cost of sales
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Consolidated balance sheet

At December 31, 2007
Restated*
2007 2006
Notes £m tm
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 7 1,761 1,460
Property, plant and equipment 8 1813 1,706
fnvestments — joint ventures 9 284 240
Other Investments 9 89 125
Deferred tax assets 5 81 141
Post-retrement scheme surpluses 17 210 22
4,238 3654
Current assets
Inventory 10 2,203 1845
Trade and other recenvables il 2,585 2468
Taxation recoverable 7 5
Other financial assets 15 514 644
Short-term investments 40 34
Cash and cash equivalents 12 1,896 2,184
Assets held for sale 7 —
7,252 7,180
Total assets 11,490 10874
LIABILITIES
Current habiities
Borrowings 13 (34) (400)
Other financial hiabilites 15 (69) (24)
Trade and other payables 14 (4,736) (4,265)
Current tax labilimes {188) (191)
Provisions 16 {121) (146)
(5,148) (5,026)
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 13 (1,030 (990)
Other financal labilities 15 (303) (336)
Trade and other payables 14 {965) (827)
Deferred tax lizbilites 5 (345) (252
Provisions 16 (180} (189)
Post-rettrement scheme deficits 17 (333) {1,017}
(3,156} (3611)
Total liabilites (8,304) (8,637)
Net assets 3,186 2,237
EQUITY
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 18 326 326
Share premiurm account 19 631 631
Transiron hedging reserve 9 77 177
Translaton reserve 19 59 (58)
Retained eamings 19 2,081 1154
Equity attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 3174 2230
Minomty interests 19 12 7
Total equity 3,186 2237

10 11,14 17 and 19

gjal staternents on pages 28 to 70 were approved by the Board on February 6, 2008 and signed on its behalf by

‘ AR

Rbertson Chairman Andrew Shilston Finance Director
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended December 31, 2007

Restated*
2007 2006
Notes £m fm
Reconaliation of cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 778 1,537
Share of profit of joint ventures 9 (66} {47
Loss/{profit} on sale or termination of businesses 24 2 [4)]
Loss/(profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment 1 ©
Net interest payable 4 5 18
Net posi-retirement scheme financing 4 (30} (3
Net other financing 4 241} (852)
Taxation paid (71) (25)
Amortisation of intangible assets 7 63 60
Depreciation of property, plant and equiprent [ 170 161
Decrease In provisions (42) (36)
Increase In Inventories (359) (226)
increase i trade and other recervables (125) (400)
Increase in trade and other payables 709 793
Decrease in other financial assets and habilives 358 250
Additional cash funding of post-retirernent schemes (a41) 21
Share-based paymenits charge 20 36 36
Transfers of hedge reserves 1o income statement 15 (149) (289)
Dmadends recewved from joint ventures 9 42 44
Net cash inflow from operating activities 640 990
Cash flows from investing activities
Addiuiens of unlisted investments (5) —
Additions to intangible assets (294) 219
Disposals of ntangible assets — 7
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (304} (298}
Disposals of property, plant and equipment 47 55
Acquismon of businesses 24 {6} G
Disposals of businesses 2 3 1
Investments in Joint ventures (13} nn
Disposals of joint ventures - 1
Additions to parent company shares (77} (44)
Disposals of parent company shares 31 76
Net cash outflow from investing activities {618) {437)
Cash flows from financing actrviies _
Borrowings due wathin one year — repayment of foans {350) (53)
Capital element of finance lease payments {5) (8)
Net cash outflow from decrease in bormowings (355) (B61)
Interest recerved 95 84
Interest paid (93) (56)
Interest element of finance lease payments (3) @
{Increase)/decrease in government securities and corporate bonds (6} 3
Net cash outflow from finanang activibies (362) 72)
(Decreasel/increase in cash and cash equivalents (340} 431
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 2,170 1744
Foreign exchange L) (60)
Net cash of businesses acquired/disposed — [
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 18N 2170

* Seenotes 10,11 and 14
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2007 2006
£m fm
Reconaliation of increase in cash and cash equivalents to movements in net funds
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (340) 481
Cash (inflow)/outflow from (decrease)/increase n government secunties and corporate bonds 6 3
Net cash outflow from decrease In borrowings 355 61
Change in net funds resulting from cash flows 21 539
Net funds of businesses acquired — 1
Exchange adjustments 41 49
Farr value adjustents (18) 77
Movement tn net funds 44 568
Net funds at January 1 excluding the fair value of swaps 828 260
Net funds at December 31 excluding the farr value of swaps 872 828
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 15 3
Net funds at December 31 887 825

The movement in net funds (defined by the Group as including the stems shown below) 15 as follows

At

At
feclassi- December 31,

January 1, Exchange Fair value
2007 Cash flow adjustments adjustments fications 2007
£m £m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 756 465 43 — — 1,264
Overdrafts (14) ) - - - (25}
Short-term deposits 1428 (794) (2 — — 632
Cash and cash equivalents 2,170 {340) 41 — — 1871
Investments 34 6 — — — 40
Other borrowings due within one year (379) 350 — 27 (2) {4}
Borrowings due after one year (983) — - {45) 2 {1,026}
Finance leases 4) 5 - - — {9)
828 21 41 {18) — 872
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings (3) 18 15
825 21 1 — - 887
- - L
Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
For the year ended December 31, 2007
2007 2006
Notes £m £m
Foreign exchange translation differences from foreign operations 117 (75)
Net actuarial gamns 17 399 602
Transfers from transion hedging reserve 15 (149) (289
Mavernent in fair value of avadable for sale assets (28) (126}
Related tax movements 5 (86) {43)
Change In rates of corporation tax 5 9) —
Net incomne recogrused directly in equity 244 69
Profit for the year 645 1,140
Total recognised income and expense for the year 889 1,209
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 895 1213
Minonty interests {6} {4)
Total recogrised income and expense for the year 889 1,209
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Significant accounting polices

The Company

Rolls-Royce plc (the ‘Company?) 1s a company domiciled in the United Kingdom The
consokdated financial statemnents of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2007 comprise the Company and s subsidianes (together referred to as the ‘Group)
and the Groups interest in gointly controlled entities The financial statements were
authonsed for 1ssue by the directors on February 6, 2008

Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

In accordance with European Union (EU) regulations, these financial staterments have
been prepared in accordance with International Financiak Reporung Standards (IFRS)
1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (|ASB), as adopted for use in
the EU effectrve at December 31, 2007 (Adopted IFRS) The Company has elected to
prepare its parent company accounts under UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Pracuces {GAAP)

The financial staternents have been prepared on the histoncal cost basis except
where Adopted IFRS require an alternative treatment. The principal vanations from
the historical cost basis relate to pensions (JAS 19), monetary sterms (LAS 21), financial
nstruments (1AS 39) and share-based payments (IFRS 2)

The Group's significant accounting policies are set out below, together with the
judgements made by management in applying these policies, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements, apart from
those involving estirmations, which are dealt with separately below These accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all pernods presented 1n these consohdated
financial staternents and by all Group entities

Restatermnents to comparative figures are set out in notes 10,11, 14,17 and 19
Some other srnall adjustments have been made to comparative figures to put them
on a consistent basis with the current year

Basis of consohidaton

The Group financial staterments include the financial statements of the Company and
all of its subsidiary undertakings made up to December 31, together with the Groups
share of the results of joint ventures up to December 31

A subsidiary 15 an entity controlled by the Company Conwol exists when the
Cormpany has the power, directly or indirectly to govern the financial and operating
policies of the entity so as to derve benefits from its actvities.

A joint venture 15 an entity in which the Group holds a long-temm interest and
whnch 1s jontly controlled by the Group and one or more other venturers under a
contractual amangement The resutts of joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method of accountng

Any subsidiary undenakings and joint ventures sold or acquired during the year
are included up 1o or from, the dates of change of control

Al intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are elmmated on
consolidation

Significant accounting poliaes and jJudgements applied

Revenue recognition
Revenues comprise sales 1o outside custorners after discounts, excluding value
added tax.

Sales of products are recogrused when the significant nsks and rewards of
ownership of the goods are ransferred to the customer, the sales pnice agreed and
the receipt of payrnent can be assured On occasion, the Group may partapate in
the finanang of engines in conjunction with airframe manufacturers. In such
arcurnstances, the contingent obligations ansing under these arangements are
taken nto account i assessing whether significant nsk and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the customer Where it 15 Judged that sufficient nsks and
rewards are not transferred, the transaction s treated as a leasing transaction,
resulting i an operating lease between the Group and the customer No delivenes of
engines were treated as operating leases during 2007 Depending on the specific
arcumstances, where apphcable, the financing armangements may result in the
consolidation of the entity established to facilitate the finanang Such special
purpaose entities will be consolidated as required by (AS 27 Consoiidated and Separate

financial Statements if 1t 1s considered that the Group controls the enuty No such
entiues were consohdated at December 31, 2007

Sales of services are recognised by reference to the stage of completion based
on services performed to date The assessment of the stage of completion 1s
dependent on the nature of the contract, but will generally be based on costs
incurred 1o the extent these relate to sences performed up to the reporung date,
achievernent of contractual milestones where appropnate, or flying hours or
equivalent for long-term aftermarket arrangements

Linked sales of product and services are treated as a single contract where these
components have been negouated as a single commercial package and are so
closely interrelated that they do not operate independently of each cther and are
considered to form a single project with an overall profit margin Revenue 1s
recognised on the same basis as for other sales of products and senvices as described
above

Provided that the outcome of construction contracts can be assessed with
reasonable certainty, the revenues and costs on such contracts are recogrmsed based
on stage of completion and the overall contract profitatihty

Full provsion 1s made for any estirmated losses to completion of contracts
having regard to the overall substance of the amangements.

Progress payments received on long-term contracts, when greater than recorded
revenue are deducted from the value of work in progress except to the extent that
payments on account exceed the value of work In progress on any contract where
the excess 15 included in trade and other payables. The amount by which recorded
revenue of long-term contracts 15 In excess of paymenits on account 15 classified as
‘amounts recoverable on contracts’and 1s separately disclosed within trade and other
recenvables.

Risk and revenue shanng partnerships (RRSPs)
From time to ime the Group enters INto arangerments with partners who, i return
for a share n future programme revenues or profits, make cash paymenis that are
not refundable (except under certain remote circumstances) Cash sums received,
which reimburse the Group for past expenditure, are crednted 1o other operating
income The arrangements also require partners to undertake developrment work
and/or supply components for use in the programme at their own expense No
accounting entnes are recorded where partners undertake such development work
or where programme components are supplied by partners because no obligation
anses unfess and until prograrmme sales are made, Instead, payments to partners for
therr share In the programme are charged to cost of sales as programme revenues
anse

The Group has arrangerments with partners who do not undertake
development work or supply parts. Such amangements are considered to be financral
instruments as defined by IAS 32 financia! instruments Presentation and are
accounted for using the amortised cost method

Government nvestment

Where a government or similar body invests in a development programme, the
Group treats such receipts as the sale of an interest In the programme Subsequent
payments are royalty payments and are matched to related sales.

Interest
Interest recevable/payable 15 credited/charged to the income statement using the
effective interest method The Group does not capitalise any borrowing costs

Taxation
The tax charge on the profit or loss for the year compnises current and deferred tax,

Current tax I1s the expected tax payable for the year, using tax rates eracted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustrent to tax payable
In respect of previous years.

Deferred tax 1s provided using the balance sheet lability method, prowding for
temporary differences between the carmyang amounts of the assets and habilines for
financial reporung purposes and the amounts used for taxanon purposes.

Deferred tax habilines are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing
on investments In subsidianes and jont ventures, except where the Group s able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future Deferred tax 15 not recogrused on




taxable temporary differences ansing on the inmal recogrition of goodwall or for
temporary differences ansing from the inital recogrition of assets and liabiliies In a
transaction that 1s not a business combination and that affects neither accounuing
nor taxable profit.

Deferred tax 1s calculated using the enacted or substantively enacted rates that
are expected to apply when the asset or liability 1s settled Deferred tax 1s charged or
credited in the income statement or statement of recognised income and expense
as appropriate, except when 1t relates to items credited or charged directly to equity
in which case the deferred tax 15 also dealt with in equity

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that 1115 probable that
future taxable profits will be available aganst which the assets can be utilised

Segmental reporting

A segment s a disunguishable component of the Group that 1s engaged in providing
products and senaces As the risks and rates of return are predominantly affected by
differences in these products and senvices, the pnmary format for reporting segment
information 1s based on business segments

Fareign currency transiation
Transactions in overseas currencies are translated into local currency at the exchange
rates ruling on the date of the transaction Monetary assets and habilities
denominated in foreign currencies are transfated into focal currency at the rate ruling
atthe year-end Exchange differences ansing on foreign exchange transacuions and
the retranslation of assets and hiabiliies into sterkng at the rate ruling at the year-end
are taken into account i determining profit before taxation

The trading results of overseas undertakings are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year The assets and liabilies of overseas undertakings,
including goodwill and farr value adjustments ansing on acquisiion, are translated at
the exchange rates ruling at the year-end Exchange adjustments ansing from the
retranslation of the opening net investrnents, and from the translation of the profits
or losses at average rates, are taken to equity

Financial nstrurnents

IAS 39 financial instrurnents Recogrition and Measurement requires the classification of

financial instrumenits INto separate categones for which the accounting requirement

15 different Rolls-Royce has classified its finangial nstrurments as foliows

- Fied deposits, pnncipally comprising funds held with banks and other financial
institutions and trade recenvables, are classified as loans and recervables

- Investrents (other than interests 1n joint ventures and fixed deposits} and
short-term deposits {other than fixed deposits) are classified as available for sale

- Borrowings, trade payables and financial RRSPs are dlassified as other liabilites

- Dernvatives, compnsing foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and
commodity swaps are classified as held for trading

Financial nstruments are recognised at the contract date and miually measured at farr

value Their subsequent measurement depends on thewr dlassification

-~ Loans and recervables and other habilives are held at amorused cost and not
revalued unless they are included in a far value hedge accounting relationship
Where such a relationship exists, the instruments are revalued in respect of the
nsk being hedged If nstrurments held at amortised cost are hedged, generally
by Interest rate swaps, and the hedges are effective, the camying values are
adjusted for changes in fair value, which are included in the income statement.

- Awallable for sale assets are held at fair value Changes in farr value ansing from
changes in exchange rates are incuded n the income statement. All other
changes in farr value are 1aken 1 equity On disposal, the accumulated changes
in value recorded in equity are ncluded n the gain or loss recorded in the
INcome statement

- Held for trading instrurnents are held at farr value Changes in farr value are
included in the income statement unless the instrument 1s ncluded in a cash
flow hedge If the instruments are included in a cash flow hedging relationshup,
which 1s effective, changes in value are iaken to equity When the hedged
forecast transaction oCcurs, amounts previcusly recorded In equity are
recognised in the income statement.

- Foreign exchange gains and iosses ansing on transactions are recognised in the
Income statement
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Financal instruments are derecognised on expiry of when all contractual nghts and
obligations are transferred

Hedge accounting

The Group does not apply hedge accounting in respect of forward foreign exchange
contracts held to manage the cash flow exposures of forecast transactions
denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group does not apply hedge accounting in respect of commodity swaps
hetd to manage the cash flaw exposures of forecast transactions in those
commodites

The Group applies hedge accountuing in respect of transactions entered nto to
manage the fair value and cash flow exposures of its borrowings Forward foreign
exchange contracts are held to manage the fair value exposures of borrowings
denominated in foreign currencies and are designaied as fair value hedges Interest
rate swaps are held to manage the interest rate exposures and are designated as fair
value or cash flow hedges of fixed and floating rate bormowings respectively

Changes i the fair values of dervatives designated as far value hedges and
changes in fair value of the related hedged itern are recognised directly in the
NCOME statement.

Changes in the fair values of denvatives that are designated as cash flow hedges
and are effective are recogrused directly In equity Any ineffectiveness in the hedging
relationshups 15 included in the income statement The amounts deferred n equity are
ecogrised m the incore statement to match the recognition of the hedged ttem

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrurnent expires or Is
sold, termnated, or exercised, or no longer gualifies for hedge accounung At that
time, for cash flow hedges, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
recognised in equity, 15 retained in equity untl the forecast transaction occurs. if a
hedged transactron 15 no longer expected to cccur, the net cumulative gain or loss
recognised in eguity 1s transferred to the income statement.

The portion of a gain or loss on an Instrument used to hedge a net investment
in a foreign operation that is determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognised
directly in equity The neffective portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Unul December 31, 2004, and as allowed by IFRS 1 First-time Adoptior of
internationat financal Reporting Standards, the Group applied hedge accounting for
forecast foreign exchange ransactions and commaodity exposures in accordance
with UK GAAP Cn January 1, 2005, the fair values of denvatives used for hedging
these exposures were inciuded in the ransition hedging reserve This reserve 1S
released to the Income statement based on the designation: of the hedges on
January 1, 2005

Purchased goodwilf

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration for

shares in subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures over the fair value to the Group

of the net identfiable assets acquired

1) To December 31,1997 Goodwill was written off to reserves in the year of
acquIStion

¥ From January 1, 1998 Goodwill was recogrised within intangible assets in the
year In which it arose and amorused on a straight line basis over its useful
economc Ife, up 19 a maximum of 20 years

u)  From January 1, 2004, in accordance wath IFRS 3 Business Combinations, goodwall
15 recagnised as per (i) above but 1s no longer amortised

Certification costs and participation fees

Costs incurred in respect of meeting regulatory certfication requueements for new
ovil aero-engme/aircraft combinations and payments made o airfrarme
manufacturers for this, and paruapaton fees, are camed forward in iIntangible assets
to the extent that they can be recovered out of future sales and are charged 1o the
mcome statement over the programme life, up to @ maximum of 15 years from the
entry-nio-senace of the product

Research and development
In accordance with |AS 38 Intangible Assets, expenditure incurred on research and
development, excluding known recoverable amounts on contracts, and




Rolls-Royce plc Annual report 2007

34 =

Campany finanaal staterments

Notes to the consolidated finanaal statements continued

contnbutions to shared engineernng programmes, 15 distnguished as relating either
to a research phase or to a development phase

All research phase expenditure Is charged to the income statement. For
development expenditure, this is caprtalised as an internally generated intangible
asset only if it meets stnct enters, relating in particular to technical feasibility and
generatron of future economic benefits

Expendsture that cannat be dassified 1nto these two categories is treated as
being incurred in the research phase The Group considers that, due to the complex
nature of new equipment programmes, it 1s not possible to distnguish reliably
between research and development actvities until relatvely late In the programme

Expenditure capitalised 15 amortised over its useful economic ife, up to a
maximum of 15 years from the entry-into-service of the product.

Recoverable engine costs

On occasion, the Group may sell onginal equipment 1o customers at a value below
s cost, on the basis that this deficit wall be recovered from future aftermarket sales to
the onginal customer Where the Group has a contractual nght to supply aftermarket
parts to the customer and its intellectual nghts, warranty arangements and statutory
airworthiness requirements provide reasonable control over thus supply, these
arrangements are considered to meet the definition of an intangible asset. Such
intangible assets are recognised to the extent of the defict and amortised on a
straight-dine basis over the expected penod of utlisaton by the anginal customer,
generally a maxmum of ten years unless the specific contractual arcumstances
indicate a longer perod

Software

The cost of acquinng software that 1s not specific to an tem of property, plant and
equipment 15 classified as an intangible asset and amortised over its useful economic
Iife, up to a maximum of five years

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment assets are stated at ¢ost less accumutated
depreciation and any provision for impawrments in value
Depreciation 1s provided on a straight-ine basis to wnite off the cost, less the
estimated residual value, of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives Estimated useful lives are as follows,
1§ Land and buldings, as adwsed by the Groups professtonal adwisors
a)  Freehold buldings - five to 45 years (average 23 years)
b]  Leasehold buildings - lower of adwisors' estimates or period of lease
¢t Nodeprecation is prowded on freehold land
n}  Plant and equipment — five to 25 years (average 14 years)
) Aurcraft and engines - five 1o 20 years {average 18 years)

n)  No depreciation is provided on assets in the course of construction
Ledises
) Aslessee

Assets financed by leasing agreements that give rights approximating to
ownership {finance leases} have been capitalised at therr farr value and
depreciation 15 provided on the basis of the Group deprecation policy The
capital elements of future obligations under finance leases are included as
habiliues in the balance sheet and the current year's interest efernent, having
been allocated to accounting penods to give a constant periodic rate of charge
on the outstanding lability, i1s charged to the income statement. The annual
paymenis under all cther lease arrangements, known as operating leases are
charged 1o the income statement on a straight-Ine basis
ny  As Lessor

Armounts recevable under finance leases are included within recetvables and
represent the total amount outstanding under the lease agreements less
unearned Income Finance lease income, having been allocated to accounting
penads 10 give a constant penodic rate of return on the net Investment, 1s
included in revenue

Rentals recevable under operating leases are included in revenue on a
straight-line basis.

Impairerient of non-current assets
impairment of non-current assets 1s considered In accordance with 1AS 36
Impairment of Assets Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent of other assets, impairment 1s considered for the ¢ash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.
Goodwll and intangible assets not yet avallable for use are tested for impairment
annually Cther intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are assessed for
any indications of impairment anaually If any mdication of impairment 1s identified,
animpairment test 1s performed to estimate the recoverable amount

Recovesable amount 15 the higher of value in use or far value less costs to sell -
if ths 15 readily available The value in use is the present value of future cash flows
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the trme value of money and the nisk
specific to the asset

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) 1s esumated 10
be below the camying value, the carrying value 15 reduced to the recoverable amount
and the mpairment loss recognised as an expense

Inventory

Inventory and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value on a first-in, first-out basis. Cost compnses direct matenials and, where
applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads, including depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, that have been imncurred in bringing the inventones
to their present location and condition Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling prices less all estrmated costs of completion and costs to be incurred i
marketing, selling and distnibution

Cash and cash equralents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits
with a maturity of three moniths or less on inception The Group considers overdrafts
{repayable on demand) to be an integral part of its cash management acivities and
these are included in cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the cash flow
statement

Provisions

Provistions are recogrised when the Group has a present obhgation as a result of a
past event, and it 15 probable that the Group will be required 1o settle that obligation
Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value
where the effect s matenal

Post-retirernent benefits
Pensions and similar benefits (pnncipally healthcare) are accounted for under 1AS 19
Employee Benefits For defined benefit plans, obligations are measured at discounted
present value whilst ptan assets are recorded at fair value The sennce and financing
costs of such plans are recogrised separately n the Income statement, current
service costs are spread systematically over the Iives of employees and financing
costs are recognised n the penods in which they anse Actuanal gains and losses are
recognised mmediately in the statement of recognised income and expense

Surpluses i schemes are recogrused as assets only If they represent
uncenditional economic benefits available to the Group in the future Movements in
unrecognised surpluses are included in the statement of recognised income and
expense

Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged as an expense as they
falt due

Share-based payments

The Group, on behalf of its parent cormnpany, provides share-based paymerit
arrangements o certain employees. These are predominantly equity-settled
arrangements and are measured at farr value (excluding the effect of non-rnarket
based vesting conditions) at the date of grant The farr value 15 expensed on a
straight-ine basis over the vesting penod The amount recogrused as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual nurmber of shares or options that will vest, except where
addmional shares vest as a result of the Total Shareholder Return performance
condiion in the Performance Share Plan The costs of these share-based payments




are treated as a capital contnbution from the parent company Any payments made

by the Group 1o 1ts parent company, in respect of these arrangements, are treated as

a return of this capital contribution

The fair values of the share-based payment arrangements are measured as follows

i} ShareSave plans - using the binomial priang model

iy Performangce Share Plan - using a pnang maodel adjusted to reflect
non-entitlement to dvidends (or equivalent) and the Total Shareholder Return
market-based performance condition

) Annual Performance Related Award plan deferred shares and free shares under
the Share Incentive Plan - share price on the date of the award

See note 20 for a further descniption of the share-based payment plans.

Contingent habdities
In connection with the sale of tts products, the Group wall, on occasion, provide
finanang support for its custormers These arrangerments fall Into two categones,
credit based guarantees and asset value guarantees. In accordance with the
requirements of IAS 39 finanaal Instruments Recognition and Measurement and
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, credit-based guarantees are treated as insurance contracts
The Group considers asset value guarantees to be non-financial labilities and
accordingly these are also treated as insurance contracts. Provision for nsurance
liabilines 1s made as descnbed above

The Group's contingent llabdiues refating 1o financing arrangements are spread
over many years and relate 1o a number of customers and a broad product portfoko,
and are reported on a discounted basis

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In applying the above accounting policies, management has made appropriate
estimates 1n many areas, and the actual outcore may differ from those calculated
The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
signuficant nsk of causing matenal ad;ustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
habiities within the next finanaal year are

Forecasts and discount rates

The carrying value of a number of items on the balance sheet are dependent on the

estmates of future cash flows ansing from the Group’s operations

- The impairment tests for goodwill are dependent on forecasts of the cash flows
of the cash generating units that give nise to the goodwill and the discount rate
apphed. No impairment resulted from the annual impawrment tests in 2007
{carrying value at Decernber 31, 2007 £801m, Decernber 31, 2006 £735m)

- Ifthe assessment of development, participation, certification and recoverabie
engine costs recognised as Intangible assets indicates the possibility of
impairment, @ detaled impairment test 1s undertaken No imparmenit resutted
fram the assessment in 2007 (carrying value at December 31, 2007 £880m,
December 31, 2006 £674m}

~  The financial labdinies ansing from financial nsk and revenue shanng
parinerships are valued at each reporting date using the amortised cost
methed {carrying value at December 31, 2007 £315m, December 31, 2006
£324m) This Invohves calculating the present value of the forecast cash flows of
the arangerment using the internal rate of return at the inception of the
amangement as the discount rate

- Therealisation of the deferred tax assets (carryng value at December 31, 2007
£81m, Decernber 31, 2006 £141m) recognised s dependent on the generation
of sufficient future taxable profits. The Group recogruses deferred tax assets
where 1t 1s more ltkely than not that the benefit will be realised

Assessment of long-terrm contractual arrangements

The Group has long-term contracts that fall into different accounting penods. In
assessing the allocation of revenues and costs to Indvidual accounting penods, and
the consequential assets and habilities, the Group estimates the total revenues and
costs forecast 1 anse in respect of the contract and the stage of completion based
on an approprate measure of performance as descnbed under revenue recogrition
above
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Post-retirement benefits

The Group’s defined benefit pension schemes and sirmifar arrangements are assessed
annually in accordance with 1AS 19 Employee Benefits The accounting valuation,
which was based on assumptions determined with independent actuanal adwvice,
resulted in a net deficit of £123m before deferred taxation being recognised on the
balance sheet at Decermber 31, 2007 (December 31, 2006 £995m) The size of the net
deficit 1s sensitive 10 the market value of the assets held by the schemes and to
actuanial assumptions, which include pnice inflation, pension and salary increases, the
discount rate used In assessing actuanal liabilities, mortality and other dermographic
assurnphons and the levels of contributions Further details are mcluded in note 17

Provisions

As described in the accountng policy above, the Group measures provisions
{carnnng value at December 31, 2007 £301m, December 31, 2006 £335m) at the
directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obhgation at the
balance sheet date These estimates are made, taking account of nformation
avallable and different possible outcomes

Taxation

The tax payable on profits 1s determined based on tax laws and regulations that
apply in each of the numerous Junsdictons in which the Group operates. Where the
prease impact of these laws and regulations 15 unclear then reasonable estimates
may be used to determne the tax charge included in the finanaial staternents if the
tax eventually payable or reclaimable differs from the amounits onginally esumated
then the difference will be charged or credited in the financial statermnents for the year
i which 1t 1s determined

Contingent habiites

As descnbed n note 22 the Group has significant long-term contingenit obligations
The directors consider that the possibility that there will be any significant loss ansing
from these contingencies as remote In reaching this opiion, the directors have
considered the hkelihood of the contingency crystallising and have taken account of
forecast aircraft values that generally provide secunty against the contingent hakaility

Revisions to IFRS not applicable in 2007

IAS 8 Operating Segmerits 1s applicable for 2009 This standard amends the
requirements for disclosure of segmental performance and will not have any effect
on the Group’s overall reported results

IFRIC 12 Service Concessron Arrangements 1s applicable for 2008, if endorsed for
adoption in the EU If endorsed, the Group will adopt this interpretation in
accounting for its interest in the Future Strategic Tanker Arcraft contract with the
UK Mirustry of Defence There would be no effect on the 2007 reported resubts

IFRIC 14 IAS 19 - The Umit of @ Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirernents and thewr Interaction 15 applicable for 2008 if it 1s endorsed for adoption in
the EU If endorsed, it will provide additional guidance en the conditions under which
net post-retirernent benefit assets may be recognised in the balance sheet. It may
also require additional llabilites to be recognised where minimum funding
requirements exist The application of this interpretation to the Group 15 stll being
assessed, but any changes to the net post-retirernent position recognised would be
included in the staterment of recognised iIncome and expense and would not have
any effect on the iIncome statement.

Amendment to IAS 23 Bormowing Costs 15 apphcable for 2009 o it 1s endorsed for
adoption in the EU If endorsed, the amendment generally eliminates the option to
expense borrowing costs attnbutable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying asset as incurred, and instead requtres the capitalisaton of such
borrowing costs as part of the cost of the specffic asset. The Group 1s currently
assessing the impact of the amendment on the results and net assets.

The Group does nat consider that any other standards or interpretations 1ssued
by the IASB, but not yet applicable, will have a significant Impact on the financial
statements
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2 Segmental analysis

The Group operates In four segments which reflect the internal orgarisation and management structure according to the nature of the products and services provided

Civil aerospace - development, manufacture, marketing and sales of cormmeraal aero engines and aftermarket services.

Defence aerospace - development, manufaciure, markeung and sales of military aerc engnes and aftermarket senaces.

Manne - development, manufacture, marketing and sales of manne propulsion systems and aftermarket services

Energy - development, manufacture, markeung and sales of power systems for the offshore orl and gas industry, electncal power generation and
aftermarket sennces.

Detals for these pnimary reporting segments are shown below

Civil Defence Central
aerospace aergspace Manpe Energy items Eliminations Group
£m £m £m im £m £m im

Analysis by business segments for the year ended December 31, 2007
Revenue from sale of onginal equipment 1417 782 996 251 — — 3446
Revenue from aftermarket services 2,301 854 546 288 — — 3,989
Total revenue 3,718 1,636 1,542 539 — — 7435
Cperating profit excluding share of profit of jont ventures 263 159 90 {15} (49} — 448
Share of profit of joint ventures 45 11 1 9 —_ —_ 66
Loss on sale or termination of businesses — — — {2) — — 2)
Profit/(loss} before financing and taxation 308 170 9N {8} (49) — 512
Finanang income 762 762
Finanaing costs (496) (496)
Taxation (133) (133)
Profit for the year 645
Other mformation
Segment assets 6,051 998 1,698 644 — (461) 8,930
Investments In joint ventures 214 34 5 31 — —_ 284
Cash and short-term imvestrnents 1,936 1,936
Far value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 42 42
Income tax assets 88 88
Post-retirement scherne surpluses 210 210
Total assets 11,490
Segment liabilites {4,005} {1,279} {1,195) 329) — 461 {6,347)
Borrowings (1.064) (1.064)
Fa value of swaps hedaing foed rate borrgwings (27 27)
Income tax habilibes {533) (533)
Post-reurement scheme deficits {333) (333)
‘Total habilives (8,304)
Expenditure on intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 479 73 33 15 600
Depreciauon and amortisation 164 28 ril 20 233
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fm £m £m £m fm £m

Analysis by business segments for the year ended December 31, 2006'
Revenue from sale of onginal equipment 1,543 733 812 267 — — 3,355
Revenue from aftermarket services 2,232 836 483 245 — - 3,801
Total revenue 3,775 1,569 1,300 512 — — 7.156
Operating profit excluding share of profit of joint veritures 446 183 103 (33} 47) — 652
Share of profit of joint ventures 36 5 1 5 — — 47
Profit on sale or termination of businesses 1 — — — — — 1
Profit/{loss) before financang and taxation 483 188 104 {28) 47 — 700
Financing income 1,335 1,335
Financing costs {498) (498)
Taxation {397) (397)
Profit for the year 1,140
Other information
Segment assets 5473 960 1,406 646 — (264) 8221
Investrments in joint ventures 184 24 4 28 -~ — 240
Cash and short-term investments 2218 2218
Farr value of swaps hedging fixed rate bormowings 27 27
Income tax assets 146 146
Post-retirement scheme surpluses 22 22
Total assets 10874
Segment liabiliies (3,768} (1,067) (867) (319) — 264 (5,757)
Borrowings (1,390) (1,390)
Fasr value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings (30 (30
Income tax labilities (443) (443)
Post-retirement scheme deficits (1,017 (1,017
Total liabikimes (8,637)
Expenditure on intangble assets and property, plant and equipment 437 52 24 15 528
Depreciation and amorusation 162 30 20 19 231
Impairments (10) — — — (10}

¥ Comparatve information has been restated in ke with the reclassifications made in the year (see notes 10 11 14 and 17}
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2 Segmental analysis contnued

Geographical segments
The Group's revenue by destination 1s shown below

2007 2006

£m fm

United Kingdom 1,185 944
Rest of Furope 1478 1,159
USA 2,232 2458
Canada 274 207
Asia 1,785 1,902
Afnca 108 78
Australasia 137 146
Cther 236 262
7A35 7,156

The following analysis shows the carnying amounts of the Group’s assets, and additions to Intzngible assets and property, plant and equipment, by the geographical area in

which the assets are located

Additions to intangible

assets and property,
Segment assets plant and equipment

Restated™
2007 206 2007 2A06
£m im m fm
United Kingdom 7,768 7852 517 467
North Amenca 1,465 1,284 39 22
Nordic countnes 1,280 1,083 18 15
Germany 645 604 20 19
Other 394 131 6 5
Eliminations {62) (280) — o
11,490 10,874 600 528

* Comparatrve informancn has been restated in line wath the redassifications made in the year (see notes 10,11, 14 and 17}
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2 Segmental analysis conpnued

Undertying performance
As discussed in the Finance Duector’s review on page 23, the Group seeks to present a measure of underbang performance that excludes tems considered to be
nen-undertying n nature

Underhyng sales exclude the release of the foreign exchange transition hedging reserve and reflect the achieved US dollar exchange rate ansing on settled denvative
contracts.

Underying profit before financing includes amounts realised from settled denvative contracts (pnmarily relating to cvit aerospace) and for 2007, excludes the £130m of
past Service post-retirement Costs.

In addmion, underhying profit before taxabon excludes the unrealised amounts ansing from revaluations required by IAS 32 financial instruments Presentation and
LAS 39 financial nstruments Recogrition and Measurement and the net impact of financing costs related to post-renrement scheme benefits.

Underlying profit adjustrnents
2007 2006
Profit before  Profit before  Profit before  Profit before
finanding tax financing tax
£m £m im £m
Profit per consohdated mcome statement 512 778 700 1537
Release of transition hedging reserve {149) (149} (289 (289)
Reahsed gains on settled dervative contracts 45 420 343 370
Net unrealised fair value changes to denvative contracts — (251) — (730)
Effect of currency on contract accounting {76) {76) 1 1
Revaluation of trading assets and labtlties — 10 — 4
Financial RRSPs - foreign exchange differences and changes in forecast payments — 13 — (39
Net post-retirement scheme financing — {30) — (3)
Fost-retrement schernes — past service costs’ 130 130 — —
Total undertying adjustments 320 67 55 (686)
Underiying profit 832 845 755 851

1 s part of s ongoing discussions wath the Trustees of its UK pension schemes, the Group agreed to reflect changes in HM Revenue & Custorns practice and increase the size of the lump sum payment retuees
are able to recerve by commuting part of the pension Like many ather emplovers, the Group has also ncreased the amount of the tumg sumn payment for the pension commuted Updating the
COMMaton amangernents to reflect these factors increases the post-renrement kability by £100m.

The Group has also agreed a 2 per cent discrebionary increase apphcable 1o pensions that do not benefit from any guaranteed increase which increases the hatuhty by £30m

Underlying profit reconciliation

2007 2006
Underlying  Undertying Underbing  Underbng
adjustments results adjustments results
£m £m £m £m m fm

Profit before financing
Crvil aerospace 308 256 564 483 40 523
Defence aerospace 170 29 199 188 7 195
Marnne 91 22 113 104 (2) 102
Energy (8) 13 5 (28 10 (18)
Central items {49) — (49) {47) — @n
512 320 832 700 55 755
Net financing 266 (253) 13 837 {(741) 96
Profit before taxation 778 57 845 1,537 {686) 851
Texation {133) (60) {193) (397} 207 (150

Profit after taxation 645 7 652 1,140 (479 661
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3 Operating profit and profit before taxation

2007 2006
£m fm
After crediting
RRSP receipts — credited to other operating income 50 57
Operanng lease rentals receivable - credited within revenue from aftermarket seraces 27 30
After charging
Amortisation of certification costs 7 5
Amortisation of development costs 18 16
Amortisation of recoverable engine costs 28 30
Amortsation of software and other ntangible assets 10 9
Depreciation and impatrment of owned property, plant and equipment! 163 153
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment held under finance leases* 7 8
Operating lease rentals payable - hire of plant and equipmenit 58 62
— hire of other assets 18 23
Research and development expendrture 381 370
RRSP paymenits ~ induded in cost of sales 199 162
1 Including appropnate amounts charged to Irventones
Fees payable to the Compary's auditors and its associates were as foflows
2007 2006
£m £m
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements 17 16
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and its associates for other services
The audst of the Company’s subsidianies pursuant to fegislatron 20 1.8
Other services pursuant to leguslation 01 0.2
Qther services relating to taxation 03 04
All other services - 03
41 43
Fees payable in respect of the Group's pension schemes
Audit 02 01
Other services relating 1o taxation 01 01
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2007 2006
Underlying tnderang
finandng financing
£m im fm
Financing income
Interest recevable 83 83 82 82
Farr value gains on foreign currency contracts (note 15)° 215 — 696 —
Financial RRSPs — foreign exchange differences and changes in forecast payments — — 39 —
Farr value gams on commaxiity dernatives (note 15)! 36 — 14 —
Expected retum on post-retirement scheme assets {note 17) 384 — 343 —
Fair value adjustments relating to parent company shares held under trust 43 43 139 139
Other financing income 1 i 2 2
762 127 1,335 223
Financing costs
Interest payable (88) (88} {(100) (100}
Financial RRSPs — foreign exchange differences and changes in forecast payments {13) = - —_
Financial charge refating to financial RRSPs (26) {26) 27 27
Interest on post-retrernent scheme liabilities (note 17) (359) — (340) =
Net foreign exchange losses (15) — Gn —
{496) {114) (498) {127}
Net financaing 266 13 837 96
Analysed as
Net interest payable (5) (5) (8 (18
Net post-retrement scheme financing 30 — 3 —
Net other financing 241 18 852 114
Net finanaing 266 13 837 96
1 Net gain on iterns held for trading 251 — 730 —
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5 Taxation
UK Qverseas Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m fm £m £m fm
Current tax
Current tax charge for the year 47 51 72 66 119 117
Less double tax relief (7) {47 -— — (7) 472
40 4 72 66 112 70
Adjustrents in respect of prior years {27) (2 2 (6) (6) 8
13 2 93 60 106 62
Deferred tax
Defermed tax charge for the year 65 296 13 33 78 329
Adjustments in respect of pror years (8) 1 (8) 5 16] 6
Deferred tax credit resutng from reduction in tax rates! (23) — {12) — 35 —
34 297 (N 38 27 335
Recognised in the income statement 47 299 86 98 133 397
Other tax charges/icredits)
2007 2006
£m im
Recogrused in the staterment of recognised income and expense - deferred tax’ 95 43
Recognised directly in equity — current tax (43) {8
- — deferred tax 23 (58)
75 (33)

1 Deferred tax assets and hablites have been restated o reflect the reductions in corporate tax rates in the UK and Germany which take effect in 2008, The resuling charges or credits have been recognised in
the iIncome staternent except to the extent that they relate to tems prevously charged or credited to the statement of recognised ncome and expense o equity Accordingly in 2007 £35m has been credited
to the income statement, £9m has been charged to the statement of recogrised income and expense, and £5m has been charged dwectly 1o equity

Tax reconabation

2007 2006
£m £
Profit before taxation 778 1,537
Less share of profits of joint ventures (note 9) (66) 47
Profit before taxation excluding joint ventures 712 1490
Norninal tax charge at UK corporation tax rate 30% (2006 30%) 214 447
UK R&D credit 22) (19
Gther ems (2 {29
Adjustrments in respect of pror years 22) )
Reduction in opening deferred taxes resulting from reduction in tax rate {35) -
133 397

Analysis of taxation charge
Underhying tems (note 2) 193 190
Non-underiving items {60} 207

133 397
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5 Taxahon conunued
Deferred taxation assets and liabilities
2007 2006
£m fm
At January 1 (111) 213
Amount charged 1o Income staternent 27) (335)
Amount charged 1o staternent of recogrised income and expense (SORIE} {95) “3)
Amount {charged)/credited to equity {23) 58
On acquisition of business — 1
Exchange maovemenis {8) 6]
At December 31 {264) {1t1)
Analysed as
Deferred tax assets 81 141
Deferred tax liabikties (345) (252)
{264) (111)
Deferred tax not recogrused on unused tax losses and other items? 160 154

! Deferred tax not recognised on the bas's that the future economic benefit 15 uncertain

The analysis of the deferred tax position 15 as follows

At Recognised At

January 1, intncome  Recognised  Recognised Exchange December 31,

2007 statement in SORIE mequity movements 2007

£m £m £m £m £m £m
Property, plant and equipment {145) 2 — — — {143)
Other temporary differences {278) 84 — (23} (6) {223)

Pensions and other post-retirement scherne benefits 314 (133) (144} — (2) 35
Foreign exchange and commodity financial assets and abriities (183} 13 49 - — (121)

Losses 117 7 — — — 124

Advance corporation tax 64 — — — — 64
{111) (27) (95) (23} {8} (264)

In addwon, there are temporary differences of £943m (2006 £593m) relating to Investments in subsidianes and joint ventures. No deferred tax has been provided in respect

of these differences, since the urming of the reversals can be controlfed and 1t 1s probabte that the temporary differences will not reverse in the future

6 Employee mformation

2007 2006
Number Number

Average weekly number of Group emnployees dunng the year
United Kingdom 22,900 22,500
Overseas 15,700 14,800
38,600 37,300
Cwil aerospace 22,800 21,800
Defence aerospace 5,600 5,400
Marine 7,700 7,400
Energy 2,500 2,700
38,600 37,300
£m £m

Group employment costs !

Wages and salanes 1,534 1456
Social secunty costs 172 158
Share-based payments (note 20) 36 36
Pensions and other post-fetirement scheme benefits (note 17) 248 145
1,990 1,795

! Rermuneration of key management personnel is shown in note 23
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7  Intangible assets

Cerufication
costs and
partiapation Development Recoverable Software
Goodwill fees expenditure engine costs and other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost:
At January 1, 2006 751 284 3’ 265 44 1,725
Exchange adjustments (23) — — — — (23)
Additions - Sl 41 64 29 225
On acquisitions of businesses 7 — — — 3 10
Disposals — m — — (6) 1]
At January 1, 2007 735 374 422 329 70 1,930
Exchange adjustments 59 1 — — — 60
Addrtions — 129 9 37 39 296
On acquisitions of brsinesses 7 — 1 — 1 9
Disposals — — —_ — (1) {1)
At December 31, 2007 801 504 514 366 109 2,294
Accumulated amortisation and impairment:
At January 1, 2006 — 138 116 146 10 410
Provided during the year {charged to cost of sales) — 5 16 30 S 60
At January 1, 2007 —_ 143 132 176 19 470
Provided dunng the year (charged to cost of sales) — 7 18 28 10 63
At December 31, 2007 - 150 150 204 29 533
Net book value at December 31, 2007 801 354 364 162 B0 1,761
Net book value at December 31, 2006 735 231 290 153 51 1,460
Net book value at January 1, 2006 751 146 265 119 34 1,315

Goodwill

In accordance with the requirements of 1AS 36 Imparment of Assets, goodwall 15 allocated to the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination that gave nise to the goodwil as follows

Cash-generating unit (CGU) or group of CGUs.

Primary reporting 2007 2006

segment fm Em

Ralls-Royce Deutschland Lid & Co KG Civil aerospace 203 186
Commercial manne - ansing from the acquisiion of Vinters ple Marne 514 470
Energy - ansing from the acquison of Rolls-Royce Energy Systerns Inc. Energy 54 55
Oiher Vanous 30 24
801 735

Goodwill has been tested for impairment duning 2007 on the following basis.
- The carrying value of goodwall has been assessed by reference to value in use Values in use have been esumated using cash flows fiom the most recent forecasts

prepared by management. Given the long-term nature of the business in which the Group operates, these typically farecast the next ten years. Growth rates for the
penod not covered by the forecasts are based on a range of growth rates that reflect the praducts, Industnies and countries tn which the relevant CGU or group of

CGUs operate

- Thekey assumptions on which the cash flow projections for the rost recent forecast are based are discount rates, growth rates and the impact of foreign exchange

rates on the relationship between selling prices and Costs

- The pre-tax cash flow projections have been discounted at 1275 per cent, based on the Group's weighted average cost of caprtal
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tand and Plantand Aircraftand  In course of

buildings  equipment engines  construchon Total
fm £m im £m £m
Cost:
At January 1, 2006 587 1,953 212 210 2962
Exchanige adjustments {16) 1 07 ) (88)
Addimons 4 78 44 177 303
On acquisitions of businesses — 2 —_— — 2
Reciassificanons 28 97 — (125) —
Disposalsiwrite-offs (18 (83) (84) ()] (184
At January 1, 2007 587 1,996 155 257 2,995
Exchange adjustments 19 39 — 2 60
Addmions 22 88 92 102 304
On acquisitions of businesses 1 — — — 1
On dispasal of businesses — {4) — — {4}
Reclassihcatons 70 111 4 (185} —
Transferred to assets held for sale — — {12) — (12}
Disposals/write-offs —_ (120) {65) — (185)
At December 31, 2007 699 2,110 174 176 3,159
Accumulated depreaation and impairment;
At Janary 1, 2006 141 1,066 106 — 1313
Exchange adjustments 5 33) @ - 47
Impairmenit adjustment ! — - 09 - 0o
Provided duning the year 22 139 10 — 171
Disposals/write-offs @ (76} (54) — [{ED)]
At January 1, 2007 150 1,096 43 — 1,289
Exchange adjustments 7 24 — — 31
Provided during the year 23 139 ] — 170
On drsposal of businesses — (2) - et (2
Transferred to assets held for sale — — (5} — (5}
Disposals/write-offs — {111) (26} — (137}
At December 31, 2007 180 1.146 20 — 1,346
Net book value at December 31, 2007 519 964 154 176 1,813
Net book value at December 31, 2006 437 900 112 257 1,706
Net book value at January 1, 2006 446 887 106 210 1649
' Imparrment charge reversal of £nil (2006 £10m} refating to arcraft, as a resutt of improved lease terrns andl values provided by independent aircraft appraisers.
Property, ptant and equipment indudes
2007 2006
£m £m
Net book value of Ainance leased assets
Land and buildings 9 g
Plant and equiprnent 14 21
Assets held for use in operating leases
Cost 141 148
Depreciation (18) 42)
Net book value 123 106
Non-depreciable land 94 92
Land and buildings at net bock value compnse
Freehold 489 406
Long leasehold 13 15
Short leasehold 17 16
519 437
Capital expenditure commitments — contracted but not prowided for 82 9
Net book value of assets held as security for iabiites — 48
Cost of fully depreciated assets 382 420
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9  [Investments

Joint ventires Other!

Parent

Share of post Unlisted company

Shares  acquisition inwvestinents  shares held
atcost reserves Loans Total atcost! undertrust Total
£m im £m fm £m £m £m
At January 1, 2006 131 98 18 247 52 293 345
Exchange adjustments 4 (13) — (17 — —_ —
Additions 8 — 3 11 1 47 48
Taxavon paid by the Group — 2 — 2 — — —
Faw value adjustments — — —_ — — 2 2
Impairment (21) 17 6) (102 —_ —_ —
Share of retained profit — 13 — i3 — — —
Amortisation/disposals {4} [} (1) {6)? 2) (268) (270)
AtJanuary 1, 2007 110 116 14 240 51 74 125
Exchange adjustments 1 5 - 6 — — -
Addimons 13 - — 13 6 78 84
Taxation paid by the Group — 2 — 2 — — —
Fair value adjustments — — — — — 15 15
Share of retained profit — 24 — 24 — — —
Amortisaton/disposals — m —_ (1} —_ {135) {135)
At December 31, 2007 124 146 14 284 57 32 89

! These pnmanly compnse floating rate convertible loan stock.

* Impatrrment charge of £10m recogrised in 2006 1o reflect the write down of the Groups investment in Permbroke Group 1o its recoverable arount of £1m. In addibion previous impairment charges in respect
of Pembroke Group which were all charged against share of post acquisiban reserves, were reallocated in 2006,
¥ Indudes £5e for Data Systems & Solutons. The remaining 50 per cent of this jomt venture was acquired dunng 2006 and as such it has been induded in the consolidated results of the Group from the date of

the transaction,

Investments in joint ventures are represented by

2007 2006
£m fm
Share of aggregate assets

Non-current assets* 658 585
Current assets 635 645

Share of aggregate labiivies *
Current habilities (523) (551
Non-current habilies (486) (439
284 240
* Non-current assets Include goodwill of 7 7
* Liabihties include borrowangs of (372) (358)
2007 2006
£m £m
Share of income 94 82
Share of interest 21} [P£)]
Share of taxauon {7} (12}
Share of profit of joint ventures recognised in the income staterment 66 47
Dnidend recenved (a2) @4
Share of retained profit 24 3

The tax charge on joint venture profits represents an effective tax rate of 10 per cent (2005 20 per cent), a decrease of 10 per cent This results from a change 1n profit mix

between joint ventures taxed at different effective rates.

The principa! joint ventures are listed on pages 91 and 92
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Restated®
2007 2006
im £m
Raw matenals 223 156
Work in progress 732 766
Long-term contracts work in progress 93 121
Finished goods 1,123 mn
Payrments on account 32 31
Inventory per balance sheet 2,203 1845
Progress payments recened against other inventery {426) (398)
Net inventory after progress payments 1,777 1447
Inventones stated at net realisable value 154 116
Amount of Inventory write-down 79 46
Reversal of inventory write-down 6 7

* Progress payments induded in the pior year have been redassified as follows: recenved against long term contracts {£18m) offset aganst Long-term contracts work in progress above receved against ather

nventory (£398m) included within Trade and cther payables’- see nate 14

11 Trade and other recervables

Restated*
2007 2006
£m £m
Trade recenables 889 864
Amounts recoverable on contracts 904 820
Amounts owed by jont ventures 300 241
Other recervables 315 308
Prepayments and accrued income 177 235
2,585 24681
Analysed as
Financial instruments
Trade recervables and similar items (note 15) 1,211 1,210
Other non-denvatwve financial assets (note 15) 321 300
Non-financial instruments (note 15) 1,053 958
2,585 2468
1 Trade and other recevables expected to be recovered in more than one year
Trade recevables 26 12
Amounits recoverable on contracts 704 624
Amounts owed by joint ventures 29 26
Other recenvables 40 65
Prepayrnents and accrued income 28 9
827 826
*Prepayrments and accnsed income 1n the peor year have been restated from £232m 10 £235m on the adoption of IFRXC 11 Group and Treasury Share Transocoons
12 Cash and cash equrvalents
2007 2006
£m £fm
Cash at bank and in hand 1,264 756
Short-term deposits 632 1,428
1,896 2184
Qverdrafis (note 13) (25} {14)
Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement {page 30} 1,871 2170
Cash held as collateral against third party obligations 60 58
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13 Bomrowings
Current Non-current
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m tm £m fm
Unsecured
Cverdrafts 25 14 — —
Bank loans 3 4 2 3
6 %% Notes 2007 €500m? — 337 — —
7 %% Notes 2016 £200m — — 200 200
584% Notes 210 US5187m? — — 97 96
£38% Notes 2013 U55230m? — — 123 121
£655% Notes 2015 US583m?2 -— — 46 44
4 /1% Notes 2011 €750m! — — 534 454
Other Joan 2008 (interest rate nd) 1 — — 1
Secured
Bank igans3 — 38 24 24
Oblgauons under finance leases payable * (note 21)
Less than one year 5 7 — —
Between one and two years — — 3 4
Between two and five years — — — 2
After five years — — 1 1
34 400 1,030 990
Repayable
Between one and two years— by instalments 4 6
Between two and five years — by instalments 1 4
- gthermise 655 614
After five years — by instaimenits 1 1
- otherwise 369 365
1,030 990

' These notes are the subject of swap agreements under which counterparties have undertaken to pay amounts at fixed rates of nterest and exchange in consideration for amounts payable at vanable rates of
nterest and at fixed exchange rates.

2 Thesa notes are the subject of nterest rate swap agreerments under which the Group has undertaken to pay floating rates of interest, and currency swaps which form a farr value hedge

3 Secured on ancraft,

* Obligations under finance leases are secured by related leased assets

14 Trade and other payables

Current Non-Curment
Restated”

2007 2006 2007 2006
£m im £m fm
Payments received on account' 1,226 1,055 332 171
Trade payables 778 654 — —
Amounts owed 10 Joint ventures 272 167 32 3
Amounts owed to parent undertaking 413 577 — —
Other taxation and socal securry 64 50 — —
Qther payables 766 73t 103 200
Aceruals and deferred income 1,217 1031 498 425
4,736 4,265 965 827
! Includes payments recewved from joint ventures 195 139 25 62

Total trade and other payables are analysed as
2007 2006
fm Im

Financial instrurments

Trade payables and simiar tems {note 15) 1,872 1,735
Other non-denvauve financia! liabilites (note 15) 315 282
Non-financial instruments (note 15) 3,514 3,075
5,701 5,092

* Payments recetved on account’in 2006 have been restated from £657m due to the reclassification from Tnventory’of £398m of progress payments recerved against other Inventory Amounts owed to parent
undertakung have beer restated from £554m to £577m on the adoption of IFRIC 11 Group and Treasury Share Transacpons
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The carrying values of the Group's financial instruments {together with non-financial Instruments for reconciling purpases) are analysed as follows

2007 2006
Financial instruments Financial instrurments
Non- Non-financial Non-  Nor-finanaal
Detivative derivative  Instruments Tatal Dernatrve dervatve  wstruments Toral
Notes £m £m £m £m im im im im
Assets.
Unlisted non-current asset investments ¥ 9 — 57 — 57 — 51 — 51
Parent company shares held under trust? 9 — 32 — 32 — 74 — 74
Other non-current assets — — 4,149 4,149 — — 3,569 3,569
Trade and other receivables *
Trade recenvables and similar rterms! 11 —_ 1,211 — 1,211 — 1,210 — 1,210
Other non-dervatve financial assets ! 11 — 32 — 321 — 300 — 300
Non-financial instruments i1 — — 1,053 1,053 — — 958 958
Other financiaf assets’ 514 — — 514 644 — — 644
Short-term investments *4 — 40 —_ 40 — 34 — 34
Cash and cash equivalents *
Cash at bank and in hand 12 — 1,264 -— 1,264 — 756 — 756
Short-term deposits 12 — 632 — 632 — 1428 — 1428
Other current assets — — 2,217 2,217 — — 1,850 1,850
514 3,557 7419 11,490 44 3853 6,377 10874
Liabtlities
Borrowings - current® 13 — (34) — (34 — (500) — (400)
— non-current® 13 — {1,030 — (1,030] — (990) — (990)
Other financial habilities
Financial RRSPs - {315) — (315) — (324) — (324)
Other (57) — — (57) (36) — — (36)
Trade and other payables.*
Trade payables and similar items 14 —_ (1,872) —_ 1,872) —_— 1,735) — {1.735)
Other non-denvative financial abiities 14 — (315) _ (315) — {282) — (282)
Non-financial instruments 14 — — 3,514) 3,514 — — (3,075) {3,075)
Other lizbilities — —_ 1,167) 1,167 — — (1,795) {1,795)
(57) (3.566) {4,681) {8,304) (36) (3.731) 4,870) 8,637)
Net assets/{habilities) 457 {9} 2,738 3,186 608 122 1,507 2237

The far value of a financial Instrument 1s the price at which an asset could be exchanged, or a hability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length
transaction Fair values have been determined with reference to available market information at the balance sheet date, using the methodologies discussed below

! Loans and recenvables.

2 These pnmarily comprise Roating rate convertible loan stock The conversion condinons are such that fair value approximates to the book value

3 Farr value & determuned using the market value bd pce

* Farr values are assumed to approwrmate to cost erther due to the shart term maturty of the Instrurments or because the interest rate of the irvestments 1s reset after pencxds Not exceeding six months,

3 Where available market values have been used to deterrmine fair values Where market values are not readily avadable {prnapally in respect of denvatives, borrowings and financial RRSPS) fair values have been
estimated by discounting expected futuze cash flows using prevading inerest rate curves. Amounits denomenated in foreign currenaes are valued at the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date
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15 Financial instruments continued

Fair values equate to book values for both 2007 and 2006, with the following exceptions

2007 2006
Book value Fair value Book value Farrvalue
£m £m £m
Botrowngs - current {34) (34) {400) {402)
— NOrECURernt {1,030} {1,058) {990} (1,030
Financial RRSPs {315} (340) {324) (347)
The carrying values of financal assets and liabilities by category, as defined by IAS 39 financiol instruments. Recognition and Measurernent, are as follows
2007 2006
£m fm
Assets
Held for trading 514 644
Loans and recevables 1,629 1,595
Avalable for sale 664 1,502
Cash 1,264 756
Lialilmes
Held for trading (57) (36)
Financial liabdities at amortised cost {3,566) (3,731
448 730
Carrying values of other finanaal assets and habiliies
Foreign
exchange Commodiy Interest rate Finanaal
contracts contracts contracts RRSPs Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At December 31, 2007
Assets 433 3% 42 — 514
Uabilties (54) — 3) (315) (372)
379 a9 39 (315) 142
At December 31, 2006
Assets 578 39 27 — 644
Liabilities (24) — 12) (324) (360)
554 39 15 (324) 284
Other financial habilities are analysed as follows
2007 2006
im fm
Current habilities 69) (24)
Norrcurent liabilities {303 (336)
{372 (360)
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15 Financal instruments continued

Foreign exchange and commodity financial instruments

The Group uses various financial Instruments to manage its exposure 1o movernents in foreign exchange rates The Group uses cormmaodity swaps to manage Its exposure to
movements in the pace of commodities {jet fuel and base metals) Frorn January 1, 2005, the Group has not included foraign exchange or commodity financal instruments
mn any cash flow hedging relationships for accounting purpeses To hedge the currency risk assoctated with a borrowing denorminated in US dollars, the Group has currency

dervatves designated as part of fair value hedges.

Movements in the fair values of foreign exchange and commaodity instruments were as follows

Foreign exchange instruments Commodity instruments
Included in Induded in
transition  Incfuded in trensition  tncluded In
hedging mcome hedging Income
Total reserve  statement Total reserve  statement
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At January 1, 2006 228 538 3 5
Fair value changes o denvative contracts not In accounting hedging relationships’ 656 — 696 34 — 34
Fair value changes 1o farr value hedges ™ (26) — (26) — — —
Fair value of contracts settled {344} — — (26) — —
Transferred to revenue — (284) 284 — 5 5
At January 1, 2007 554 254 39 —
Farr value changes 1o denvative contracts not in accounting hedging relationships’ 215 - 215 36 — 36
Fair value changes 1o far value hedges'? )] — (6} — - —
Fair value of contracts settled (384) — — {36} — -
Transferred to reverue — (149) 149 - - —
At December 31, 2007 379 105 39 —

! \nduded tn financing
% Gain on related hedged items £6m (2006 £26m)

Interest rate financial nstruments

The Group uses interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and nterest rate caps 1o Manage Its EXposUre 1o movements in interest rates. Where the effectiveness of the
hedge relatonship In a cash flow hedge s demonstrated, changes in the fair value that are deemed effective are included in the hedging reserve and released to match

actual payments on the hedged tem

Movements in the fair values of interest rate financial instruments were as follows

Included in Qther
farvalue interestrate Includedin
hedging finanoal income
Total relationshlps [Instruments  statement
£m £m £m £m
At January 1, 2006 62 6% )]
Changes deemed ineffective for cash flow hedge accounting purposes’ 4 — 4 4
Cther changes *2 (51} {51) — (51)
At January 1, 2007 15 18 (3}
Other changes '2 24 24 —_ 24
At December 31, 2007 39 42 (3)

! Induded in finanang.
2 Maovernent on related hedged items £24m loss (2006 £51m gair)
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15 Finanaal instruments conunued

Financial nsk and revenue shanng partnerships (RRSPs)

The Group has financial iabiliies ansing from financial RRSPs These financial fiabilimes are valued at each reporting date using the amortised cost method This involves
calculating the present value of the forecast cash flows of the arrangements using the intemal rate of return at the inception of the arrangements as the discount rate

Movements in the amortsed cost values of financial RRSPs were as follows.

2007 2006

im £m

At January 324 423

Cash pad to partners {55} 87)

Exchange adjustments direct to reserves 7 =

Financing charge? 26 27
Excluded from underying profit

Exchange adjustments’ {7} 42

Restructunng of financial RRSP agreements and changes in forecast payments® 20 3

At December 31 315 324

! Induded in finanang.
Risk management polices and hedging activities

The principal financial nsks to which the Group s exposed are foreign currency exchange rate nisk, interest rate nsk, and commodity pnce nsk. The Board has approved
policies for the management of these nsks

Foreign currency exchange rate nsk = The Group has significant cash flows {most significantly US dollars, followed by the Euro) denorminated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant trading entity To manage its exposures to changes in values of future foreign currency cash fiows, so as to maintain relatvely stable
long-term foreign exchange rates on settled transactions, the Group enters into dervatve forward foreign currency transactions For accounting purposes, these desvatve
contracts are not destgnated as hedging instruments.

The Group also has exposures 1o the fair values of non-dervauve financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies. To manage the nsk of changes in these farr
values, the Group enters into dervative farward foreign exchange contracts, which are designated as fair value hedges for accounting purpases.,

The Group regards its interests in overseas subsidiary companies as long-term investrnents The Group aims to match as translational exposures by matching the
currencies of assets and liabilties Where appropnate, foreign currency finanoal habifiies may be designaied as hedges of the net investment.

Interest rate nisk ~ The Group’s interest rate nsk is prmanly in refanion to 1ts fixed rate borrowings {fair value nsk) and floaung rate borowings (cash flow risk) Interest rate
denvatives are used to manage the overall interest rate profile wathin the Group policy, which is to maintain a higher proportion of net debt at fixed rates of interest having
regard 1o the prevailng nterest rate outlook. These are designated as esther fair value or cash flow hedges as appropnate

Commodity risk - The Group has exposures to the pnce of jei fuet and base metals ansing from business operatons. To rmurimuse its cash fiow exposures 1o changes in
commaodity pnces, the Group enters into denvative commodity transactions For accounting purposes, these dervative contracts are not designated as hedging instruments,

Gther price risk—The Group’s cash equivalent balances represent investments in money market instrurnents, with a serm of up to one month The Group does not consider
that these are subject to significant price risk.

Liquichty nsk - The Group's policy 1s to hold finangial Investments and maintain undrawn committed facilities at a level sufficient to ensure that the Group has available funds
to meet its medium-term capical and funding obligations and to meet any unforeseen obligations and opportunities The Group holds cash and short-term investments,
which together with the undrawn committed facities, enable the Group to manage 1ts hquidity nsk.

Credit nsk - The Group 15 exposed to credit nsk 10 the extent of non-payment by either its customers or the counterparties of its financial instruments The Group has credit
policies covering both trading and financial exposures. At the balance sheet date, there were no significant concentrations of credi nsk. The maximum exposure to credit
nsk at the balance sheet date I1s represented by the carnying value of each financial asset, including dervative financial Instruments
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15 Financal instruments continued
Dervative finanaal instruments
The nominal ameunts and fair values of denvative finanoial instruments are as follows, analysed by year of expected maturity
2007
Expected maturity Fair value
Nommal Within Betweenone Betweentwo After
amount one year and two years and five years five years Assets Liabilives
im £m £m im £m £m £m
Foreign exchange contracts
Farr value hedges {280) — -~ (105) (175) - 27)
Nen-hedge accounted 5,168 2,135 1.816 1,217 — 433 (27}
Interest rate contracts
Fair value hedges 751 — — 594 157 42 —
Non-hedge accounted 74 20 18 16 20 — {3}
Commodity contracts.
Non-hedge accounted 166 9 55 20 — 39 —
5,879 2,246 1,889 1,742 2 514 (57)
2006
Expected matunty Fawr value
Normnal Within  Betweerione  Between two After
amount one year and twoyears and five years five years Assets Liabilites
tm fm fm tm fm £m tm
Foreign exchange contracts
Fair value hedges (280) — — (105) (175) — 21
Non-hedge accounited 5473 1861 1964 1,648 — 578 (3
Interest rate contracts.
Fair value hedges 1,669 313 — 596 160 27 @
Non-hedge accounted 98 21 21 34 2 — (3
Commodity contracts
Nen-hedge accounted 152 68 49 35 — 39 —
6,512 2,263 2034 2,208 7 644 (36)

As descnbed above, all denvative finanaial instruments are entered into for nsk management purposes, although these may not be designated into hedging relationships for

accounting purposes
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15 Finanaal mstruments continued

Dervauve financial Instrumens related to foreign exchange nisks are denominated in the following currencies

2007
Currendes purchased forward
Sterling US dollar Euro Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Currencies sold forward
Sterling _— 280 —_— 30 310
US dollar 5,136 — 922 41 6,489
Euro —_ — — 497 497
Other 3 12 151 98 264
2006
Currenaes purchased forward
Stering US dollar Euro Other Totat
£m fm £m £m £m

Currencies sold forward
Sterling — 280 — 16 296
US dollar 5543 — 466 351 6,360
Euro — — — 241 241
Other 3 22 77 29 131

Other denvative financal instruments are denominated in the following currencies

2007 2006
£m im
Sterling 20 22
US dollar 470 g4
Euro 500 813

Other —
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15 Finanaal instruments continued
Non-denvative finanaal instruments
Non-dervatve financial instruments are denominated in the following currencies
2007
Sterling US dollar Eura Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Unlisted non-current investments 46 6 2 3 57
Parent company shares held under irust 32 — — - 32
Trade recevables and similar iems 233 720 133 125 1,211
Other non-denvative financial assets 150 68 40 63 N
Short-term investments 40 — — — 40
Cash at bank and in hand 160 376 608 120 1,264
Short-term deposits 319 293 3 17 632
980 1,463 786 328 3,557
Liabilhes
Borrowings — current (5} 3 (1} (25) (34)
= NOR-cument {203) (290, (537) — {1,030)
Financial RRSPs — (315) — —_ {315)
Trade payables and similar terms {959) (495} (248) (170} (1.872)
Other non-denvative financial labilities {148) (85} (35) (47) (315)
{1,315) {1,188} (821) {242} {3.566)
{335) 275 {35) 86 (9)
2006
Sterkng US dolkar Euro Other Total
im £m im £m im
Assets
Unlisted non-current investments 46 1 2 2 51
Parent cornpany shares held under trust 74 — — — 74
Trade recenvables and similar tems 270 728 114 98 1,210
Other non-denvative financial assets 113 90 44 53 300
Short-term investments 4 — — — 34
Cash at bank and in hand 104 55 335 62 756
Short-term deposits 1,250 157 B 13 1,428
1,891 1,231 503 228 3,853
Liabilities L
Borrowings — current @ () (341) an (400)
- non-current (206) (285) (498) (1) (950)
Financial RRSPs — (324) — — {324)
Trade payables and similar items (890) (512) (236) {97) (1,735)
Other non-denvative finanoial hablimes (158) {63) {5) {56) (282)
{1,261) {1,225} (1,080) (165) (3,731)
630 6 (577) 63 122
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15 Finanaal instruments continued

Currency exposures

The Group's actual currency exposures after taking account of demvatrve foreign currency contracts, which are not designated as hedging instrurments for accounting

purposes are as follows

2007
Sterling Us dollar Eura Other Total
Functional currency of Group operation Em £m £m im £m
Sterling — 3 — 2 5
US dollar 6 - — [ 12
Euro — 5 — —_ 5
Other —_ 4 9 12 25
2006
Sterlirvg US dollar Eurc Cther Total
Functional currency of Group operation £n im £m fm £m
Sterling — 3 1 8] 3
US dollar 4 — — 2 6
Euro (1) — — — {1)
Other 1 7 7 7 22
Ageing beyond contractual due date
The ageing beyond contractual due date of the Group's financial assets 1s
2007
Between
Upto threemonths  Morethan
Within three months and one year ohe year
terms overdue overdue overdue Total
£m £m £m £m fm
Assets
Unlisted non-current asset investments 57 — — — 57
Parent company shares held under trust 32 — — — 32
Trade recervables and similar nems 973 186 2 — 1,211
Other non-denvative financial assets 296 8 17 —_ 3
Other financal assets 514 — — —_ 514
Short-term investments 40 — — — 40
(ash at bank and in hand 1,264 — — — 1,264
Shon-term deposits 632 — — — 632
3,808 194 69 — 4,071
2006
Between
Upto three months Move than
Within  three months  and one year one year
erms averdue overdue overdue Total
£m im £im fm im
Assets
Unhisted non-current asset Investments 51 — — — 51
Parent company shares held under trust 74 — — 74
Trade recervables and simifar tems 976 208 26 — 1210
Cther non-denvative financial assets 263 20 17 — 300
Other financial assets 644 — — — 644
Short-term investmenis 34 — — — 34
Cash at bank and in hand 756 — — — 756
Short-term deposits 1,428 — — — 1428
4,226 228 43 — 4497
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Contractual maturity analysis
2007
Gross cash flows
Within Betweenone Betweentwo After Carrying
one year and two years and five years five years  Discounting value
£m fm £m £m £m £m
Borrowings.
Unsecured bank loans {26) {1) {1) —_ -_— {28)
Other unsecured (3) — — —_ — 3)
Unsecured bond issues {56) (56) {773} (432) 317 {1,000}
Secured bank loans (1) {1) (26} —_ 4 {24)
Other secured (6) {3) — {1 1 9
{92) {61) {800} (433 322 {1,064)
Other
Trade payables and sirnilar tems (1,862) (2) {7) {1) — {1,872)
Dernvative financial labilities? {13) {2) (4} 20 (58) (57)
Financial RRSPs (38) (34) {201) (141) 99 {315)
Other non-denvatve financial liabilities {27 {1 {29} (14 — {315)
(2,184 {39 {241} {136 41 2,559)
(2,276 {100 (1,041) {569 363 (3,623)
2006
Gross cash flows
Withn  Betweenone Between two After Camyng
oneyear and woyears  and fve years five years  Dscounting walye
im £m £m £m im
Borrowings
Unsecured bank loans (18) (1) 0] — — (21}
Other unsecured — m — — — i)
Unsecured bond issues (412) (54) (755) (460) 389 (1,292)
Secured bank loans (40} (1) (28) — 7 62)
Other secured 9 (5) (3 1) 4 (i4)
(479) (62) (788) 461) 400 {1,390)
Other
Trade payables and sirular items {1,735) - -— — — {1,735)
Denvative financal habilities {17} 12} {10 (21) 24 (36)
Finarcial RRSPs 41) {36) (196} (170) 119 (324)
Other non-denvatrve financial habilities (247) — — (35) — (282)
(2040) {48) (206) (226) 143 (2377)
{2519) (110) (994) (687) 543 (3.767)

1 Forewgn exchange contract and terest rate contract habrlites.
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15 Finanaal instruments continued

Interest rate nsk

In respect of income eaming finanaal assets and interest beanng financal habilities, the following table ndicates their effective Interest rates and the periods in which they
reprice The value shown 1s the carrying amount

2007
Period im which interest rate reprices
Effective 6 months More than
Interest rate Tatal of less 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 yeary Syears
% £m £m £m £m £m £m
Short-term investments’ 5.5913% 40 14 6 - 12 8
Cash atbank ang in hand? 1,264 1,264 — — — —
Short-term deposits? 632 632 —_ — — —
Unsecured bank loans
€4m floating rate loan EURIBOR +1.2 (3) 3} — — — —
Overdrafts* {25) {25} — — — —
Effect of other interest rate swaps 1.2277% — 54 — {18) (16} {20)
Other unsecured
South Korean Won floating rate loan KRWLIBOR +09 (2) (2} - - - —
Other loan 2008 (interest rate nil) 0 0000% {1) {1} — — — —
Unsecured bond issues
7 %% Notes 2016 £200m 7.3750% (200) — —_ —_ — (200)
5.84% Notes 2010 US5187m 5.8400% 97) — —_ —_ 97 —
Effect of interest rate swaps USD LIBOR +1 159 —_ (97} - —_ 97 -
6.38% Notes 2013 US5230m 6.3800% (123) —_ — -— -— (123)
Effect of interest rate swaps USD LIBOR +1.26 — {123} — — — 123
655% Notes 2015 US583m 6.5500% {46) — — — — {46)
Effect of interest rate swaps USD LIBOR +1.24 — {46) — — — 46
4 Y% Notes 2011 €750m 4.5000% (534) — — —_ (534) —
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR +0 911 — {(534) — — 534 -
Secured bank loans
USs floating rate loan USD LIBOR +0 53 (24) 24) — — — —
Other secured
Obligations under finance leases payable 60183% {9) {2) (3} {3} — {1)
872 1,107 3 {21) (4) (213)
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Interest rate nsk continued
2006
Pencd in which interast rate repnces
Effectre 6 months More than
nterast rate Tortal orless 612 months 1-2 years 2-5 years S years
% im fm fm fm im fm
Shori-term investments ! 48374% 34 15 5 — B 6
Cash at bank and in hand? 756 756 — — — —
Short-term deposits? 1,428 1,428 — — — —
Unsecured bank loans
€6m floating rate loan EURIBOR +12 @ (4) — — — —
€5m fixed rate loan 41200% (3) — (3) — — —
Overdrafis* (14) (14) — — — —
Effect of other interest rate swaps 11392% — 78 — (21 (39) {22)
Other unsecured
Other loan 2008 (interest rate nil) 00000% m — — 0] — —
Unsecured bond issues
6 %% Notes 2007 €500m 637509 (337) (337 = — - —
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 0866 — — — — - —
7 ¥% Notes 2016 £200m 7.3750% (200) — — — — (200)
5 84% Notes 2010 USS187m: 5.8400% (96) — — — (56) -—
Effect of interest rate swaps USD LIBOR + 1 159 — (96) — — 56 —
638% Notes 2013 US5230m 6.3800% (121) — — — — (121)
Effect of interest rate swaps USDLIBOR + 1.26 — (121} — — — 121
6.55% Notes 2015 USS83m 6.5500% {44) — — — — {44)
Effect of interest rate swaps USDLIBOR + 124 — (49 — — — 44
4 %% Notes 2011 €750m 4.5000% (494) — — — {494) —
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LUBOR + 0511 — (494) —_ — 454 —
Secured bank lpans
Us$ floating rate loan USD LIBOR + 097 (62) (62) — — — —
Other secured
Obligations under finance leases payable 99153% (4 4 (3) 4 {2 (1)
828 1,101 (1) {26} (29) {217)

1 Interest on the shoet-term ivestments are at fixed rates.

2 Cash at bank andd in hand compnses bank balances and dermand deposits and eams interest at rates based on daily bank deposst rates.
3 Short-term deposits are depasits placed on money markets for penods up to three months and eam interest at the respective short term deposit rates.
* Overdrafts bear interest at rates inked to apphicable LIBOR rates that fuctuate in accordance with local practice.

Some of the Group's borrowings are subject to the Group meeting certain obhgations, Including customary finanaial covenants. If the Group fais to meet its oblgations
these arrangemenits give nghits to the lenders, upon agreement, to accelerate repayment of the faciliies. There are no rating tnggers contained in any of the Group's facdies
that could requtre the Group to accelerate or repay any faclity for a given maovement in the Groug's credit rating

In addition, the Group has undrawn committed borrowing faclities available as follows.

2007 2006

im £m

Expinng within one year — —
Expiring In one 1o two years — -
Expinng thereafter 450 450
450 450
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

15 Financal instruments continued

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is exposed to a number of foreign currencies The most significant transactional cumency exposures are US dollar with sterling and US dollar wath eure

At December 31, 2007 if sterling had weakened five per cent agamnst the US dollar wath all other vanzbles held constant, profit after tax for the year and equity would
have been £157m lower (2006 £166m) If sterling had strengthened five per cent against the US dollar with all other vanables held constant, profit after tax for the year and
equity would have been £142m higher (2006 £150m) There would have been no change to the underlying resutts that exclude unrealised gains and losses on foreign
exchange dernvatuves.

At December 31, 2007 if the euro had weakened five per cent against the US dollar with all other vanables held constant, profit after tax and equity for the year would
have been £35m lower (2006 £18m) If the euro had strengthened five per cent against the US dollar with all other vanables held constant, profit after tax for the year and
equity would have been £32m higher (2006 £16m) There would have been no change to the underying results that exclude unrealised gains and losses on foreign
exchange dernvatives.

At Decemnber 31, 2007 if interest rates at that date had been 25 basis points lower, with all other vanables rernaining constant, profit after tax for the year and equity
would have been unchanged (2006 unchanged) If interest rates had been 25 basis points higher, with all other vanables remaining constant profit after tax for the year and
equity woulg have been unchanged (2006 unchanged)

At December 31, 2007 1f the price of commodities had been five per cent lower, with all other vanables remaining constant, profit after tax for the year and equity
would have been £8m lower (2006 £6m), ansing mainly as the result of lower fair value gains on dernvatve contracts If the price of commodities had been five per cent
higher, with 2!l other vanables remaining constant, profit after tax and equity would have been £8m higher (2006 £6m), ansing mainly as the result of higher fair value gains
on denvatives. There would have been no change 1o the underlying results that exclude unrealised gains and losses on commodity denvatves.
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16 Prowisions
At Unused Chargedto At
December31,  Exchange armounts income December 31,
2006 adjustments reversed  statement Utilised 2007
fm £m £m £fm £m £m
Warmanties and guarantees 139 4 4 52 (26) 165
Contract loss 44 1 (4) 12 {25) 28
Customer financing 98 2 {20) 5 (41} 44
Insurance 37 — {3) 11 {5} 40
Restructurng 3 —_ —_ 9 {1} n
Other 14 1 4] 2 (3) 13
335 8 {32 9 {101) 301

Analysed as

2007 2006
£fm £m
Current habilties 121 146
Non-current habilities 180 189
301 335

Provisions for warranties and guarantees primarly relate 1o products sold and generally cover a period of up to three years.

Provisions for contract loss and restructuring are generally expected to be utihsed within two years.

The Group's captive Insurance company retains a portion of the exposures it insures on behalf of the remainder of the Group Significant delays occur in the notfication and
settlement of clams and judgement 1s involved i assessing outstanding habilities, the ulimate cost and tirming of which cannot be known with certainty at the balance sheet
date The msurance provisions are based on information currently available, however it 1s nherent n the nature of the business that ulimate habiliies may vary Prowsions for
outstanding cdlaims are established to cover the outstanding expected hability as well as ¢lairns incurred but not yet reported

Other provisions comprse a number of iabrliies with vanying expected utiisation rates

Customer financing provisions cover guarantees provided for asset value and/or financing. These guarantees are considered to be Insurance contracts in nature and
provision 1s made in accordance wath IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and 'AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets These guarantees, the nsks ansing and the
process used to assess the extent of the nsk are des¢nbed under the heading Sales financing’in the Finance Director’s review on page 27 The related contingent liabilities
ansing from these guarantees and the sensitvity to movements i the value of the underfying secunty are discussed in note 22 Based on the assumptions used to estimate
the customer finance provision, it is esumated that the provision wall be utilised as follows

2007 2006
£m fm
Potential daims with speafic daim dates
In one year or less 1 —
In more than one year but less than five years 3 19
In more than five years 14 14
Potential claims that may anse at any tirne by date of expiry of the guarantee
Up to one year 16 35
Up to five years 4 11
Thereafter 6 19
44 93
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17 Post-retirement benefits

The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contnbution schemes.

For the UK defined benefit schemes, the assets are held in separate wustee adrmunistered funds and employees are entitled to retirement benefits based on therr final
salanes and length of service

Overseas defined benefit schemes are a mixture of funded and unfunded plans Addiicnally in the US, and 1o a lesser extent in some other countnes, the Group's
employment practices include the provision of heatthcare and ife insurance benefits for retired employees. These schermes are unfunded

The valuatons of the defined benefit schemes are based on the most recent funding valuatons, updated by the scheme actuanes 1o December 31, 2007 The most
recent funding valuanons of the man UK schemes were

Scheme Valuation date
Rolls-Royce Pension Fund March 31,2006
Rolls-Rayce Group Pension Scheme Apnil 5, 2007
Vickers Group Pension Scheme March 31,2007 "
! Prefiminary

As described in the Finance Director’s review on page 24, dunng 2007, the trustees of the UK defined benefit schemes, 1n consultatnon with the Group, have undertakena
review of ther Investrent strategies. As a result, rewsed investment strategies have been adopted that aim to hedge, on an econormic basis, the majonty of the interest rate
and inflation nsks associated with pension kabibties by investing 2 significant proportion of each schemes'assets in swap contracts, backed by short-term money market
deposits {the hability-drven investment or LDI portfolio} Following the agreement of this revised strategy, new entrants are no longer able to join the schemes and the
Group has paid addional contmbutions of £500m to the main UK pensions schemes.

As described in note 1, for accounung purposes, the defined benefit schemes are valued In accordance with 1AS 19 Empigyee Benefits In particular, 1AS 19 requires the
discount rate used for the valuation of forecast llabilives to be determined by reference to the market yield on high quality corporate bonds. In contrast, for funding
purposes, the discount rate 1s determined by reference 10 the expected rate of retum on the scherne's assets, takung account of the specific investment strategy in place
As a result of this difference in valuation methodologies, the amounts recognised in the balance sheet will differ from those that would have been recognised if the valuation
had been undertaken using the assumptions used for funding purposes

Accordingly, although the investment strategy aims to hedge interest rate and inflaton nsk on an economic basis, the net position recogrised in the balance sheet for
UK defined beneflt schemes may vary over tme as a result of actuanal gains and losses that anse due to ths difference in valuaton methodologres

Amounts re\:ogmsed n the income statement

2007 2006
UK Overseas UK Cverseas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Total
£m £m £m fm im fm
Defined benefit schemes
Cunent service cost 100 25 125 102 28 130
Past service cost 131 2 133 — 2 2
23 27 258 102 30 132
Defined contribution schemes 3 17 20 2 14 16
Operating cost 234 44 278 104 44 148
Financing {incorne)/costs in respect of defined benefit schemes
Expected return on assets (367} (17) (384) (328 (15) (343
Interest on labibties 323 3 354 310 30 340
{44} 14 {30) (18) 15 3
Total ncome statement charge 190 58 248 86 59 145
The operating cost 1s charged as follows
Defined benefit Defined contribution Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m £m fm
Cost of sales 223 93 15 11 238 104
Commercial and admirustrative costs 26 30 4 4 30 34
Research and development 9 9 1 1 10 10
258 132 20 16 278 148
Amounts recogrised in the statement of recognised income and expense
2007 2006
£m fm
Actuanal gain on scheme assets 161 132
Expernience gains on scheme labilines 350 470
Maoverment in unrecognised surplus {112) —

399 602
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In December 2007, PaySave was introduced in the UK This 1s a salary sacrifice scheme under which employees elect to stop making employee contributions and the Group
rnakes addinonal contnbutions in return for a reduction in gross contractual pay As a result, there has been a decrease in wages and salanes and a corresponding ncrease in

pensions costs of £3m in the year
Defined benefit schemes
Assumptions

The pnncipal actuanal assurmnptions used at the balance sheet date were as follows

2007 2006

UK Overseas LUK Qverseas

schemes schemes schemes schermes

% % % %

Rate of increase in salanes 50 3.8 44 36
Rate of ncrease of pensions In payment 35° 04 29 03
Discount rate 5.8 60 51 56
Expected rate of return on scheme assets 54 75 66 70
Inflation assumption 35 25 29 24

1 Benefits accruing after Apnl 5, 2005 are assumed to Increase in payment at a rate of 24 percent.

The discount rates are determined by reference to the market yields on AA rated corporate bonds. For the mam UK schemes, the rate 1s deterrmned by using the profile of
farecast benefit payments to derve a weighted average discount rate from the yield curve For less significant UK schemes and overseas schemes, the rate 1s determined as
the market yield at the average duration of the forecast benefit payments. The discount rates above are the weighted average of those for each schemne, based on the value

of therr respective hablies

The overall expected rate of retum is calculated by wesghtng the indmdual returns expected from each asset class (see below) i accordance with the actual asset

balance in the schemes'investment portfolios.

The mortality assumptions adopted for the UK pension schemes are denved from the PA92 actuanal tables, with medium cohort, published by the Institute of

Actuanes, projected forward and, where appropriate, adjusted to take account of the relevant schemne’s actual expenence The resuluing range of life expectancies in the

prinapal UK schemes are as follows

Life expectancy from age 65
Curmrent pensioner 17.5 years to 22.2 years
Future pensioner 195 years to 23 9 years

Other demographic assumptions have been set on adwice from the relevant actuary, having regard to the latest tends in scheme expenence and other relevant data The

assumptions are reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the penodic actuanal valuation of the schermnes.

Assurnptions In respect of overseas schemes are also set In accordance with advice from local actuaries.

The future costs of healthcare benefits are based on an assumed healthcare costs trend rate of nine per cent grading down to five per cent over seven years

Amounts recognised in the bafance sheet

2007 2006

UK Overseas UK Overseas
schemes schemes Total schermes schemes Tetal
£Em £m im fm im fm
Present value of funded oblrgations (6,335) {293) (6,628) (6338) (271 6609
Fair value of scheme assets 6,626 277 6,903 5673 233 5.906
291 (16) 275 (665) (38) {703)
Present value of unfunded obligations - (284) (284) -— 290) 250)
Unrecognised surplus? (110) ] (114) — 2 2
Net asset/(lizbility) recognised in the balance shest 181 (304) {123) (665) (330) (995)

Analysed as 3

Post-retirernent scheme surpluses 210 — 210 22 —_ 22
Post-retrernent scheme deficits {29) (304) (333) 687) {330 (1,017
181 (304) {123) 665) (330) {995}

2 Where a surplus has ansen on 3 scheme in accordance with IAS 19 the surpfus s recognised as an asset only If it represents an uncondiional econom benefit avallable to the Group in the future. Ary surphus
in excess of this benefit i not recogrused i the balance sheet. Surpluses have ansen on the UK schemes in 2007 largely as a result of differences between the actuanal and IAS 19 valuation assumpbons.

* Comparatives have been restated 1o show the splt between post-retrernent scheme surphuses and defiats.
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17 Post-retirement benefits continued

Changes in present value of defined benefit obigations

2007 2006
UK Overseas 14 Overseas
schernes schemes Total schernes schermnes Total
£m £m £m im £m £m
At January 1 (6,338) (561} (6,899) (6,661) (559 (7,220)
Exchange adjustrnents — (15) {15} — 65 65
Cumrent service cost {100} (25} {125) {102) (28) (130
Past service cost (131 2) {(133) — ] 2
Finance cost (323) (31} {354) (310 (30) (340)
Contnbutions by employees (38) 2 {40) 9 2 @n
Net benefits paid out 286 18 304 279 18 297
Actuanal gains/{losses) 309 41 350 495 (25) 470
Settlements/curtalment — — — — 2 2
At Decernber 31 {6,335) {577} {6,912) (6.338) (561) {6899
Funded schemes {6,335) {293) (6:628) (6338) (271) (6,609)
Unfunded schemes —_ {284) {284) — (290) (290)
Changes in fair value of scheme assets
2007 2006
UK Overseas UK COverseas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemnes Total
£m fm £m £m im £m
At January 1 5,673 233 5,906 5343 220 5563
Exchange adjustments — 9 9 — (27) 2n
Expected return on assets 367 17 384 328 15 343
Contrbutions by employer 677 30 707 122 E) 133
Contnbutons by employees 38 2 40 39 2 41
Benefts paid out (286) (18) (304) 279) (18) {297)
Actuanal gains 157 4 161 120 12 132
Settlements/curtailment — — — — (2) (2)
At Decemnber 31 6,626 277 6,903 5673 233 5,906
Actuzal requm on scheme assets 545 475
The farr value of the scheme assets in the principal schemes and the expected rates of return at December 31, were as follows.
2007 2006
rateF:l return M::lk:e‘ rate cf fEl'Uﬁ Mg:tleé
% £m % £m
UK schemes
LD portfolio 47 4,595 — —
Equites 78 1,651 75 3876
Sovereign debt 46 48 45 629
Comporate bonds 51 88 49 1,164
Other 49 244 50 4
54 6,626 66 5673
QOverseas schemes
Equines 20 165 83 146
Corporate bonds 438 86 49 IA
Other 64 26 51 16
75 277 7Q 233

The scheme assets do not include any of the Group’s own financial Instruments, nor any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the Group

The expected rate of return for LDI portfolics 1s determined by the mplicit yield on the portfolio at the balance sheet date

The expected rates of return on other indnidual categenes of scheme assets are determined by reference to gilt yields. In the UK, equities and corporate bonds are

assurned to generate returns that exceed the return from gilts by 3 25 per cent and 08 per cent per annum respectively
The expected rates of return above are the weighted average of the rates for each scheme
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17 Post-retirement benefits continued

Future contnbutions
The Group expects to contribute approximately £271m to ns defined benefit schemes in 2008

Sensiinaties
As descnbed above, the revised investment strategies are designed to hedge the nisks from imterest rates and inflation The principle remaining nsks relate to the assurnpuons
for mortality and increases in salartes If the age ratings m respect of the pnncipal UK defined benefit schemes were increased by one year, the scheme liabiliies would
increase by £164m If the rate of increase i salanes were 05 per cent higher, scheme liatulines would increase by £112m

The defined benefit obligation relating to post-retirement medical benefits would increase by £33m o the healthcare trend rate increases by one per cent, and reduce
by £27m if it decreases by one per cent. The pensian expense relating to post-retrement medical benefits, compnsing semace cost and interest cost, would increase by
£4m If the heafthcare trend increases by one per cent, and reduce by £3m If It decreases by ane per cent

History of defined benefit schemes
The hustory of the schemes for the current and prior years 1s as follows

2007 2006 2005 2004
£m £m £m im
Balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligations 6912) (6:899) (7.220) (6107}
Fair value of scheme assets 6,903 5,906 5563 4,698
Unrecognuised surplus {114} () (2) —
Deficit {123) {995) (1,659) (1,409)
Experience gains/losses
Actuanal gamns on scheme assets 161 132 588 126
Experience gains/{losses) on scheme labilies 350 470 (868) (133
Movernent in unrecognised surplus {112) — 2 —
Total amount recognised tn the staternent of recogrised income and expense 399 602 (282) (7)
Curnulative since January 1, 2004 712 E3E] {289} [t}

In accordance with the transitional provision amendments to 1AS 19 Employee Benefits in December 2004, the disclosures above are determined prospectively from 2004

18 Share capital

Equity

ordinary shares Nominal
of 20p each value
Milllons fm
Authonsed
At January 1, 2006 and December 31, 2007 2,000 400
Issued and fully paid
At January 1, 2006 and December 31, 2007 1,631 326

On June 23, 2003 Rolls-Royce plc had 1,630,996,508 shares in 1ssue with an aggregate nominal value of £326m On this date, under a scheme of arrangement between
Rolls-Royce plc and s shareholders under Section 425 of the Companies Act 1985, and as sanctioned by the High Court, all the issued shares in the Company were
cancelled and the same number of new shares were issued to Rolls-Royce Group plc the new holding company of the Rolls-Royce Group in consideration for the allotrment
to shareholders of one ordinary share in Rolls-Royce Group ple for each ordinary share in Rolls-Royce plc held on the record date (June 20, 2003)

As a result of the scherne of amangement, holders of options over ordinary shares in Rolls-Royce plc under the ShareSave schemes and the executive opiton
schemes were permitted to exchange therr options for options over an equivalent number of ordinary shares in Rolts-Royce Group plc
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19 Movements in capital and reserves

Attnibutable to equity holders of the parent

Share Share Tﬁ;gg Translation Retained Minority Total

capital premium reserve ! Teserve eamnings Total interests equity

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At January 1, 2006 326 631 379 17 432) 921 6 927
Total recognised mcome and expense for the year — — (202) (75) 1490 1213 {4} 1209
Share-based payments adjustment — — — — 20 20 — 20
Transactions with minonity interests — = — — — — 5 5
Related tax rovernents - current tax — — — — 18 18 — 18
- deferred tax — — — — 58 58 — 58

AtJanuary 1, 2007 326 631 177 {58) 1154 2,230 7 2,237
Total recognised income and expense for the year — — (100) 117 878 895 (6} 889
Share-based payments adjustrment — - — — 29 29 — 29
Transactions with mnority interests — -— -— — — — 11 11
Related tax movements - current tax — — — — 43 43 —_ 43
- deferred tax — — — — (18) (18) — (8
Change in rate of UK corporation tax — deferred tax — — — — t5) (s) — &)
At December 31, 2007 326 631 77 59 2,081 3,174 12 3,186

1 See agcounting policies note 1 - bedge accounting
2 Prior year share-based payments adjustrnent restated from £40m to £20m on the adoption of IFRIC 11 Group and Treasury Share Transactions

20 Share-based payments

Share-based payment plans in operation during the year
The Group had the following share-based payment plans 1n operation dunng the year

Performance Share Plgn (PSP)
This plan involves the award of shares to partiapants subject to performance conditiens Vesting of the performance shares 1s based on the achievement of bath
non-market based conditions (EPS and cash flow per share) and a market based performance condition (Total Shareholder Return - TSR}

ShareSave share option plan

Based on a three or five year monthly savings contract, eligible employees are granted share options with an exercise pnce of up to 20 per cent below the share pnce when
the contract 1s entered into Vesting of the options 1s not subject to the achieverment of a performance target In the UK, the plan i1s HM Revenue & Custorns approved
Overseas, employees in 32 countnes participate in ShareSave plans through arrangements broadly comparable to the UK plan A small proporton of the ShareSave options
are settled in cash

Executive Share Option Plan (ESOF)
This plan imvolves the grant of market value share options to participants. The options are subject to a non-market based performance condition (growth in EPS) The options
have a maximum contractual hfe of ten years. Following the introduction of the PSE it 1s not intended 1o grant any further executive share options.

Annual Performance Related Award (APRA) plan deferred shares

Deferred shares are awarded as part of the APRA plan One third of the value of any annual bonus is delivered In the form of a deferred share award The release of deferred
share awards 1s not dependent on the achievement of any further performance conditons other than that participants remain an employee of the Group for two years from
the date of the award in order 1o retain the full number of shares. Dunng the two year deferral pened, participants are entitled to receve dvdends on the deferred shares

Share incentive Plan (5IP)
There Is a'Free Share’element of the UK Share Incentive Plan Eligible employees may receive shares with a value of up to one and a half weeks'salary as part of any bonus
paid There are no conditicns attached to the shares.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, the Group has recogrused an expense m respect of all grants under these plans made after
November 7, 2002 and unvested at January 1, 2005
The Group recognised a total expense of £36m (2006 £36m)
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The movements in awards under the Group's various share plans are shown In the tables below
Number of shares awarded
2007 2006
PSP Millions Millions
Qutstanding at January 157 115
Awarded dunng the year 46 48
Forferted dunng the year (0.8} 06
Additional entitlements ansing from TSR performance 13 —
Vested dunng the year (6.8} —
Outstanding at December 31 140 157
2007 2006
Numbyer Weighted Number Weghted
of share average of share average
options exercise price options  exercise price
ShareSave Millions Pence Millons Perce
Qutstanding at January 1 547 160p 647 157p
Granted during the year 130 416p — —
Forferted dunng the year {0.8) 207p (12 168p
Exercised dunng the year (23 6) 116p (88} 140p
Ouistanding at Decembser 31 43.3 260p 547 160p
Exertisable at December 31 — — 07 4ip
2007 2006
Number  Weighted Number Wexghted
of share average of share average
options exercise price OphioNs  exerase prce
ESOP Millions Pence Millions Pence
Outstanding at January 1 190 188p 768 148p
Forfeited duang the year —_ —_ (i) 216p
Exercised dunng the year (16 7) 189p (567) 134p
Qutstanding at December 31 23 175p 190 188p
Exerasable at December 31 2.3 175p 58 124p
Number of shares awarded
2007 2006
Deferred shares under APRA Millions Mulhons
Quistanding at January 1 49 82
Awarded dunng the year 19 20
Forferted dunng the year 01 1
Addtional shares accrued from conversion of B Shares 0.2 02
Vested dunng the year {3.5) 4
Ouistanding at Decernber 31 34 49
Number of shares awarded
2007 2006
Free Shares under SIP Millions Millions
Awarded during the year 07 07

Options were exeraised on a regular basis durning the year The average share pnice duning the year was 510p (2006 439p)

Fair values

The weighted average farr values per share for PSP awards, ShareSave grants, APRA deferred share awards, and SIP Free Share awards induded in the expense for the year

were as follows

2007 2006 2005 2004 03

Pence Pence Pence Pence Pence

PSP awards 557p 494p 282p 249p —
ShareSave — 3 year grants 230p — 131p — 6ip
ShareSave - 5 year grants 264p — 154p — 7ip
ESOP - — - — 27
APRA deferred share awards 502p 448p 260p 220p —_
SIP Free Share awards 499p 462p 257p 231p —
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20 Share-based payments continued

Detalls of the assumpuons used in the calculation of these fair values are set out below Expected volatlity was based on the histoncal volztlity of the Rolls-Royce Group plc's
share price over the seven years prior to the grant or award date Expected dvidends were based on paymenits to shareholders aver the five years prior to the grant or award
date

PSP awards
The fair vatue of shares awarded under the PSP are calculated using the market value of shares at the ime of the award adjusted 1o take into account nen-enttlement to
ddends (or eguivalent) dunng the vesting penod and the TSR performance condmion The PSP far values were calculated using the fallowing assumptions

2007 2006 2005 2004
Weightad average share pnce 501p 444n 262p 233p
Bxpected dwidends 830p 792p 781p 761p
Volatility 29% 32% 34% 35%
Correlation 26% 19% 19% 22%
Expected lfe 3 years 3 years 3years 3years
Risk free interest rate 5.2% 43% 4% 52%

The PSP has a TSR market-hased perfaormance condiion, such that the Rolls-Royce Group plc's TSR aver the performance penod will be compared with the TSR of the
companies constituting the FTSE 100 ndex on the date of grant Hf the Rolls-Royce Group plc’s TSR exceeds the medhan TSR of the FTSE 100, the number of shares that vest
will be increased by 25 per cent. The fair value of an award of shares under the PSP has been adjusied to take into account this market-based performance condition using a
pricing model based on expectations about volatility and the correlation of share price returns in the group of FTSE 100 companies and which incorporates nto the
valuation the mnterdependency between share pnice performance and TSR vesting This adjustrment increases the fair value relative to the share pnce at the date of grant.

ShareSave awards
The fair vatue of options granted under the ShareSave plan are calculated using a binomiat pricing model with the following assumptions
2007 2005 2003

Weighted average share price 553p 351p 173p
Exercise price 416p 298p 142p
Volatility 37% 40% 43%
Expected dividends 8.80p 7.86p 761p
Expected ife? - 3 year ShareSave 3 3-3.8 years 33-38 years 32-37 years

— 5 year ShareSave 53-5.8 years 53-58 years 52-57 years
Close penods
From January 1 6 weeks 6 weeks 6 weeks
From July 1 1 month 1 month 1 month
Risk free interest rate 50% 44% 46%

¥ The binomial pricing mode! assurmes that partapants will exercise their options at the beginning of the s month window if the share pnce 1s greater than the exeraise pnce Otherwase it assumes that
options are held until the expiranon of therr contractuat term. This resulis n an expected hife that falls somewhere between the start and end of the exerase wandow

Defarred shares under APRA and Free Shares under SIP
The fair value of shares awarded under these plans 1s calculated as the share price on the date of the award

Esop
These fair values were calculated using the followang assurptions.

2003
Weighted average share price 79
Weighted average exercise price 78p
Volatility 3%
Expected dwvidends 761p
Expected hfe 45 years
Close periods. -
From January 1 6 weeks
From July 1 1 month

Risk free interest rate 41%
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21 Operating and finance leases
Operating leases
Leases as lessee - non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows
2007 2006
£m im
Within one year 77 78
Between one and five years 179 213
After five years 99 106
355 397
Leases as lessor — non-cancellable operating lease rentals are recevable as follows
2007 2006
£m £m
Within one year 5 g
Between one and five years 13 13
After five years 3 4
21 25

The Group acts as lessee and lessor for both land and buldings and gas turbine engines, and acts as tessee for some plant and machinery

- Sublease payments of £15m (2006 £23m} and sublease receipts of £8m (2006 £11m) were recognised In the income statement in the year

- Purchase options exist on aero engines with the pencd to the purchase option date varying between two to six years.

- Escalatron clauses exist on some leases and are linked to LUBOR

- Thetotal future minimurn sublease payments expected t¢ be made 1s £13m (2006 £23m) and sublease receipts expecied 10 be received 15 £3m (2006 £5m)

Finance [eases
Finance lease liabilmes are payable as follows

2007 2006

Payments Interest Princpal Payrments Interest Pronopal

im £m £m £m £m £m

Within one year 6 1 5 9 2 7
Between one and five years 3 — 3 8 2 6
After five years 1 — 1 1 — 1
10 1 9 18 4 14

There were no contingent rents recognised as an expense in the year (2006 £rul) and no future mintmum sublease recetpts are expected under non-cancellable subleases
(2006 £nif)

22  Contingent labilties

In connection with the sale of 1is products the Group will, on some occasions, provide finanaing support for 1ts customers. The Group’ contingent Tlabilites relating to
finanaing arrangernents are spread over many years and relate 1o a number of customers and a broad product portfolio

Conungent liabiliues are disclosed on a discounted basis As the directors consider the likelhood of these contingent liabilities crystallising to be remote, this amount
does not represent a present valug However, the amounts are discounted at the Group's bormowing rate to reflect better the time span over which these exposures could
anse The contingent labilites are denominated in US dallars. As the Group does not adopt cash flow hedge accounting for forecast forexgn exchange transactions, this
amount 1s reported, together with the sterling equivalent at the reporting date spot rate

The discounted value of the total gross contingent kabilities relating to delvered aircraft and other arrangements where financing 1s (in place, less insurance
arrangernents and relevant provisions, at Decernber 31, 2007 amounted 10 $1,227m, £616m {2006 $1,109m, £566m) Taking into account the net realisable value of the
relevant secunty including unrestricted cash collateral of $120m, £60m (2006 $114m, £58m), the discounted value of the net contingent habilmes amounted to $279m,
£140m (2006 $243rm, £124m) Sensitmty calculations are complex, but for example, if the value of the relevant secunty was reduced by 20 per cent, a net contingent hiability
with a discounted value of approximately $434m, £218m (2006 $361m, £184m) would result There are also net contingent habilities in respect of undelivered airczaft, but it
15 not considered practicable 1o esumate these as delvenes can be many years in the future, and the relevant financing will only be put in place at the appropnate tme

Conungent iabilities exist in respect of guarantees provided by the Group in the ordinary course of business for product delivery, performance and rehability The Group
has, in the normal course of business, entered Into arrangements in respect of export finance, performance bonds, countertrade obligations and minor miscellanecus items.
Vanous Group undertakings are parties to legal actions and dairms which anse in the ordinary course of business, some of which are for substantial amounts As a
censequence of the insolvency of an insurer as previously reported, the Group 15 no longer fully insured against known and potential daims from employees who worked
for certain of the Group’s UK based businesses for a penod prior to the acquisition of those businesses by the Group While the outcome of some of these matiers cannot
precisely be foreseen, the directors do not expect any of these arrangements, legal actions or claims, after aflowing for prowisions already made, to result in significant loss 1o
the Group
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23 Related party transactons

2007 2006
£m fm
Sales of goods and services 1o Joint veniures 1,289 1,252
Purchases of goods and senvces from joint ventures (1,100) (830)
Operating lease payments to Joint ventures (4} {43)
Dmadends received from joint ventures 42 44
RRSP receipts from joint ventures 29 7
Interest recerved from jont ventures 2 3
Qther income recenved from joint ventures 25 12
The aggregated balances with joint ventures are shown in notes 11 and 14 Transactions with Group pension schemes are shown in note 17
In the course of normal operations, related party transacoons entered into by the Group have been contracted on an arms-length basis Rolls-Royce Group plcisa
non-trading holding company for Rolls-Royce plc.
Key management personnef are deermed 1o be the directors and the members of the Group Executive as set out In the Annual report of Rolls-Royce Group plc
Remuneration for key management personnel 1s shown below
2007 2006
£m £m
Salaries and short-term benefits 9 10
Post-renrement schemes 2 2
Share-based payments E 5
16 17
24 Acquisitions and disposals
Dunng the year the Group acquired a number of smalt businesses as summansed below
Total
m
Intangible assets 2
Property, plant and equipment 1
Trade and other recenvables 1
Trade and other payables {n
Net assets acquired 3
Goodwill ansing 7
10
Financed by~
Net ¢ash outflow per cash flow staterent 6
Dilutien of minority interests due to share issue 4
10
There were no significant fair value adjustments in respect of the net assets acquired
Durning the year the Group disposed of its interests in a number of small businesses, as summansed below
Total
£m
Property, plant and equipment 2
Inventory 1
Trade and other recevables 2
Trade and other payables 1)
4
Investments in Jjoint ventures 1
Net assets >
Loss on sate or termination of businesses 2)
Net cash inflow per cash flow statement 3
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Company balance sheet
At December 31, 2007

Restated”
2007 2006
Notes £m im
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 3 410 270
Tangible assets 4 1,041 990
Investments — subsidiary undertakings 5 1,807 1,713
Investments — joint ventures 5 78 74
Investrents - other 5 79 120
3415 3,167
Current assets
Stocks 4 1,302 1,114
Debiors - amounts falling due within one year 7 1,997 1,074
Debtors - amounts falling due after one year 7 353 387
Other financial assets 10 531 654
Post-retrement scheme surpluses 13 149 2
Short-term deposits 316 1,249
Cash at bank and in hand 8 941 448
5,589 4528
Credrtors - amounts falling due within one year
Borrowings 8 (352) 671}
Other finanaa! liabiliies 10 {172 92}
Other creditors 9 (5.061 (3847)
Net current assets 4 318
Total assets less current Labilthes 3419 3485
Credstors - amounts falking due after one year
Borrowings 3 (1,003} (961}
Other financial habilities 10 (301} (353}
Other creditors 9 {422} (356)
Prowvisions for habilihies and charges 1 (60} (150)
Postretirement scheme defiats 13 (21} (481}
1,612 1,184
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 14 326 326
Share premium account 15 631 631
Revaluation reserve 15 71 73
Transiion hedging reserve 15 76 178
Other reserves 15 167 167
Profit and loss account 5 341 (191}
1,612 1,184

*Seenotes6 7,89 13and 15

diat statements on pages 72 to 89 were approved by the Board on February 6, 2008 and signed on its behalf by

s

man Andrew Shilston Finance Director
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Statement of total recognised gains and losses
For the year ended December 31, 2007

2007 2006
£m fm
Profit attnbutable to the shareholders of Rolls-Royce pic 293 749
Net actuana! gains 353 414
Movement in farr vaue of available for sale assets (28} (126)
Related tax movermnents (104} 48
Total recognised gains relating to the year 514 1,085
Prior year adjustment * {12}
Total gains and losses recognised since last Report of the directors and finanoal statements 502
L] L3 - - ’
Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds
For the year ended December 31, 2007
Restated"
2007 006
£m £m

At January 1, 2006 as previously reported 191
Pror year adjustment * (2
At January 1, 2007 and January 1, 2006 (restated) 1,184 179
Total recognised gains foi the year 514 1,085
Transfer from transiion hedging reserve {149) (230)
Share-based payments adjustment 16 34
Related tax movements 47 116
At December 31 1,612 1,184

* Prior year has been restated on the adoption of UITF 41 Scope of FRS 20 and UITF 44 Group and Treasury Share Transacuons. The associated adjustments to the pror year cormparatves ares within debtors
falling due wathin one year (note 7) Prepayments and ac¢rued ingome’ have increased by £1m and wathin other creditors faling due wathin one year (note 9 Amounts owed to parent and its subsiianes’ have

increasec by £21m and Accruals and deferred income’ have decreased by £8m.




Rolls-Royce plc

74

Annual report 2007
Overnew

Corsoddated financial statements

Company financial st—at—g—mer_n_s

Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Sigmificant accounting pohaes

Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable
accounting standards on the histoncal cost basis, modified to include the revaluation
of land and buildings

As permutted by section 230(4) of the Compantes Act 1985, a separate profit and
loss account for the Company has not been induded in these financial staterents

As permatted by FRS 1 Cash flow staterments, no cash flow statement has been
prepared, as a consolidated cash flow statement has been prepared by the ultumate
parent company

Buning 2007, the Company has adopted the requirernents of UTTF 41 Scope of
FRS 20 and UITF 44 Group and Treasury Share Transactions

Reclassifications to comparative figures were made to borrowings and
payments recerved on account and are set out In notes 8 and 9 respectively

Some other small adjustments have been made o comparative figures to put
them on a consistent basis with the current year

Revenue recogrition
Revenues compnse sales to extemnal customers after discounts, and exduding value
added tax

Sales of products are recogrised when the significant nsks and rewards of
ownership of the goods are transferred to the customer, the sales price agreed and
the receipt of payment can be assured

Sales of services and long-term contracts are recogrused when the outcome of the
transaction can be reliabty esurmated Revenue is recogrused by reference to the
stage of completion based on services performed to date as a percentage of the
total contractual obligation The assessment of the stage of completion s dependent
on the nature of the contract, but will generally be based on costs ncurred to the
extent these relate to services performed up to the reporting date, achievement of
contractual milestones where appropriate, or fying hours or equivalent for long-term
aftermarket arrangements

Linked sales of product and servces are treated as a single lang-term contract
where these components have been negotiated as a single commercial package
and are so closely interrelated that they do not operate independently of each other
and are considered to form a single project with an overall profit margin Revenue is
recognised on the same basis as for other sales of products and services as described
above

Full prowision 1s made for any estimated losses to completion of contracts
having regard to the overali substance of the arrangements

Progress payments received on long-tenm contracts, when greater than recorded
turnover, are deducted from the value of work In progress except to the extent that
payments on account exceed the value of work in progress on any contract where
the excess 1s included in creditors The amount by which recorded turnover of long-
term contracts 15 in excess of payments on account 1s dassified as‘amounts
recoverable on contracts'and ts separately disclosed within debtors

Risk and revenue shanng partnerships (RRSPs}
From time-to-ume, the Company enters Into amangements with partners who, in
retumn for a share in future programme revenues or profits, make cash payments that
are not refundable (except under certain remote arcumstances) Cash sums receved,
which reimburse the Cormnpany for past expenditure, are credited to other operating
ncome The arrangements also require partners to undertake development work
and/or supply components for use in the programme at their own expense No
accounting entries are recorded where partners undertake such development work
or where programme cormponents are suppled by partners because no obligaton
anses unless and cntd programime sales are made, instead, payrnents to partners for
therr share in the programme are charged to cost of sales as programme revenues
anse

The Company has arrangements wath partners who do not undertake
developrnent work or supply parts Such arrangements are considered 1o be financial
Instrurnents as defined by FRS 25 financal instruments Presentation and are
accounted for using the amortised cost method

Research and development

The charge to the profit and loss account consists of research and development
expenditure mcurred m the year, excluding known recoverable costs on contracts,
contnibutions to shared engineenng programmes and apphcation engineenng
Application engneering expenditure, ncurred in the adaptation of existing
technology to new products, 1s capitalised and amortised over the programme Ife,
up to a maxmurn of 15 years, where both the technical and commercial nsks are
considered to be sufficiently low

Interest
Interest recewvable/payable i1s credited/charged to the profit and loss account using
the effective interest method

Taxation

Provision for taxation 1s made at the current rate and for deferred taxation at the
projected rate on all trming differences that have onginated, but not reversed at the
balance sheet date

Foreign currency transiation

Transactions In averseas currencies are transtated into local currency at the exchange
raie ruling on the date of the transaction Monetary assets and habilities
denominated in foreign currenaies are translated into sterling at the rate ruling at the
year end Exchange differences ansing on foreign exchange transactions and the
retransfation of assets and habilities into sterling at the rate ruling at the year end are
taken into account In determirung profit on ordinary actvies before taxation

Financial instruments

FRS 26 finanaal nstruments Recogntion and megsurement, requires the classification

of financial Instruments Into separate categones for which the accounting

requirernent s different Rolls-Royce has dassified its financial instruments as follows

Fixed depaosits, pnncipally compnsing funds held with banks and other financial

nstrtutions, are classified as loans and receivables

Investments (other than interests wn jont ventures and fixed deposns) and short

term deposits (other than fixed deposts) are normally dlassified as available for

sale

Borrowings, trade creditors and financial RRSPs are generally classified as other

labilies

- Denvatves, comprising foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and
commodity swaps are dassified as held for trading

Financial Instruments are recognised at the contract date and initially measured at far

value Ther subsequent measurement depends on ther dassification

- Loans and receivables and other habilies are generally held at amorased cost

and not revalued unless they are included in a farr value hedge accounting

relztionship. Where such a relationshup exists, the instrumenits are revalued in

respect of the nsk being hedged If instrurnents held at amortised cost are

hedged, generally by interest rate swaps, and the hedges are effecuive, the

carrying values are adjusted for changes in fair value, which are included 1n the

profit and loss account,

Available for sale assets are held at far value Changes in fair value ansing from

changes in exchange rates are included in the profit and loss account. All other

changes in fair value are taken to reserves On disposal of the related asset, the

2ccumulated changes in value recorded in reserves are included in the gan o

loss recorded in the profit and loss account

- Held for trading instrurnents are held at far value Changes in fair value are
included in the profit and loss account unless the mstrument 15 included in a
cash flow hedge If the instruments are ncluded n a cash flow hedging
relauanship, which 1s effective, changes in value are taken to reserves When the
hedged forecast transaction occurs, amounts previously recorded In ieserves
are recognised in the prafit and loss account

- Foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Financial Instruments are derecognised on expiry or when all contractual rights and

obltgations are wransferred

t




Hedge accounting

The Company does not apply hedge accounting in respect of forward foreign
exchange contracts held to manage the cash flow exposures of forecast future
transactions denorminated in foreign curencies.

The Company does not apply hedge accounting In respect of commodity
swaps held 1o manage the cash flow exposures of forecast future transactions In
those commodties
The Company applies hedge accounting i respect of transactions entered INto 10
manage the fair value and cash flow exposures of its borowings. Forward foreign
exchange contracts are held to manage the farr value exposures of borrowings
denominated In foreign currencies and are designated as fair value hedges Interest
rate swaps are held to manage the interest rate exposures and are designated as fair
value or cash flow hedges of fixed and floating rate borrowings respectively

Changes in the farr values of dervatves designated as fair value hedges and
changes in fair vatue of the related hedged item are recognised directly in the profit
and loss account

Changes n the fair values of denvatives that are designated as cash flow hedges
and are effective are recognised directly in reserves. Any ineffectveness in the
hedging relationships 1s included in the profit and loss account. The amounits
deferred in reserves are recognised in the profit and loss account to match the
recogninon of the hedged tern

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or Is
sold, terminated, or exeraised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting At that
time, for cash flow hedges, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging mstrument
recognised in reserves, 1s retained in reserves until the forecast transaction occurs. if a
hedged transacuon 1s no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss
recognised n reserves is transferred to the profit and loss account.

The portion of a gain or loss on an instrument used to hedge a net Investment
in a foretgn operation that is determined to be an effective hedge ts recognised
directly in reserves. The ineffective portion 15 recognised immediately 1n the profit and
lass account.

Untl Decernber 31, 2004 the Company applied hedge accounting for forecast
foreign exchange transactions and cornmodity expasures in accordance with UK
Accounting Standards Cn January 1, 2005, the fair values of dervatives used for
hedging these exposures were included in the transiion hedging reserve This
reserve Is released to the profit and loss account based on the designation of the
hedges on January 1, 2005

Certification costs and partiapation fees

Costs incurred in respect of meeting regulatory certfication reguirements for new
cmvil aero-engine/aircraft combinations and payments made to airframe
rmanufacturers for this, and participation fees, are camed forward in intangble assets
to the extent that they can be recovered out of future sales and are charged to the
profit and loss account over the programme life, up to a maximurm of 15 years

Software
The cost of acquinng software that is not specific to an stemn of tangible fixed assets 15
classified as an intangible asset.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less accurnulated depreciation
and any provision for impairments in value
Depreciation 1s provided on a straight-kne basis to write-off the cost or
valuation, fess the estimated restdual value, over the estimated useful life Esurnated
usefut lives are as follows
9 Land and buldings, as advised by the Group’s professional valuers.
a} Freehold bulddings - five to 45 years (average 22 years)
b) Leasehold land and buildings - lower of valuers' estimates or penod of lease
) No depreciation s provided in respect of freehold land
W Plant and equipment - five to 25 years (average 15 years)
w)  Awcraftand engines - five to 20 years (average 16 years)
) Mo depreciation s provded on assets in the course of construction
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Accounting for leases

) Aslessee
Assets financed by leasing agreements that give nghts approximating to
ownership {finance leases) have been capitalised at armounts equal to the
onginal cost of the assets 1o the lessors and depreciation provided on the basis
of the Cornpany depreciation policy The capital elernents of future obligations
under finance leases are included as liabilities in the balance sheetand the
current year's interest element, having been allocated to accounting periods to
grve a constant penodc rate of charge on the outstanding balance, s charged
to the profit and loss account

The annual payments under all other lease amrangements, known as

operating leases, are charged 1o the profit and loss account on a straight-line
basis

) AsLlessor
Amounts recenvable under finance leases are included under debtors and
represent the total amount outstanding under lease agreements less unearned
ncome Finance lease income, having been allocated to accounting penods to
gwe a constant periodic rate of return on the net cash investment, 15 ncluded in
turnover

Rentals recevable under operating leases are included in tumover on a

straight-line basis

Stock
Stock and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value

FProvisions

Provtsions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a
past event, and it 1s probable that the Company will be required to sette that
obligation Prowisions are measured at the directors’ best esimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obhigation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to
present value where the effect 1s matenal

Post-retirement benefits
Pensions and similar benefits are accounted for under FRS 17 Post-retirement benefits
For defined benefit plans, obligations are measured at discounted present value
whilst plan assets are recorded at far value The senvice and financing costs of such
plans are recognised separately in the profit and loss account, service costs are
spread systematically over the lives of employees and finanang costs are recognised
n the penods in which they anse Actuanal gains and losses are recognised
immedhately in the staternent of total recognised gains and losses.

Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged as an expense as they
fall due

Share-based payments
The Company, on behalf of its parent company, provides share-based payment
arrangernents to certain employees. These are equity-setiled arrangements and are
measured at far value {excluding the effect of nan-market based vesting conditions)
at the date of grant The fair value 15 expensed on a straight-ine basis over the vesting
penod, based on the Company’s estimate of shares or options that will eventually
vest The ¢osts of these share-based paymenis are treated as a capital contnbution
from the parent company Any payments made by the Company to its parent
company, in respect of these arrangements, are treated as a return of this capital
contmbution
The fair values of the share-based payment arrangements are measured as
follows
) ShareSave - using the binomual pricing method
w}  Performance Share Plan — using a pncing model adjusted to reflect
non-entitternent to dwidends {or eguivalent) and the Total Shareholder Return
market based condition
uy  Annual performance Related Award plan and free shares under the Share
Incentive plan - share price on the date of the award
See note 17 for further description of the share-based payment plans.
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued

2 Emcluments of directors

2007 2006
Highest paid Other  Highest pad Other
director!  directors drector’  directors
£000 £000 £000 £000
Aggregate emoluments excluding defemed share plans 1,109 32 1,151 3463
Aggregate amounts relating to deferred share plans 153 314 211 397
Aggregate value of Company contributions to Company defined contnbution pensions schemes 433 3%
Accrued pension of highest paid director 555 493
Gans realised on exercise of share options? 3339 7,025 5,603 9,782
2007 2006
Number Number
Number of directors with accruing retirement benefits
Defined contnbution schermnes? 2 2
Befined benefit schemes 6 5
Number of directors exercising share options 5 5
Number of directors recening shares as part of long-term incentive schernes* 5 6
1 Member of defined benefit scheme.
? Includes gans under the ShareSave plan
3 Two drrectors were members. of both defined contribution and defined benefit schernes (2006 two directors)
* Mike Terrett, who was appoinied as an executive director on Septerbrer | 2007 did not recerve any shares as part of long-term incentrve schemes between the date of tis appoamtment and
Decemnber 31, 2007
3  Inmangble assets
Certification
costs and
partiapation Software
fees and other Total
£m £fm £m
Cost
At January 1, 2007 363 57 420
Additions 120 35 155
At December 31, 2007 483 92 575
Accumulated amortisation
At January 1, 2007 134 16 150
Prowided during the year 6 9 15
At December 31, 2007 140 25 165
Net book value at December 31, 2007 343 67 410
Net book value at January 1, 2007 229 41 270
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Land and Plantand Aixraftand  Incourse of
buldings equipment engines construction Total
£m £Em £m £m £m
Cost or valuation
At January 1, 2007 341 1,192 — 217 1,750
Additions 19 47 20 n 157
Reclassifications 62 101 4 (167) —
Disposalsiwrite-offs — (76} — — (76)
At December 31, 2007 422 1,264 24 i 1,831
Accumulated depreciation
At January 1, 2007 96 664 — — 760
Provided during the year 13 84 1 — 98
Drsposalswrite-offs — (68) - - (68)
At December 31, 2007 109 680 1 —_ 790
Net book value at December 31, 2007 313 584 23 m 1,041
Net book value at January 1, 2007 245 528 — 217 50
2007 2006
Tangible fixed assets include im fm
Net book value of finance leased assets 22 29
Non-depreciable land 57 57
Land and buildings at cost or valuation comprise
Cost 232 150
Valuation at December 31, 1956 190 191
422 341
Land and butldings at net book value compnse
Freehold 305 236
Long leasehold 6 7
Short leasehold 2 2
313 245
On an historical cost basis the net book value of land and buildings would have been as follows
Cost 400 323
Deprecation (159) (151)
241 172
Caprtal expenditure commitments — contracied but not provded for 67 87

The Company has followed the transitional provisions of FRS 15 Tangible fixed assets, to retain the book value of land and buildings, certain of which were revalued in 1996 as

set out below

Group properties were revelued at Decernber 31, 1996 as follows

i) Specialsed properties, including certain of the Company’s major manufacturing sites, were revalued on a depreciated replacement cost basis

i) Non-specialised properties were revalued by reference to therr existing use value
w)  Properues surplus to the Company’s requirements were revalued on an open market value basis.

In the United Kingdom the revaluation was camed out by Gerald Eve, Chartered Surveyors, Fuller Peiser, Chartered Surveyars and Storey Sons & Parker, Chartered Surveyors,
in accordance with the appraisal and valuanon rmanual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Overseas properties were valued pnncipally by independent local

valuers.
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Notes to the Company finanaal statements continued

Subsidiary undertakings ! Jont ventures 2 Other
Farent
Unlisted comparny
Shares Shares Investments  shares held
atcost at cost Loans Tatal atcost  under trust Total
£m £m fm £m £m £m? £m
At January 1, 2007 1,713 61 13 74 46 74 120
Additions 94 4 — 4 1 78 79
Faiz value adustments — e — — — 15 15
Disposals/write-offs — — — — — (135) (135)
At December 31, 2007 1,807 65 13 78 47 32 79
1 The principal subsidiary undertakings are listed on page 90.
2 The prinaipal joint ventures are listed on pages 91 and 92,
3 Shares in the parent company are held at farr value in a trust. At December 31, 2007 5,838,501 shares with a farr value of £32m (2006 16,554,181 shares wath a far vatue of £74m) were hekd
4 The Company has guaranteed the uncalled share caprtal of Nightingale Insurance Limited, one of its subsdianes. At December 3t 2007, this guarantee was £25m (2006 £12m)
6 Stods
Restated®
2007 2006
£m £m
Raw matenals 52 26
Work in progress 349 470
Long-termn contracts work In progress 13 38
Firuished goods 880 572
Payrnents on account 8 8
Inventory per balance sheet 1,302 1114
Progress paymenis recerved against other inventory (105) (154)
Net inventory after progress payments 1,197 920

* Progress payments incduded in the pnor year have been redlassfied as follows, recerved against long-termn contracts (£8m) offset against Long tem tontracts work in progress aboves recenved against other

inventory (£194m) induded wathin 'Other creciters'— see note

7 Debtors

Falling due within one year  Falling due after one year
Hestated*

2007 2006 2007 2006
£m im £m £m
Trade debtors 241 254 16 11
Amgunits recoverable on contracts 99 55 189 233
Amounts owed by — subsidiary undertakings 1,112 333 — —
Amounis owed by — joint ventures 251 201 13 10
Deferred tax assets (note 12) — — 102 —
Other debtors 217 136 6 34
Prepayments and accrued income 77 95 27 99
1,997 1074 353 387

* Prepayments and accrued ncorme falling due wathun one year have been restated in the pior year frorm £94m 19 £95m on the adopton of UITF 41 Scope of FRS 20 and WITF 44 Group and Treasury Share

Transocuons.
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8 Borrowings
Falling due within one year  Falling due after one year
Resiated”
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m Em £m Em
Unsecured
Overdrafts 347 327 — —
6 7% Notes 2007 €500m’ — 337 - -
7 ¥:% Notes 2016 £200m — — 200 200
5.84% Notes 2010 US5187m? — — 97 96
638% Notes 2013 US5230m? — — 123 121
655% Notes 2015 US583m? — — 46 44
4 /% Notes 2011 €750m — — 534 494
Secured
Obligations under finance leases payable ?
Less than one year 3 7 — —
Between one and two years — — 3 4
Between two and five years — — — 2
352 671 1,003 961
Repayable
Between one and two years - by instalments 3 4
Between two and five years - by instalments — 2
- othenwise 631 5%
After five years - otherwise 369 359

1,003 961

* Overdrafts of £276m induded in 2006 have been reclassified and arg offset against 'Cash at bank and i hand; as the Company has a legal nght of offset. In the pnor year Cash at bank and in hand has been
restated from £724m to £448m and Overdrafts’ restated from £603m to £327m.

1 These nates are the subject of swap agreerments under which counterparties have urdlertaken to pay amounts at fixed rates of interest and exchange in consideration for amounts payable at vanable rates of
nterest ang at fed exchange rates.

2 These notes are subject of interest rate swap agreements under whech the Company has undertaken to pay floating rates of nterest, and cumrency swaps which foen a farr value hedge. Until Ocober 5, 2005
the borrowing was induded in a net investrment hedging relationshup. From October 6, 2005 the borrovang has been induded n a fau value hedging relationship in respect of the foreign exchange nsk.

3 Oblganons under finance feases are secured by selated leased assets.

9  Other creditors

Falling due withinone year  Falling due after one year

Restated*®
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Payments received on account? 394 489 331 161
Trace creditors 385 324 — —
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 2,245 1,037 — —
Amounts owed t0 Jomnt ventures 265 164 4 4
Amounts owed 0 parent and its subsidianes 407 575 — —
Corporate taxation 106 128 — —
Other waxation and social secunty 20 25 — —
Other creditors 616 626 87 191
Accruals and deferred income 623 479 — —
5,061 3,847 422 356
' Includes paymenits recerved from joini ventures 195 139 25 62

* Payments recerved on account in the prior year have been restated from £295m due to the redassification from “Stocks’ of £194m of progress payments recenved against other ewentory On the adoption of
UITF 41 Scope of FRS 20 and UITF 44 Group and Treasury Share Transactions, ‘Amounts awed 1o parent and ts subsidianes’ m the pror year have ncreased by £21m and Acgruals and deferred income in the
pnor year have decreased by £8m.
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued

10 Other financial assets and abiliies

Detalls of the Company’s policies on the use of finanaial instruments are given In the accounting polices on pages 74 and 75
The Company adopted FRS 25 and FRS 26 Financial Instruments prospectively from January 1, 2005

The fair values of demvative financial instruments held by the Company are as follows

ex?:r:g: Commodity interest rate Financial
contracts contracts contracts RRSPs Total
£m fm £m £m £m
At December 31, 2007
Assets 450 39 42 — FEL
Liabilmes (153} — (3) {317) (473}
297 319 39 {317) 58
At Decemnber 31, 2006
Assets 588 39 27 — 654
Liabilities (80) — 41} (354 (445}
508 39 16 (354) 209
Other financial liabilities are analysed as follows.
2007 2006
£m im
Current habikties {172) (92)
Non-cumrent liabilities {301) (353)
(473) (445}

Foreign exchange and commodity finanaial instruments

The Company uses vanous financial nstruments to manage 1ts exposure 1o moverments in foreign exchange rates The Company uses commodity swaps 10 manage s
exposure to movements in the price of cornmodities (jet fuel and base metals} From January 1, 2005, the Company has not included foreign exchange or commodity
financial instruments in any cash flow hedging relationships for accounting purposes, To hedge the currency risk assooated with a borrowang denominated n US dollars, the

Company has currency dervatives designated as part of a fair value hedge

Movemerys in the fair values of foreign exchange and commodity financial instruments were as follows

Foreign exchange instruments

Commodity mstruments

Included In Included in
transition  Included in transition  Included In

hedgng  profitand hedging
Total reserve  loss account Total reserve loss account
im £m £m £m £m fm

At January 1, 2006 193 479 31 5
Fair value changes 10 dertvative contracts not in accounting hedging relationships 595 — 595 A — 34
Fair value changes to farr value hedges! (26) — {26) — — —
Farr value of contracts settled (254) — — (26) — —
Transferred to turnover — (227) 227 — {5 5

At January 1, 2007 508 232 39 —
Fair value changes to dervative contracts not In accounting hedging relationships 55 — S5 35 — 36
Fair value changes to farr value hedges’ {6) — {6) — — —
Farr value of contracts settled (260) — — (36] - —
Transferred to turnover — {149) 149 — — —

At December 31, 2007 297 103 39 —

! Gain on related hedged items £6m {2006 £26m)
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10 Otherfinanaal assets and liabiliies continued

Interest rate finanaal instruments

The Company uses interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and Interest rate ¢aps 10 MaNage 1is exposure to movements i interest rates Where the effectveness of the

hedge relatonship in a cash flow hedge 1s demonstrated, changes in the fair value that are deemed effective are included in the hedging reserve and released to match
actual payments on the hedged nem

Movements in the fair values of interest rate financial instrumenits were as follows

Inctuded in Other  Included in

falrvalue interestrate profit

hedging finandal and loss

Total relatiom?ﬂps Instruments account

£m £m £m £m
At January 1, 2006 64 69 (5)

Changes during the year (48) (&3] 3 48
At January 1, 2007 16 18 {2)

Changes during the year 23 24 {1 24
At December 31, 2007 39 42 (3)

Where applicable, market values have been used to determine fair values. Where market values are not available, fatr values have been calculated by discounting expected
future cash flows at prevailing interest rates and translating at prevaling exchange rates,

Financial nsk and revenue sharng partnerships (RRSPs)

The Company has financial habiliies ansing from financial RRSPs. These financizl liabilities are valued at each reporung date using the amortised cost method This involves
cakeulating the present value of the forecast cash flows of the amangements using the mternal rate of retum at the inception of the arrangements as the discount rate

Movemenits in the amortised cost values of financial RRSPs are as follows

2007 2006
£m £m
At January 1 354 486
Cash pad to partners 62} (%6
Financing charge 28 k)
Excluded from underhywng profit.
Exchange adjustments (3) (50)
Restructunng of financial RRSP agreements and changes in forecast payments — {17)

At December 31 317 354
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11 Prowisions for habilities and charges

At Reclassi- Unused G\ﬂ:ﬂ to At

December 31, hcation amounts  profitand December 31,

2006  todebtors reversed loss account Wtillsed 2007

£m £m fm £m £m £m

Deferred taxation (note 12) 47 47y — - — .
Warranties and guarantees 22 — {1) 12 (2) 31
Customer financing 81 — {20} 5 {37) 29
150 (47} {21) 17 {39} 60

Provisions for warranties and guarantees primarily relfate to produces sold and generally cover a penod of up to three years
Custorner finanaing provsions cover guarantees promded for asset values and/or financing as descnbed in note 18 Timing of unlisation 15 uncertain,

12 Deferred taxation

£m
At January 1, 2007 158
Armount charged to profit and loss account 42)
Transfer from subsiciary 7
Amount charged to statement of total recogrised gains and losses {104)
Amount credited to equity 47
At December 31, 2007 52

There are other deferred tax assets totallng £102m {2006 £102m} that have not been recogmised on the basis that therr future economic benefit 1s uncertain
The undistributed profits of overseas subsichary undertakings and joint ventures may be liable to averseas taxes and/or Uruted Kingdom tax (after allowang for double
tax refief) f rernitted as dividends to the UK. No deferred tax has been provded as there are currently no commitments to pay such divdends.

The analysis of the deferred tax position 1s as follows.

2007 2006
£m £m
Fixed asset tming differences {117} (115)
Other trming differences 156 74
Pensions and other post-retrernent schemne benefits {50) 205
Fareign exchange and commadity financial assets and liabiives (121) (182
Losses 123 115
Advance corporation tax 61 61
52 158
Included wathun
Debtors — amounts falling due after one year 102 —
Provisions — (47)
Post-retrement scheme surpluses (58) —
Post-retirement scheme deficits 8 205
52 158

The above figures exclude taxation payable on capital gains which might anse from the sale of fixed assets at the values at which they are stated in the Company’s balance
sheet.
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13 Post-retirement benefits

Defined benefit schemes
For the defined benefit schemes the assets are held in separate trustee admimistered funds and employees are entitled to retirerment benefits based on their final salanes and
length of service

The valuations of the defined benefit schemes are based on the most recent funding valuanons, updated by the scheme actuaries to December 31, 2007 The most
recent funding vatuations were

Scheme Valuation date
Rolls-Royce Pension Fund March 31, 2006
Ralls-Royce Group Pension Scheme Apnl 5, 2007
Vickers Group Pension Scheme March 31, 2007
1 Prebrminary

Duning 2007, the trustees of the defined benefit schemes, in consultauon with the Company, have undertaken a review of therr Investment strategies As a result, revised
investment strategies have been adopted that aim to hedge, on an economic basis, the mzjonty of the interest rate and inflation nsks associated wath pension habilies by
Investing a significant proportion of each schemes' assets In swap contracts, backed by short-term money maiket deposits (the lability-driven investment or LI portfolio)
Following the agreement of this revised strategy, new entrants are no longer able to join the schemes and the Company has paid addtional contributions of £500m to the
main schemes,

As described in note 1, for accounung purposes, the defined benefit schemnes are valued in acqordance wath FRS 17 Post-retirernent benefits In particular, FRS 17 requires
the discount rate used for the valuation of forecast habilities to be determined by reference to the market yield on high quality corporate bonds In contrast, for funcing
purposes, the discount rate 15 determined by reference to the expected rate of return on the scheme's assets, taking account of the specific investment strategy in place Asa
result of this difference in valuation methodotogies, the amounts recognised in the balance sheet will differ from those that would have been recogrused if the valuation had
been undertaken using the assurnptions used for funding purposes.

Accordingly, although the Investment sirategy ams to hedge interest rate and inflauon nsk on an economig bass, the net posiion recognised in the balance sheet for
defined benefit schemes may vary over time as a result of actuanal gains and losses that anse due to this difference in valuation methodologies

The prinapal actuanal assumptions used at the balance sheet date were as follows.

2007 2006

% %

Rate of increase n salanes 50 44
Rate of increase of pensions in payment’ 35 29
Dhscount rate 5.8 51
Expected rate of return on scheme assets 54 66
Inflation assumption 35 29

¥ Benefits accrung after April 5, 2005 are assumed o Increase In payment at a rate of 24 per cent.

The discount rates are deterrmined by reference to the market yields on AA rated corporate bonds. For the main schemes, the rate 1s determined by using the profile of
forecast benefit payments to derve a weighted average discount rate from the yield curve For less significant schemes the rate 15 determined as the market yield at the
average duration of the forecast benefit payments. The discount rates above are the weighted average of those for each scheme, based on the value of their respective
labilities

Thie overall expected rate of retum 1s calculated by weighting the indmdual returns expected from each asset class (see below) in accordance with the actual asset
balance in the schemes'investrment portfokos,

The mortality assumptions adopted for the pension schemes are derved from the PA92 actuanal tables, with medium cohort, published by the Institute of Actuanes,
projected forward and, where appropriate, adjusted 1o take account of the relevant scheme’s actual experience The resulting range of life expectancies in the pancipal
schemes are as follows

Life expectancy from age 65
Current pensioner 17.5 yearsio 22 2 years
Future pensioner 195 years to 23 9 years

Other demographic assumptions have been set on advice frorn the relevant actuary, having regard to the latest trends in scheme expenience and other relevant data
The assumptions are reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the penodic actuanal valuation of the schemes.
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13 Post-retirement benefits continued

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

2007 2006
£m im
Present value of funded obligauons {6,335) (5.785)
Farr value of scheme assets 6,626 5101
Unrecognised surplus! (113} —
Surplus/(deficit) 178 (684)
Related deferred tax (hability)/asset (50) 205
Net asset/(hability) recognised in the balance sheet 128 (479)
Analysed as 2
Post-tetirement scheme surpluses 149 2
Post-retrernent scheme deficits (21} (481}
128 {479

! Where a surplus has ansen on a scheme In accordance wath FRS 17 Retirernent benefits, the surplus 18 recognised as an asset only if it represants a fisture economic benefit available to the Company Any
surplus in excess of this benefit 1s not recognised in the balance sheet Surpluses have ansen in the schernes in 2007, largely as 2 resuk of differences between the actuanal and FRS 17 Valuation assumptions
2 Comparatives have been restated to show the split between post-retrement scheme surpluses and deficrs.

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations

2007 2006
£m im
At January 1 (5,785) (6,102}
Transfer from subsidiary company (553) —
Current senvice cost (100) 97
Past service cost (131) —
Finance cost (323) (284
Contributions by employees (38) (38}
Net benefits paid out 286 259
Actuarial gains 309 477
At December 31 (6,335) {5,785)
Changes in fair value of scheme assets
2007 2006
£m £m
At January 1 5101 4809
Transfer from subsichary company 572 —
Expected return on assets 367 296
Contnbutions by employer 677 103
Contnbutions by employees 38 38
Benefits paid out (286) (259)
Actuanal gains 157 114
At December 31 6,626 5,101
Actual retum on plan assets 524 410
The faw value of the scheme assets and the expected rates of retumn at Decemnber 31 were as follows
2007 2006
rate 5 return value rate ol :etuﬁ Mzﬁ
% £m % fm
LD portfolio 47 4,595 — —
Equrties 78 1631 75 31526
Sovereign debt 46 418 45 537
Corporate bonds 51 88 49 1,009
Other 49 244 50 29
54 6,626 66 5107

The scheme assets do not Include any financial Instrurments of the Rolls-Royce Group plc group, nor any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the group
The expected rate of retumn for LD portfolios 1s determined by the implicit yield on the portfolio at the balance sheet date
The expected rates of return on mdradual categones of scheme assets are deterrined by reference 1o gilt yields. Equities and corporate bonds are assumed to
generate returns that exceed the retum from gilts by 3.25 per cent and 08 per Cent per annum respectvely
The expected rates of return above are the weighted average of the rates for each scheme
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13 Post-retirement benefits continued

Future contributions
The Company expects to contnbute approximately £253m 10 1is defined benefit schemes in 2008

Sensinaties

As descnbed above, the revised iInvestment strategees are designed to hedge the nsks from interest rates and inflavon The principle remaining nsks relate to the assumptions
for maontality and ncreases in satanes If the age ratings In respect of the principal schemes were iIncreased by one year the scheme labilities would increase by £164m If the
rate of Increase in salanes were 05 per cent higher, scheme liabilities would increase by £112m

History of defined benefit schernes
The hustory of the schemes for the current and pnor years is as follows

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
£m tm im fm £m
Balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit abligatians {6,335) {5.785) {6,102) (4321} (4.105)
Fair value of scheme assets 6,626 5101 4,809 3283 3049
Unrecognised surplus {113) — — — —
Asset/(deficit) 178 {684) (1,293) (1,038 {1,056}
Actuanal gains on scherne assets 157 114 503 92 253
Expenence gains/{losses) on scheme liabilities 309 477 (745) (113} (436}
Movement in unrecogrised surplus (113) — — — —
Total amount recognised m the staternent of iotal recogrised gains and losses 353 5N (242) {21} (183}
Cumulative amount recognised in the statement of total recognised gatns and losses’ {395) {(748) (1,339 (1,097) (1,076}
! Since January 1 2002
Defined contnbution schemes
The Company operates a number of defined contnbution schernes.
The total expense recognised i the profit and loss account was £3m (2006 £2m)
14 Share capital
Equity
ordinary shares Nomlnal
of 20p each value
Millions £m
Authonsed
At January 1, and December 31, 2007 2,000 400
Issued and fully paid
At January 1, and December 31, 2007 1,631 326

15 Movements in caprtal and reserves

Non-distnbutable reserves

Transition Profit

Share Share Revaluation hedging Qther and loss Total

capital premium teserve reserve ! Teserves account equity

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At January 1, 2007 (as previously reported) 326 631 73 178 167 {179) 1,196
Adopuon of UITF 442 — — — — — {12) (12}
At January 1, 2007 (restated) 326 631 73 178 167 {191) 1,184
Transfers between reserves - — [F3) — — 2 —
Transfer from transimon hedging reserve — — — {149) — —_ (149)
share-based payments adjustment — — — — _ i 6
Total recognised gains relating to the year — — e — — 514 514
Related 1ax movements — — — 47 — — 47
At Decemnber 31, 2007 326 631 [Al 76 167 341 1,612

¥ See accounting pokcies note | - hedge accounting
? Prior year has been restated on the adoption of UITF 41 Scope of FRS 20 and UITF 44 Group and Tregsury Share Transactions.
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16 Operating lease annual commitments

2007 2006
£m Em
Leases of land and buildings which expirer
Between one and five yaars 4 2
After five years 4 4
Other leases which expire
Within one year 1 1
Between one and five years 1 1

17 Share-based payments

Share-based payment plans in operation duning the year
The Company parucipated in the following share-based payment plans of Rolls-Royce Group plc in operation during the year

Performance Share Plan (PSP)
Ths plan involves the award of shares to participants subject 1o performance conditions Vesung of the performance shares 1s based on the achievement of both
non-market based conditions (EPS and cash flow per share) and a market based performance condition (Total Shareholder Return - TSR)

ShareSave share option plan
Based on a three or five year monthly savings contract, ehigible employees aze granted share options with an exeraise price of up to 20 per cent below the share price when
the contract 1s entered into Vesting of the options 1s not subject to the achievement of a performance target The scheme 1s HM Revenue & Customs approved

Executive Share Option Plan (ESOP)
Thus plan involves the grant of market value share options to parcipants. The options are subject to a nonmarket based performance conditon (growth in £PS) The options
have a maximum contractual Ife of ten years. Followang the introduction of the PSE it is not ntended to grant any further executive share options.

Annual Performance Related Award (APRA) pian deferred shares

Deferred shares awarded as part of the APRA plan One third of the value of any annual bonus is delivered in the form of a deferred share award The release of deferred share
awards 1s not dependent on the achievement of any further performance conditions other than that participants remain an employee of the Group for two years from the
date of the award in order to retan the full number of shares. Dunng the two year deferral penod, participants are entited to recerve dwvidends on the deferred shares

Share Incentwve Plan (SIP)
This 1s the Free Share’ element of the Share Incentive Plan Eiigible employees may receve shares with a value of up to one and a half weeks'salary as part of any bonus paid
There are no conditions attached to the shares.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of FRS 20 Share-based payment, the Company has recognised an expense in respect of all grants under these plans made after
Novernber 7, 2002 and unvested at January 1, 2005
The Company recognised a total expense of £22m (2006 £22m)

The movements in awards under the vanous share plans are shown in the tables below

Number of shares awarded

2007 2006

PSP Millions Millions
Qutstanding at January 1 98 71
Awarded dunng the year 27 30

Forfeited dunng the year {04) {03
Additional entidemenits ansing from TSR performance 09 —
Vested dunng the year {4.3) —
Quistanding at December 31 87 98
2007 2006

Number  Weighted Number Weghted

of share average of share average

options exerdse pnce oplions  exercse prce

ShareSave Millions Pence Millons Pence
Outstanding ai January 1 421 153p 324 158p
Granted dunng the year 74 416p — —
Forfeited dunng the year ©9 21%p GE] 168p
Exercised during the year (91 116p 949 140p
Outstanding ai December 31 295 241p 421 153p

Exercisable at Decernber 31 - — 06 141p
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17 Share-based payments conunued

2007 2006

Number Weighted Number weighted

of share average of share average

options exercise price QPLONS  exercse prce

ESOP Millions Pence Millors Pence
Cutstanding at January 1 121 191p 431 149p
Forfeited duning the year — — (10) 2i6p
Exercised dunng the year (111) 193p (300) 131p
Qutstanding at December 31 10 177p 121 191p
Exercisable at December 31 10 177p 30 118p
Number of shares awarded

2007 2006

Deferred shares under APRA Millions Millions
Qutstanding at January 1 27 49
Awarded dunng the year 10 11
Additional shares accrued from conversion of B Shares 01 —
Vested during the year (20) 33
Qutstanding at December 31 1.8 27
Number of shares awarded

2007 2006

Free shares under SIP Millions Millons
Awarded duning the year 06 06

Opuons were exercised on a regular basis dunng the year The average share price dunng the year was 510p (2006 439p)

Farr values
The weighted average fair values per share for PSP awards, ShareSave grants, APRA deferred share awards, and SIP Free Share awards included in the expense for the year
were as follows

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Pence Pence Pence Pence Pence
PSP awards 557p 494p 282p 249p —
ShareSave - 3 year grants 230p — 131p — 61p
ShareSave - 5 year grants 264p — 154p — 71p
ESOP — — — — 27p
APRA deferred share awards 502p 448p 260p 220p —
SIP Free Share awards 499p 462p 257p 231p —

Details of the assurnprions used in the calculation of these fair values are set out below Expected volatlity was based on the histoncal volathty of the Rolls-Royce Group plc
share price over the seven years prior 1o the grant or award date Expected dmdends were based on payments o shareholders over the five years prior to the grant or award
date

PSP awards

The fa value of shares awarded under the PSP are calculated using the market value of shares at the time of the award, adjusted to take into account
non-entuitlernent to dvidends {or equivalent) dunng the vesting penod and the TSR performance condition The PSP fair values were calculated using the following
assurnptions

2007 2006 2005 2004
Weighted average share price 501p 444n 262p 233p
Expected dvdends 8.30p 792p 781p 761p
Volaulity 29% 32% 34% 35%
Correlauion 26% 19% 19% 22%
Expected Iife 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years
Risk free interest rate 5.2% 43% 49% 52%

The PSP has a TSR market-based perfarmance condition, such that the Rolls-Royce Group plc TSR over the performance penod wall be compared wath the TSR of the
companies constituting the FTSE 100 ndex on the date of grant. If the Rolls-Royce Group plc TSR exceeds the median TSR of the FTSE 100 the number of shares that vast
will be increased by 25 per cent, The fair value of an award of shares under the PSP has been adjusted to take Into account this market-based performance condivon using a
pricing model based on expectations about velatility and the correlation of share price returns in the group of FTSE 100 companies and which incorporates into the
valuation the interdependency between share pnce performance and TSR vesung This adjustment increases the fair value relative to the share pnce at the date of grant.
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17 Share-based payments continued

ShareSave awards
The farr value of options granted under the ShareSave plan are calculated using a binomial pricing model with the following assumptions
2007 2005 2003
Weighted average share price 553p 351p 173p
Exercise price 116p 298p 142p
Volaulity 37% 40% 43%
Expected dvdends 8.80p 7.86p 761p
Expected life ' - 3 year ShareSave 3.3-3.8 years 33-38 years 32-37 years
- 5 year ShareSave 5.3-5.8 years 53-58 years 52-57 years
Close pencds
From January 1 6 weeks 6 weeks 6 weeks
From July 1 1 month 1 month 1 menth
Risk free interest rate 5 0% 44% 46%
1 The binomial priang model assumes that parbopants will exerase their options at the beginning of the sx month window if the share price 1 greater than the exerase price. Otherwse it assumes that
optons are held unul the exprration of thesr contractual tesm. This results in an expecied Ife that falls somewhere between the start and end of the exerose window
Deferred shares under APRA and Free Shares under SIP
The fair value of shares awarded under these plans 1s calculated as the share price on the date of the award
ESOP
These farr values were calculated using the following assumptions
2003
Weighted average share pnce 79p
Weighted average exerase prce 78p
Volatlity 43%
Expected dmdends 761p
Expected iife 4.5 years
Close penods
From January 1 6 weeks
From July 1 1 month

Risk free interest rate
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18 Contingent habitrties

In connection with the sale of s products the Company will, on some occasions, provide financing support for its customers. The Company’s conungent labilines relaung 1o
finanging arrangements are spread over many years and relate to a number of customers and a broad product portfolio

Contingent habilines are disclosed on a discounted basis. As the directors consider the hikelihood of these contingent iabiliues crystallising 1o be remoete, this amount
does not represent a present value However, the amounts are discounted at the Cormpany’s borrowing rate 1o reflect better the time span over which these exposures ‘
could anse. The contingent labiliies are denorminated in US dollars. As the Company does not adopt cash flow hedge accounting for forecast foreign exchange transactions,
this amount 1s reported together with the sterling equivalent at the reporting date spot rate

The discounted value of the total gross contingent liabilities relating to financing arrangements on all delivered aircraft less insurance amangements and relevant
provisions, at December 31, 2007 amounted to $1,227m, £616m (2006 $1,109m, £566m} Taking into account the net realisable value of the relevant secunty ncluding
unrestnicted cash coflateral of $120m, £60m (2006 %114, £58m), the discounted value of the net contngent labdiues amounted 1o $279m, £140m (2006 $243m, £124rmn)
Sensitnity calculations are complex, but for example, if the value of the relevant secunity was reduced by 20 per cent, a net contingent liability wath a discounted value of
approximately $434m, £218m (2006 $361m, £184m) would result There are also net contingent labilities I respect of undebvered atrcraft, but it 1s not considered
practicable to esumate these as delivenes can be many years in the future, and the relevant financing will only be put in place at the appropnate time

Contingent liabilines exist in respect of guarantees provided by the Company in the ordinary course of business for product delwvery, performance and reliability The
Company has, in the normal course of business, entered into arrangements in respect of export finance, performance bonds, countertrade obligations and rminor
miscellanecus tems The Company 1s party to legal actions and claims which anse in the ordinary course of business, sorme of which are for substantial amounts. As a
consequence of the insolvency of an insurer as previously reported, the Company 1s no longer fully insured against kncwn and potential claims from employees who
worked for certain of the Company’s UK based businesses for a penod pnor to the acquisition of those businesses by the Company While the outcome of some of these
matters cannot precisely be foreseen, the directors do not expect any of these arrangements, legal actions or daims, after allowang for provisions already made, to result in
significant loss to the Company

Where the Company enters into finanaial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other comparves within its group, the Company considers these to be
Insurance arrangerents, and accounts for them as such In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes
probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee At December 31, 2007, there were Company guarantees in respect of joint ventures
amounting to £11m (2006 £12m)

The Company participates in a Cash Pochng Arrangement. Under the Pooling Arrangement the Company benefits from more favourable interest rates than would be
available outside of the Pocling Arrangerment as well as rmore streambined treasury functions. As part of the Pooling Arrangement, the Company cross-guarantees the
borrowings of other pooling parhapants At Decernber 31, 2007 these guarantees amounted to £19m (2006 £40m)

19 Related party transactions
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Rolls-Royce Group plc and therefore has taken advantage of the exernption in FRS 8 Related party disclosuires, not to disclose

related party transactions with 1ts parent company and other group companies
The aggregated balances with jont veniures are shown innotes 7 and 9

20 Ultimate holding company

The uttimate hofding company 15 Rolls-Rayce Group plg, incorporated in Great Britain The financial statements for Rolls-Royce Group plc may be obtained from the
Company Secretary, Rolls-Royce Group plg, 65 Buckingham Gate, London SW1E 6AT
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Principal subsidiary undertakings
At December 31, 2007

Incorporated within the UK - directly held unless marked*

Civil aerospace

Data Systemns & Solutions Limited*

Advanced controls and prediciive data management

Rolls-Royce Awrcraft Management Limited

Sales finance and other financial services

Rolls-Royee Leasing Limited

Engine leasing

Rolls-Royce Tatal Care Services Limited

Aftermarket support services

Manne

Rolls-Royce Manne Electncal Systems Limited®

Marine electrical systerns

Rolls-Royce Marnne Power Operations Limited

Nuclegr submanine propulsion systems

Energy

Rolls-Royce Fuel Cell Systems Limited

Development of fuel cell systems

Rolls-Rayce Power Development Limited

Proviston of project development capabilities

Corporate

Rolls-Royce Intemational Limited

international support and commercial information senvices

Rolls-Royce Power Engineenng plc

Power generation and manne systems

The above compantes operate principally in the UK and the effective Group interest 1s 100 per cent, other than Rolls-Royce Fuel Cell Systerns Limited in which it s

80 per cent

Incorporated overseas - directly held unless marked*

Cmwi aerospace

Brazil Rolls-Royce Brasil Limnitada Repair and overhaul

France Rolls-Royce Technical Support SARL* Project support

Germany Rolls-Royce Deutschland Ltd & Co KG* Design, development and manufaciure of aero engmes

ltaly Europea Microfusion Aerospazial S pA. Manufacture of castings

Us Data Systerns & Solutions LLC* Advanced controls and prediciive data management

us Rolls-Royce Corporation® Design development and manufacture of gas turbine engines
us Rolls-Royce Engine Services — Oakland Inc.* Repair and overhaul

Defence aerospace

us Rolls-Royce Defense Services Inc. Repair and overhaul

Manne

China Rolls-Royce Marine (Shanghai) Limited* Manufacture and supply of manne equipment

Finland Rolls Royce CY AB* Manufacture of winches and propeller systems

India Rolls-Royce Energy Systems india Private Limited* Project managemernt and custornier support

Norway Ralls-Royce Manne AS* Design and manufacture of ship equipment/holding company
Norway Ulstein Holding AS* Holdingcompany

Sweden Rolls-Royce AB* Manufacture of propeller systems

us Rolls Royce Commercal Manne Inc* Aftermarket support services

Us Rolls Royce Naval Marne Inc*® Design and manufacture of ship propellers

us Seaworthy Systems Inc* Manne support serices

Energy

Canada Rolls-Royce Canada Limited* Industrial gas turbines and aero-engine sales, service and overhaul
Singapore Rolls-Royce Pte Limited* Engine and turbine compression systems, spares

us Ralls-Royce Energy Systemns Inc* Turbine generator packages

Corperate

Guernsey Nighangale Insurance Limited* Insurance services

India Rolis-Royce Operations {India) Prvate bimited® Prowision of support senaces

us Rolls-Royce North America Holdings Inc® Holding company

The above companies operate prinapally In the country of thewr Incorporation

The effectrve Group interest s 100 per cent, other than Europea Microfusion! Aerospazial S pA in which itis 51 per cent.

A list of all subsidiary undertakings will be included i the Company’s annual return 1o Companses House
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Principal joint ventures
At December 31, 2007
Incorporated within the UK - directly held
% of dass % of total
Class equity held
Cnl aerospace
Alpha Partners Leasing Limited A Ordinary 100 } 50
Engine leasing B Crdnary —
TRT Limited A Crdinary — } 495
Turbine blode reparr services B Ordinary 100
Turbine Surface Technologies Limited A Ordinary — } 50
Turbine surface coatings B Crdinary 100
Defence aerospace
Airtanker Holdings Limted Ordinary 20 20
Strategic tanker aircraft PF praject
Rolls-Royce Snecma Lirited (UK & France) A Shares — } 50
Engine collaboration B Shares 100
Rolls-Royce Turbomeca Limited {UK & France} AShares — } 50
Adour and RTM322 engines cofiaboration B Shares 100
Turbo-Umion Lirmited (UK, Germany & Italy) Crdinary 40 } 40
RB199 engine collaboration AShares 375
Energy
Genistics Holdings Limited A Ordinary 100 } 50
Trarler-mounted field mobide generator sets B Ordinary —
Ralls Wood Group (Repair and Overhauls) Limited A Ordinary 100
] 50
Repair and overhaul B Ordinary —
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Prnapal joint ventures contiued

Incorporated overseas - directly held unless marked®

% of class % of total
Class held  eguiy held
Cml aerospace
China Xian XR Aero Components Co imited Ordinary 49 49
Manufacturing facility for aero-engene parts
Germany N3 Engine Overhau! Services Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbh* Ordinary 50 50
Reparr and overhaul
Hong Kong Hong Kong Aero Engine Seraces Limited* Ordinary 45 45
Repair and overhaul
Israel TechJet Aerofoils bmited* A Ordinary 50 50
Manufacture of compressor aeroforls B Ordinary 50
Singapare Internatona! Engine Component Overhaul Pte Limited* Ordinary 50 50
Repair and overhaul
Singapore Singapore Aero Engine Services Private Limited (effective interest 39%)* Ordinary 30 30
Repair and overhaul
Span Industna de Turbo Propulsores SA Ordinary 469 469
Manufacture and maintenance of aero engines
Switzerland IAE Intemational Aero Engines AG (UK, Germany, Japan & US) A Shares 100
V2500 engine coftaboration B Shares — 125
C Shares -
D Shares —
Us Alpha Leasing (US) LLC*, Alpha Leasing {US) (No 2) LLC®, Alpha Leasing (US) (No, 4) LLC*® Partnershups 50 —
Engine leasing
us Rolls-Royce & Partners Finance (US) LLC* Partriershup 50 —
Engine leasing
us Texas Aero Engine Seraces, LLC* Partnership 50 —
Repair and overhaul
us Wilkams-Rolls Inc (UK & North Amenca)® Common 15 15
Small engine collaboration
Defence aerospace
Germany EPI Europrop Interational GrbH (effectrve interest 35 5%) Ordinary 28 28
A400M engine collaboration
Germany EURQJET Turbe GmbH (UK, Germany, ltaly & Spain) (effective interest 39%) Ordinary 33 33
£1200 engine coltaboration
Germany MTU, Turbomeca, Rofls-Royce GmbH (UK, France & Germany) Ordinary 333 333
MIR3%0 engine collaboration
us GE Rolls-Royce Fighter Engine Team LLC* Partnership 40 40
136 developmenit engune for the Joint Strke Fighter {JSF) Programme
Corporate
us Exostar LLC* Partnership 176 -

Business to business intemet exchange

Unincorporated overseas - held by subsidiary undertakings

Defence aerospace

Us

Light Hehcopter Turbine Engine Company {LHTEC)

Rolls-Royce Corporation has o 50 per cent interest in this umncorporated parmership which was formed to develop and market jointly the T800engine

The countries of prnncipal operations are stated in brackets after the name of the company, if not the country of Incorporaton




Independent auditors’report
To the members of Rolls-Royce plc

We have audited the Group and parent Company finanaial staternents (the ‘financial
staternents) of Rolls-Royce plc for the year ended December 31, 2007 which
compnse the Group consolidated incorne statement, the Group and parent
Company balance sheets, the Group consclidated cash flow statement, the Group
consolidated statement of recognised income and expense and the related notes.
These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out
therain

This report 15 made solely to the Company’s memibers, s a body, in accordance
with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to
state 10 them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respensibility to anyone other than
the Company and the Cormpany’s members as a body, for our audrt work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for prepaning the Annual report and the Group financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Finanaal Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU, and for prepaning the parent Company
finanaal statements In accordance with applicable law and UK Accounting Standards
(UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the statement of directors’
responsibilities ¢n page 3

Cur responsibility 15 to audit the financial staterments in accordance with
relevans legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland)

We report 1o you our opinian as to whether the financial statements give a true
and fair view and are properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985
and, as regards the Group financial statements, Articte 4 of the IAS Regulaton We
also report to you whether in our opinion the informaton given in the Report of the
directors 15 consistent with the financial statements. The information gven in the
Report of the directors includes that specific information presented in the business
review that 1s cross referred from the business review section of the Report of the
directors

In addition we report to you i, in our opinion, the Company has not kept
proper accounting records, If we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audt, or If nformauon speafied by law regarding
dwectors remuneration and other transacuons 15 not disclosed

We read the other information contained in the Annual report and consider
whether 1t 15 conssstent with the audited financial statements We consider the
implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstaterents or
matenal inconsistencies with the financial statements. Cur resporsibilities do not
extend to any other information
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Consolidated financial staterments

(-:ompw financial statenments.

Basis of audst opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance wath International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit ncludes
exarmination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant esbmates
and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s and
Company's crcumstances, consistently applied and adeguately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit 50 as to obtain all the infermation and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us wath sufficent
evidence 10 give reasonable assurance that the financal statements are free from
matenal missiatement, whether caused by fraud or other iregulanty or error In
forrtng our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements

Opimion

In our opiruon

- the Group financal staternents grve a true and fair view, i accordance with

IFRSs as adopted by the EU, of the state of the Groups affairs as at December 31,

2007 and of s profit for the year then ended

the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance

wath the Compames Act 1985 and Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation

- the parent Company finanoal statements grve a true and fair view, 1In
accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the
parent Company’s affairs as at Decermber 31, 2007,

- the parent Company financial statements have been propery prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and

- the infarmation given in the Report of the directors i1s consistent wath the
financial staterments

M oA P

KPMG Audit Pic
Chartered Accountants, Registered Auditor

London
February 6, 2008




